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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2006 BUDGET (C.c. 04-287, c.c. 05-19, c.c. 05-63, c.c. 05-82, and c.c. 05-120)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). " I would like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for Wednesday, April 13, 2005. For the record, we have Members
Anderson, Mateo, Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane. Excused until the afternoon session will be
Member Molina, to take care of a personal matter; and excused also, who will be joining
us shortly, will be Mr. Carroll, Ms. Johnson, and Mr. Hokama. Members, we are with the
Water Department this morning. But before we get into that, we do have some people
signed up to testify this morning. If anybody has a cell phone or pager, if you can, please
tum it to the off or silent mode first and foremost so we can avoid any unnecessary
distractions. Those of you signed up to testifY, we provide you a total of four minutes.
At three minutes, we will notify you of that time and with the additional minute, if you
can, take that time to wrap up your comments. I will jump in if you continue after four
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minutes and it's not meant to be ... uh ... to insult you in any way, but we need to give
everybody equal time for their testimony. And please remain at the podium until the
members had an opportunity to ask questions if they have any. Please state your name
for the record and if you do represent an organization, please, we would like to know that
as well. Our first person signed up to testify is Romualda Ines and following Ms. Ines is
Scott Allen. If you can, please come forward to the microphone. Good morning .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. INES: Good morning. Honorable Council, thank you very much for allowing me to speak
to you today. My name is Romualda Ines and I represent the Maui care home operators.
I hope that you can address our concerns, which are emergency room repair, emergency
roof repair, hallway widening, bathroom remodeling, and wheelchair ramps. Maui is
faced with a crisis due to a shortage of long-term care beds. Our clients--if not served by
us--would be in the hospital, nursing home, or home alone, where their needs may not be
served. Our services is badly needed in the community. We are concerned in our ability
to continue servicing our clients because we need to repair and upgrade our facilities to
accommodate the needs of our patients. Our efforts to obtain low interest loans have
been exhausted so we are here asking for your help. We know that there are many needs
of the community and we humbly ask for your support. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ines.
MS. INES: I have Elisa Villanueva over here. She's the Vice President.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And after you speak, we will need you to sign a form. Okay?
MS. VILLANUEVA: In addition to our needs and ... aside from that is our sewer fee. We was
wondering if you guys can give us a regular sewer fee like regular homes. Right now, we
have more ... uh ... we have a higher rate than regular homes that ... um . . . yeah.
They consider us commercial--fine--but what about those homes that are rented, they are
also commercial and they have a regular fee. So we are asking if, to be fair, we should
have all the same with the regular houses. Or if not, you should ... or we are asking that
you should put us back to a regular homes rate because right now we have more than a
regular sewer fee from regular houses. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, please state your name for the record, please.
MS. VILLANUEVA: Oh, yes. My name is Elisa Villanueva.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Villanueva. Any comments, additional comments, ma'am?
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MS. VALDEZ: I second the motion.... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. VALDEZ: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: We are in discussion.... (chuckled) . .. Ms. Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many people reside in one of your care homes?
MS. INES: A maximum of five.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Five? That's less than many homes ... uh ... families. Is
your request for the repair of your roof in our budget, in the Mayor's budget?
MS. INES: Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
MS. INES: We had a meeting with the Mayor already, so he suggested that we ...
CHAIR KANE: Please come closer to the microphone so we can ...
MS. INES: We had a meeting with the Mayor sometime last week and he proposed that we
access the emergency fund.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you submitted a request in writing with the amount?
MS. INES: We did.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. You said you sent something in writing? We
don't have that, whatever you sent in. What I have from you is ... urn ... a request for
emergency repair funds and it doesn't have any dollar amounts on it, and neither does it
say how many homes. How many homes are needing each type of repair?
MS. INES: Almost 11 homes or less.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: All ofthem need what's listed on the last part ... urn ... that
starts with the doorways, and ramps, hallways?
MS. INES: We all have different needs. Like some of us need our toilets. Some of us need to
repair the walls, holes on the floor, due to wear and tear because of the ... our clients.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Can you get us a copy of whatever it was that you submitted
to the Mayor ... because it doesn't automatically come to us?
MS. INES: Okay. I have to trace ... urn ... all the paperworks that we did and we will be
sending you a copy.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And you can give it to our staff members here with the Budget and
Finance Committee.
MS. INES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Ines or Ms. Villanueva?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: One more, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are you licensed by the State of Hawaii?
MS. INES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And the 11 homes are licensed?
MS. INES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Are there more than 11 homes in the system ... as far as
providing this type of care?
MS. INES: We have a newly licensed home, so this is the twelfth.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, so there's 12 altogether? And you have a maximum of
five per home that you take care of?
MS. INES: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
home?

And you are independently, each person runs their own

MS. INES: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. It's my understanding that Wailuku is losing
its rural status for the Federal government's rural development funding and that many
care homes were depending on this. Does this affect you guys in any way?
MS. INES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Again, ma'am, we need you to come forward to the microphone and speak into
the microphone, so that we can hear you.
MS. INES: Yeah. Our last meeting with the Mayor, they said that we are all affected because we
... we, most of us live here in Wailuku and Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you tell me how much money that you receive from
these rural development funds?
MS. INES: We did not receive anything.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, you have not been receiving anything?
MS. INES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, members? Hearing none. Ladies, thank you very much
for your testimony this morning and please forward that information, once you've
gathered it, to the staff
MS. INES: Thank you.
MS. VILLANUEVA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And Ms. Villanueva, if you can fill out the paperwork, please.
Thank you. Next to testify, we have Mr. Scott Allen.
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MR. ALLEN: Mr. Kane and Members of the Council, sure this is largely an apology to you.
You were kind enough to take some of your time to see what we were doing ... urn ...
some of the merchants on Market Street in Wailuku. I said I was gonna be here on the
11 tho In fact, I was but I was late. I didn't understand the protocols. By way of
mitigation, I'm working a night job, a day job. I spent 20 days on active duty, including
reserve drill weekends since January. I'm helping out a little bit on a farm and helping
with Wailuku. So ... urn ... I try and be more focused but I didn't appreciate the, again,
the 9 o'clock show time. Moreover of perhaps more importantance to the Council was
talking with some ofthe folks at ... urn ... in Wailuku on Market Street. The hearing on
Monday was tremendously encouraging. From the bottom of my heart, I would like to
say thank you. Mahalo for your consideration of the parking structure. We think that's
going to be lifeblood for the community. It's a primary focus for everybody that I've
been speaking with there. And again, hopefully, this is refreshing, but I just wanted to
say mahalo and I'm not asking you for a single thing this morning.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, please state your name for the record.
MR. ALLEN: Scott Allen.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Allen.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Tavares.
MR. ALLEN: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes. Do you attend the MRA meetings?
MR. ALLEN: I'm kind ofthe new guy on the block-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. ALLEN: --and ... urn ... I am going to be but again with my work commitments right
now, I am somewhat precluded from being every place I'd like to be.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
MR. ALLEN: But it is ... urn ... again, if I may go just a little bit further? The initiatives
... uh ... before I became involved in Wailuku, I read the plan (the 2002 plan). I read
the historical documentation and the plan that was prepared under the auspices of the
MRA was one of the things that gave me the, I guess, the courage to get involved ...
because when you look at Wailuku, a lot of places in it are really scary and I've literally
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bet my house on the deal. So making that goal is of tremendous importance to me and
my family.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MR. ALLEN: But ... uh ... giant mahalo for your consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Allen. Any further questions? Hearing none. Thank you for
your testimony this morning.
MR. ALLEN: Thank you, sir.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..

CHAIR KANE: Is there anybody else here in the chamber that has not testified that would like
to? Now is your chance. Seeing nobody approach. Members, without objections, we
will close testimony for today's meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much, members. We will close testimony.

CHAIR KANE: Very good. Let's move on. The Chair recognizes Council Chair Hokama.
Good morning, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Members, why don't we go ahead and open up. First, if Ms. Morrison has any
opening comments before we move forward? If not, then I would like to recognize the
Director of Water Department, Mr. George Tengan. Good morning, Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. I guess the best
way for us to start this morning is to go over the submittal we have dated here April 12th.
It's a transmittal from myself to Ms. Morrison, Budget Director. The subject is Fiscal
Year 2006 Budget Review, Capital Improvement Projects. I believe the members have a
copy of this document.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Tengan. Before you proceed, just for clarification, members,
this morning, we are scheduled to discuss Water Supply's CIP and we are also scheduled
tomorrow after--excuse me--tomorrow morning to discuss Water Supply's operations,
grants, rates and fees, et cetera, regarding restoration, installation, lavatory sewer billing
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services, et cetera. So, today for CIP and tomorrow for the rest of it. Okay. So if we can
focus our comments and questions in that area. Thank you, Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. In Attachment 1 of this document here, we have our CIP proposal
by community plan district. The pie chart indicates the amounts that we'll ... uh ... that
are being proposed for each district. As an example, in Hana, we are proposing
$2,770,000. In HaikuJPaia, $3,220,000 and so on down the line. At the bottom, you will
see a little table there, indicating the source of funding. In this case here, we have
$5.3 million proposed from the capital reserve fund. These are projects, primarily to take
care of replacements of our facilities; such as the pipelines, pump stations, and whatever
else that needs to be replaced. The water system development fee, that's what is
commonly referred to as expansion funds. These are generated through payments from
new customers obtaining water services from the Department. We are proposing to fund
$8.8 million through this fund and we still have some old funds that we need to expend
eventually. These are the old source and storage funds. In the State column, you will see
about $6.2 million. These are primarily State revolving funds. It's the fund that was
created through the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act. If you notice on ... uh ...
however, if you notice on Kahului/Wailuku, we have $1 million in the State column.
This is an amount that was appropriated by the State Legislature to Department of Land
and Natural Resources, who have '" urn ... who has delegated this amount to the
Department for expenditure. The fund is primarily to ... urn ... seek a source north of
Makamakaole in the Waihee Aquifer. On the second page ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair? Could we stop on the first page, first?
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I have one.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Tengan. You said that the source (the two columns
of source) are old funds?
MR. TENGAN: Source and storage.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Source and--oh, I'm sorry. Source and storage.
MR. TENGAN: Yeah. These are the funds that we created prior to the creation of the water
system development fee, which includes source, storage, and a transmission component.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So if somebody is purchasing a water meter, where
does that money go?
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MR. TENGAN: That would go into the water system development fee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: And when a developer is putting in a, you know, a bunch of
stuff, they are also putting money into this?
MR. TENGAN: If they're putting in facilities in lieu of cash, then that wouldn't enter this ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, no. If they are paying cash.
MR. TENGAN: If they are paying ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is there only one type of fee now?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just the water meter fee? That's it?
MR. TENGAN: The water system development fee; right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions before we move forward? Mr. Tengan.
MR. TENGAN: On the second page, we have a summary by source of funds and basically, I
guess, that's what we went over. That's the table on the bottom of the first page. And on
the third page, we have a breakdown of the projects that are included in these amounts
that are represented in the ... urn ... in the first page, showing the projects by district.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Tengan. Members, without objection, you want to go by district and
then stop for questions after each district? Why don't we go ahead and walk through that,
Mr. Tengan. We will start with Hana and then move forward.
MR. TENGAN: Okay. In Hana, we have--as I stated earlier--we have $2,270,000 proposed,
consisting of three projects. The Hamoa-Koali Waterline $1.3 million; Hana Source
Development--this is for a proposed well at Hamoa--$900,000; and Nahiku Water Source
Improvement is for the drilling of an exploratory well in Nahiku $570,000. Currently,
our only source in Nahiku is from a tunnel and ... urn ... this tunnel source may be
under the influence of surface water. What this means is that if it's determined by the
State to be a source under the influence of surface waters, then it would require treatment.
So in preparation of that action being taken by the State, we would like to do a well so
that, you know, we could take the water from the ground without having to treat it other
than disinfection.
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CHAIR KANE: Any questions in this area, members? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. This Nahiku Water Source Improvement, the
water that you're currently using, you said, comes from a tunnel?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is it currently being treated?
MR. TENGAN: Just with disinfection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it doesn't go through a treatment plant of any kind?
MR. TENGAN: No, it doesn't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And has the State required you to do this new well?
MR. TENGAN: They haven't yet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. It's a question ... uh ... well, first of
all, question for the Chair. When we go district by district, can we go like say project by
project as soon as the Director gives his information so that we're all on the same line?
CHAIR KANE: Sure. If you'd like to go further detail and stop after every description?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You could do that if you want to so ... uh ...
CHAIR KANE: We can do that. If you have a question that you'd like to ... urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. So that ...
CHAIR KANE: We will go ahead and go by district and if there's one in there--as we are going
through--then that you would like to stop and ask the question there, the Chair has no
problem with doing that, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. On the first project, reading the description
and justification, the last sentence "will construct in phases", I note that for the year 2006,
we got the total construction dollars. So can you explain the multiyear ... urn ... well,
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the phases, if you're going to need multiyear funding in regards to this one particular
project?
MR. TENGAN: Yeah, go ahead. (NOTE: He s speaking to Ms. Kraftsow.)
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. The entire length of line to Koali is 17,000 feet. So the portion that
goes from--what did I say--hydrant 42 to standpipe 23 is about 4,500 feet.
MR. TENGAN: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. I forgot to introduce staffhere.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TENGAN: If I may, at this time? We have Ms. Ellen Kraftsow from our Water Resources
and Planning Division; Alva Nakamura from our Engineering Division; and also Wendy
Taomoto from Engineering.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TENGAN: And in ... uh ... to continue on with the response for Mr. Pontanilla. If you
refer to Page 22-20, you will see the spread of the funding for that particular project and
there's also ... there may also be some additional infonnation.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: As we complete Phase I, we will go to probably Phase II,
and then Phase III to complete.
MR. TENGAN: Uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So it's not gonna have like say a gap where we start the
project; we stop; and continue maybe next year sometime?
MR. TENGAN: We already have (for the '05 Budget) $245,000 for design and so we are
proposing $1.3 million for the construction in '06.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chainnan. I was just trying to understand--when the
Department in this Fiscal Year '05 and '06, we're talking about one year or two years for
this project? Are you looking at the '05 Budget year as well as the '06 Budget year?
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MR. TENGAN: No, I was just providing additional information to Mr. Pontanilla regarding the
funding, total funding of that project. We have this year budgeted $245,000 for the
design and we are proposing in the budget $1.3 million for the construction of the line.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Director. No, but on the headings of your
sheets to us, after your project title, you have Fiscal Year '05 and '06. So I am just
wondering-MR. TENGAN: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --well what do you guys mean by this?
MS. KRAFTSOW: This is our Fiscal Year '06 proposal but the Fiscal Year starts in ... it's
2005 July to June 2006, so it's the period from July 2005 to June 2006. That's just the
way we always traditionally did it when we were under the Board. I can change that if
... in the future.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. No, no. Thank you just for the explanation. So for all
three projects in Hana, I am assuming when you say State monies, you are talking about
State revolving fund monies? Or is that a wrong understanding on my part?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. Yes, that's correct. Except for that million dollars that I mentioned
earlier, which is for a well development in Waihee.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But for the three Hana projects, Mr. Director, the $2.7 million
is to come from the State revolving fund loan program?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct. We'll be sUbmitting applications if we haven't done so already.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Have we, through your Department, received enough assurances that
the money is there for the County to utilize? And if it does not materialize, what
happens?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. Obviously, if it doesn't materialize and these projects continue to be
a priority, then we would have to seek some other sources of funding, which could be
... uh ... probably would be through the water system development fee or a request for
bonding.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: At this point in time, do you know what is the interest that the State
charges for use of their funds? Because I would like to compare it to the interest we pay
on our notes.
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MR. TENGAN: No, I'm not sure as to the exact rate. I do know that it's below the rate of a
general obligation bond.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman?

Okay.

But it is still placed against our debt ceiling, correct,

CHAIR KANE: We will find that answer for you, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can move on. I can move on, Mr. Chairman. I'm sorry. I can
move on. Now for the Hamoa-Koali Waterline, those funds have been utilized and all of
your design work is completed, that you're ready to go to construction. Can you give us
a status of that project, please.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. I will ask Wendy to respond to this.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The status of the project is that the consultant (Ronald Fukumoto
Engineering) has just completed the topographic survey, which was subcontracted out.
From what I understand, they are preparing what we call a topographic map, which will
then be submitted to our office with a preliminary alignment. I have not received that to
date but I expect it in maybe the next two weeks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So as far as your project management schedule, are you still within
your parameters that the request for construction funds-MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --can be utilized in the '06 Budget year, fiscal year?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is it the same situation with the Hamoa Well 2 project,
please? Your exploratory drilling is completed?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chairman. The exploratory well drilling is in our fiscal year, construction
funds is in our Fiscal Year '05 Budget. We are finalizing the plans. We ... urn ... are
gonna be submitting the well drilling permit this week, once I get it from our consultant,
and we will be going out to bid in the next, I would say, maybe in two months. That will
take approximately six to nine months, I think, to drill that well and then we will be ready
for this phase, which is the development phase, construction/development phase.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So just so that we understand, you have enough money this
year so far to complete your design and do your exploratory drilling. Correct? And then
if that pulls to be ... uh ...
MS. TAOMOTO: Suitable to the Department's needs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. You hit your standards that we're gonna put ... want it now
as a production well, that's--is that what the $900,000 is for?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well production?
MS. TAOMOTO: That's for installation of the permanent pump, well pump.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But at this point, you cannot tell us for sure that you need the
production money since the exploratory well hasn't been, phase has not been completed?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, are you within your project management schedule for this
phase?
MS. TAOMOTO: For the-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For the exploratory ...
MS. TAOMOTO: --Fiscal Year '05 Budget? Yes, we are.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good job. My last one is Nahiku. So how is our Nahiku exploratory
program?
MS. TAOMOTO: Urn ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You're ready for ...
MS. TAOMOTO: The Nahiku Water Source Improvement's design phase is in our Fiscal
Year '05 Budget, also.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MS. TAOMOTO: On that project, we have gone through consultant selection and we have not
notified the consultant because we are preparing the documents like the scope of work,
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et cetera, et cetera. And once we get that finalize, we will be submitting a request for
proposals to the selected consultant. We are on schedule with that also. Being that the
funds lapsed December 31 st of this year, we will have a design contract by then. We
anticipate being able to move into this construction phase within the Fiscal Year '06.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And your current year's design money comes from the water source
development fund? Is that the source of the funding for your design?
MS. TAOMOTO: .. .(end of tape, start IB) . .. which I'm sorry.
breakdown for our Fiscal Year '05. It should be. It should be.

I don't have the fund

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: It wasn't State money, or bond money, or any grant, so it would fall into that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If you can just later have that verified, please.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Well, the first area would be
the Hana Source Development (Hamoa Well 2) and maybe if the Department could tell
me whether, at this particular point, the present well is sufficient in size and in terms of
providing the needs for the Hana community at this point.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. Before we ask Wendy to answer that question, if the Council
members would ... urn ... committee members would look at the project sheets included
in the budget. There's a coding next to the numbers presented. In the case of the
question that Mr. Hokama was asking, you will notice the letter "C" next to it. The
legend down below that explains that it's County funds. So that would probably be either
our water source development fee funds or ... urn . . . our Capital Reserve funds. So
Wendy, go ahead.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Mateo, could you repeat your question?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just checking to see whether or not the existing Hana Well is
adequate enough to provide its water needs for the Hana community.
MS. TAOMOTO: The Hamoa Well, which is on Page 22-21 of the project sheets, is sufficient.
Having another source called the Wakiu Well. This well ... this project that you are
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looking at is to drill a backup well for the existing Hamoa Well, so that in the event that
the existing well needs to be taken out of service due to failure or maintenance, we have
... the Department has the ability to continue providing source to Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the existing well is producing how much water? And that
just runs to the next question that will, that ... uh ... that I wanted to ask, which is like
... this new well, the capacity will be what? What additional capacity will this new
project provide? You can respond later.
MS. TAOMOTO: I am showing on the groundwater use that the Hamoa Well--where did it go?
The Hamoa Well produces 209,000 gallons as the moving average. The existing ...
that's the existing well. The proposed well is going to be a duplicate, identical in its size
and capacity to the existing well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: I don't have the actual pump rated capacity with me but this
information I have, the 209,000 moving average.

IS

the

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. And I guess going on to Nahiku (the Water
Source Improvement). This particular ... well, first of all, do you know the capacity of
water needed for this particular region?
MS. TAOMOTO: I believe the existing tunnel, as stated in the project sheet, is limited to 20,000
gallons per day. Based on my discussions with the District Engineer, it '" the
consumption (existing consumption) exceeds that. So it would be in excess of that
20,000 gallons per day.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the new project ... uh ... this, this new project, this will
be able to develop ... uh ... how much more water?
MS. TAOMOTO: Well that depends on the ... what we call the pump test phase. Once we drill
the well, we do a pump test. But it would be significantly more probably than this
20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So at this particular point though, what is existing and
what this project will create will provide a lot more water than actually is needed in this
particular region?
MS. TAOMOTO: Will provide for future demands.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And future demands ... urn ... was that, you know,
based on what you might know as development coming in in this particular area?
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MS. TAOMOTO: When we get to the design phase, which we're gonna procure in 'OS, we will
look at the future--just the forecast of the existing use and then the demand; and then we
will also look at any possible future developments that we are aware of in the area; and
then we would size the well accordingly.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I want to start with the Hamoa-Koali
Waterline. What is the present size ofthis line?
MS. TAOMOTO: The present size of the existing waterline is 4-inch PVC, plastic.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And are there any hydrants in this area right now?
MS. TAOMOTO: The project begins at hydrant 42 and ends at hydrant 23, and in between
that--almost right in the middle--is hydrant 19.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So there's three hydrants?
MS. TAOMOTO: In this phase, yeah. I need to clarify in, there are ... hydrant--the first start of
the project is a fire hydrant and these next two are standpipes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you are saying 49 hydrants from the end of the 8-inch
in Hamoa to Kaupo end ofline. So the line ends where? At Koali?
MS. TAOMOTO: If you are referencing to the total project--which
comprised, which is 17,000 feet--it ends ...

IS

the three phases

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I am just referring to what we are discussing here today. Is
that more than one phase?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. On the project sheet (Page 22-20), there is 17,000 feet of 8-inch.
That's the entire project. This is Phase I, which I believe is the next sentence, 4,500 feet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And is there current source to provide the ... in other
words, you are going from a 4-inch line to an 8-inch line, you are going to need more
water. So what is the source right now for this line?
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MS. TAOMOTO: The existing source and the continual source would be the Hamoa Well,
which feeds from ... urn ... all the way from Waikoloa Road all the way to the end of
Koali. That's the service area for Hamoa Well.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: So that's the 209,000 gallons that you just mentioned?
MS. TAOMOTO: That's the tank size. Oh, yeah, yeah, yeah! Sorry. That's the 190,000 gallon
tank with a 209,000 moving average--yeah--that I just mentioned previous.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A 209,000 gallon moving average and then you have a
tank. Is this the tank that's going to be replaced?
MS. TAOMOTO: Excuse me--replaced? The tank?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is this line going to depend on a new storage tank that
needs to be replaced in this area?
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, yeah. There is a--in the Fiscal Year '05 Budget--a Koali tank
replacement, which is at the end of this entire project, which this project ends at. That
tank does need to be replaced. We have it in our Fiscal Year '05 for design.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
gallons?

And it's going from how many gallons to how many

MS. TAOMOTO: The existing size is 8,000 gallons--oh, sorry; excuse me--12,000 gallons and
we are proposing a tank in the range of 200,000 to 250,000 gallons. This size will be
determined when we do the engineering design reports, the final size.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the end result is that you will be able to deliver more
water down this line than you currently do without having to drill another well ... and
that you will have a backup well eventually for this same line?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so there will be 17--please just bear with me. I am
having a hard time understanding your sentence here. This first phase will include
17 new hydrants along this line?
MS. TAOMOTO: Approximately.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
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MS. TAOMOTO: The final hydrants will be determined based on the zoning or the community
plan designation of the adjacent parcels. This is just an approximate number of hydrants.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well that brings up another question. If the zoning is Ag
currently, you would put the hydrant ... space the hydrant according to Ag standards?
MS. TAOMOTO: 500 foot.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And if it's community plan designated, something else?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Rural?
MS. TAOMOTO: I'm sorry. It would be placed based on the community plan designation.
That's how we normally do it in our office. The hydrant spacing will be based on what
we look at the community plan designation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: But I don't ... I'm not sure that this entire stretch of 17,000 feet is all in Ag.
I see a lot of residential lots here cut out, so it might be a mixed use.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is it safe to say that this is just an extension of the
current project that's going on right now, all the controversy surrounding the increase in
the Hamoa line?
MS. TAOMOTO: The reason or the justification that we are doing for the other project (fire
protection, improve fire protection to the community) is the same logic we are using for
this project--yes. It's just going in opposite directions from where the well comes down
to the highway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: It's an identical thinking, yeah, type of project. It's just going in the other
direction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So once this is finished and the new tank is in--I don't
know if I got an answer to my question, though--you will be able to increase the amount
of water available? Not just for fire protection but for anything else, like development?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Once the proposed line for this Hamoa-Koali is done and the tank is
constructed, we will be able to issue additional meters to the Koali area. Right now, we
are not issuing any meters.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you done an estimate of how many more meters you
will be able to issue?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, I haven't. That is something that ... I mean we are, we just got the--we
didn't even get the topographic survey yet, so I have a consultant, and we will be
preparing like an engineering report. Normally, those types of analyses are done at that
time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Along that line, I just finished ... uh ...
and excuse me for being late, but I was meeting with the Mayor about this project. He
has assured me that they are going to only put in hydrants where there are homes and that
he will be informing the community of that ... and of course, I don't want to go further
into it because he will be informing the community of this also.
MS. TAOMOTO: Can I ask for clarification?
Hana-Hamoa project, right?

You said this project?

You mean the

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Correct.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay. Because Ms. Anderson was talking about the Hamoa-Koali project.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah. We was only talking--excuse me--about the Hamoa to
Hanaone.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just to clarify that that one does not have. The other side
one, there was no discussion on that because there's a lot of homes out there. There's
homes almost all the way, going to ... uh ... on the other side of Hamoa. There's only
one short pasture and the rest is all homes, so it's kind of moot. You would have to put
the hydrants over there, anyway. Just to clarify. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. CarrolL Mr. Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think the Department made comment already. My question was
... uh . . . stemmed from responses to Mr. Mateo. How did they arrive at the type of
projects? So already, I heard from one of our engineers that it's part of the analysis is
based on community plan designation. How much of the current water use development
plan is considered when we do ... uh ... when you propose projects to us at just this? I
have been reading. I know you folks are having update meetings scheduled in the next
few weeks in various regions of the County on the island of Maui, so I am aware of your
efforts in that manner. But with the current, what is approved by Council, how much of
that document is utilized regarding your projects with proposals?
MS. KRAFTSOW: For source development projects, we look at the demand forecast in each
area and we schedule the ... try to schedule the source development accordingly.
Sometimes, because of land issues, we fall behind. But this particular project was not
actually scheduled based on demands or based on a community plan issue. This
particular project was scheduled because it's a remote community that depends on just
one line that is substandard and there have been a number of breaks. If that line goes
down, then the community downstream loses everything and so it's been ... you know,
in Wailuku, if one line goes down, there are other lines to get there. Because this is a sole
(one conduit), this project was prioritized because the field is concerned about that. It is
both substandard right now for any kind of fire protection, even Ag, and it's also being a
sole conduit that is old and in danger of breakage and loss of service. So this project was
prioritized for those kinds of reasons, not really based on community plan issues.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. No, I have no problem supporting Mr. Carroll in this
project proposal. I know what you folks are trying to accomplish, so I don't have a
problem about increasing the ability of the system to perform under stress. Okay,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in the Hana District? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Are any of the pipes exposed?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Excuse me--what?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Are any of the transmission lines exposed, going towards
Hana or Hamoa to Koali?
MS. KRAFTSOW: There were sections ... (inaudible) . ..
MS. TAOMOTO: I visited this project two months ago and I am thinking. The only portions
that I can think of that are exposed are the crossings, where the gulches are. They are
strapped on the bridges but I don't recall seeing exposed pipe in other spots but I could be
mistaken because there was a lot of vegetation, you know, and it's 17 miles.
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... (chuckled) . .. I'm not looking at every inch, yeah. But in general, it's under the
pavement unless we cross a gulch.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because when I was with the phone company, I
did some work out there and I saw a lot of exposed pipes. And this construction, I
assume, is going to be underground?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, just a note for you. I don't know if the Director noted
this as well. We are working off of the first attachment, which is basically mirrors what
you have in your program book. The second attachments, I think, go along with the first
attachment. And I guess that, again, that just mirrors what is stated in the description
justification, Mr. Tengan? My point being, for the members, this mayor may not help
you as far as giving you additional information on the projects.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What are you referencing?
CHAIR KANE: I'm referencing ... in the back of the handout, there's a group of Attachment Is
and a group of Attachment 2s, and a group of Attachment 3s. So Mr. Tengan, just for ...
if you can just clarify those ... that information is to, again, help with the information on
each of the projects. Is that correct?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. We have two sets of attachments in table form. I don't know if your
copies are highlighted with this yellow at the top of the rows here.
CHAIR KANE: No, it's not.
MR. TENGAN: No, it's not. Why don't I let Ellen explain these attachments, here?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And that's before we move on, members. Again, this may help
you, you know, have more information so you don't have to ask questions that are
already listed in the documents.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Sorry. Your Attachment 2 has all the projects in the Fiscal Year '06list, with
a description justification and some additional remarks; and your Attachment 3 has the
current year's project status.
CHAIR KANE: Great. Okay. So members, again, this mayor may not assist you folks with
your information for the projects. Okay. Without any further questions in Hana--oh, I'm
sorry. Ms. Anderson?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I see that you have a question
mark by State revolving funds, so the funds have not been secured. Is that correct?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes. The funds ... urn ... the funds for, I think, all but one of the projects,
the funds are ... have already been placed on the eligible list, meaning we've put the
initial one-page application in to see if DOH would consider them eligible for funding.
But as the projects are implemented, there's a much more complicated process that needs
to be followed and implemented, and that doesn't get going until the project gets going in
each case. So as ... when it gets to that project, she would do that more complex
process. So they are in, if they are in here, they are on the eligible list but that doesn't
necessarily guarantee that we will get the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. Thank you. I would like to know ... because we
are doubling the size of the line. We are doubling the size of the water ... that mayor
may not be available. I know you're ... you say it's a backup well but backup wells
sometimes get used more than just for backup. And you are increasing the tank size, you
know, more than tenfold. So I would like to know how much--even if it's just, you know,
an educated guess based on the Department's experience--how many more water meters
this will allow for this area? Rather than wait until you get your design done, which was
funded last year, if you could give us an educated guess, I would appreciate that. I mean
how many current water meters are on the line?
CHAIR KANE: Department, are you able to respond to the question at this time?
MR. TENGAN: No, Mr. Chair. That's something we would have to get back to the committee.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we will have that question generated and sent for a response.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in the Hana area before we move forward? Okay.
Hearing none. Mr. Tengan? And we may stop you, Mr. Tengan, but go ahead through
the committee.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I'm sorry. Chair, I had one more question.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I've had a discussion with the Department about this line
in the past and I was told that there's no waiting list because there's no water availability
but once this project starts going, how will you ... there may be current owners out there
waiting for water meters, for more source, and a larger line for water meters ... urn ...
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that have not applied for a water meter because there's no water. They know there's
nothing available. So how are you gonna go about distributing this additional water?
Will you, you know, go out into the community and tell them? I want to be assured
there's some kind of fair share distribution of this water, rather than the new availability
going to all new development. Is there some way you could do that so that there's a fair
waiting list.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. I believe Wendy addressed this concern, this question earlier. She
stated that we would be doing an analysis based upon the tank size and the amount of
water that the backup well could provide in addition to what the projected demand is. We
would be sizing the tank and the pump according to this projected demand. As to how
much water would be available from the proposed backup well, we ... Wendy indicated
that we won't really know this until we drill the hole and do a pump test, and then a
determination will be made as to how much water is available through that well. But
... uh . . . in doing the improvements, we . . . I am sure we are going to be taking into
consideration what the projected demands are. This is going to include those people that
are currently waiting for meters in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Waiting for meters in Hana along this line, this particular
line?
MR. TENGAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you already have a waiting list?
MR. TENGAN: We don't have a waiting list but we know those properties that don't have
meters or those properties that have meters, and we could ... uh ... take an inventory of
the parcels out there to determine how many, you know, potentially, how many more
customers would be coming in for a meter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's what you base your projected demand on?
MR. TENGAN: I'm sure Ellen goes through a much more sophisticated analysis. If you want, I
will have her explain what she does.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you didn't really answer my question. I wanted to
know--is there a system that the Department uses when they are increasing the
availability of water meters to allow the people along this line to get in line for a meter?
So that current owners--who may want to build an ohana unit or subdivide their property
for their family--have a chance at getting a water meter, rather than just new people
coming in to develop new parcels? Is there a system?
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MR. TENGAN: Yes. The system is to develop the water system and determine how many
meters you can handle and issue meters based upon the capability of the system. At this
point in time, we don't have any water that we can issue meters on. And so that
determination has to be made until, you know, following the ... urn ... the construction
of the improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Will you be notifying the public that they can sign up for a
water meter once the system is online, prior to the system being available?
MR. TENGAN: I don't understand your question. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'll send a written request, Mr. Chair.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Urn ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Taomoto? Excuse me--Ellen Kraftsow?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair. I think--Iet me just see if! get the gist of your question. You are
concerned about ... urn ... if community members out there might be in line for a meter
and might not get their application in soon enough, under our first-come-first-serve
system. If the water would be used up by ... potentially, conceivably, be used up by
some large developments instead and you want to know if we're going to do anything to
prioritize who gets a meter where. Is that the question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's basically it. Not to prioritize but just to allow
everyone a fair shot at it because I know that there are people waiting to develop land out
there and waiting for this line to be put in. But there are existing families out there, who
may want a chance to have a meter also. So what system are you going to use to allow
everyone a fair shot at getting a meter.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Until ... and you know, I say this with some embarrassment because I know
we're behind on the water use development plan. But for us, the traditional way to give
out meters--we would certainly announce that a new well is online. But the traditional
way that meters get given out once that announcement is made is through
first-come-first-served. At this time, there is no priority system anywhere. One of the
issues we want to deal with during the water use development plan is whether or not there
should be some other way to do it or whether Council should set priorities for us; but at
this time there is none, other than first-come-first-served.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You couldn't do a notification to the community that
within, you know, 12 months, we will have more water available so that they can plan
their future?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: We certainly can notify them.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because the developers know.
MS. KRAFTSOW: We certainly could put it in the papers or do some kind of notification to the
community plan, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that would be only fair. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area before I move on? Mr. Tengan, Paia/Haiku.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. If I may, I would like to ask for a little break here to discuss one of
the projects in the Paia/Haiku area with staff?
CHAIR KANE: You're asking for a brief recess?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's take a recess. How much time do you need, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: Five minutes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's reconvene at 10:10. We are in recess .... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10:04 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:10 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel). .. Okay, members. Let's reconvene. Mr. Tengan, you have the
floor.
MR. TENGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. For the Paia/Haiku area, we have three projects. The
Ulumalu Waterline improvements, Kokomo Tank replacement, and the Lower Paia Tank
replacement land acquisition. I'll let Wendy go over the details ofthe project.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: I'm gonna use the handout (Attachment 2), so you can all follow along. We
are going to start on Kokomo Tank replacement (Attachment 2, Page 1). The Kokomo
Tank replacement is to construct a half a million gallon tank to replace the existing tank,
which is inadequately sized. This project was bid out last Fiscal Year '04. The bids
exceeded the available funding and we were not able to come up with a solution at that
time. So this ... (end of tape, start 2A) . .. if you want to call it that, for the ... what we
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feel, when we re-bid it in the next couple months, will be the sufficient funding for this
construction phase of this project. I can take any questions now.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions on this one, members? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. What is the existing capacity?
MR. TENGAN: 50,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. I think it's about 50,000 but ... urn ... hang on. I'm looking. Oh, it
says in the justification column that the existing size is 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: What?
MS. TAOMOTO: In the justification column on Page 1 of Attachment 2.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh, okay. Thank you. This is the document, we just got, yeah.
Okay. My question to you then is if it's 50,000 for this particular tank and you are
planning to construct a 500,000 gallon tank, then this will fit on existing property?
MS. TAOMOTO: No. The existing tank is 100,000 gallons.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: And it is at the intersection of Kokomo and Kaupakulua Road.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Oh, okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: The proposed replacement tank, which will be at the same elevation, because
there's no sufficient space at the existing site, we have found a site above what we have
... urn ... more commonly known as the Dowling Well. Above that, we have a site that
we are getting from A&B.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: At no cost?
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, no!
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I'm sorry?
MS. TAOMOTO: I'm sure there's a cost.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So there's no land acquisition request?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. We have in the Countywide, a land acquisition item.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay. And just for informational purposes, can you tell
me what the lifespan is of these holding tanks that we have?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. This would be a concrete tank and-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Concrete.
MS. TAOMOTO: --about 50 years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, here? Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My first question is in response to our engineer. Mr. Director, why is
land acquisition separated out from this specific project and placed in one different area
of the request?
MS. TAOMOTO: This land acquisition wasn't intended to be separated out. It's just that there
is no land acquisition and should we require the funding, we could go to our land
acquisition account in Countywide.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. That's not the honest way to do it, though.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, but ... it's just that there isn't a preparation for land acquisition. I can
ask Ellen if there was ever an appropriation and it's just not re-budgeted.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I would have to check. Usually, there is but I would have to check.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well anyway, it's interesting how this area of the island has
improved because this is the area that always complains about Makena and the need of
development to pay for its projects; and yet this is the area that I would say had 5,000
building permits in the last five or six years ... and because they were small, it comes
under our radar. Now we gotta deal with this capacity improvement need that we never
planned, we never talked about. So when did the ... uh ... in the issuance of all these
permits and approvals, have we reached a point where you are now at a critical junction
in the delivery of the current water capacity? Are you having problems with pressure
from the 100,000 gallon tank? Or are you having booster problem requirements to get
the water to all these new houses?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The existing demand on this tank is estimated at 6-700,000 gallons a day, if
you look on the justification.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I am talking about the existing tank.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. So the existing tank is too small to cover that kind of demand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So how did these people get building permits and water approvals?
Wasn't there some kind of check, when we go through the infrastructure, that you know
what, we ... the pressure and the amount of delivery, we have reached a point where we
have to start either deferring or denying the permit requests. Are you telling me you guys
kept issuing out permits and meters and now we have this ... uh ... because this is not
just replacement, this is an expansion. Okay. Replacement is you're replacing one for
the same. Okay. So if it's 100,000, you're replacing 100,000. You are asking us,
actually, a Kokomo Tank expansion is the correct title.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. The Kokomo Tank, as was stated earlier, is 100,000 gallons.
Basically, when we look at fire protection, we look at the service area. In this case here,
at the present time, the Kokomo Tank is--as we stated earlier--too small to service, you
know, to provide fire protection if that was the only tank that we were looking at.
However, the water does come down from the Pookela Tank into the Kokomo Tank or the
water goes from the Kaupakalua Well into the Kokomo Tank. So what we are doing now
is ... uh ... we are trying to provide a tank that's large enough to service the Haiku area
without having to depend on other parts of the system for fire protection. So although the
tank is too small now, we are still issuing meters because that fire protection can be
supported by other areas. However, in our design standards, we look at providing fire
protection storage within the service area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Would Fire be able to verify that their requirements of flow for fire
protection is still adequate? Okay. Can you say that this morning, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Based upon the way we issue meters and the analysis that's done by the
engineers, I would answer that question in the affirmative.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You are asking us for $3 million, more than likely from the water
source development fund. So just so that I don't need to ask this for all the other projects,
how does water source development fund ... well how does a water tank
replacement--which is the correct title--qualify for a water source development fund use?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. Although we are replacing a smaller tank, we are replacing it with a larger
tank; and based upon this, it provides ... urn ... theoretically, some system expansion
capabilities. So in this case here, we would use the water system development fees.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. It's not source development, it's just system development?
That's what the "S" stands for?
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MR. TENGAN: That's correct because, as I tried to state earlier, the water system development
fee has three components. One is source, one is storage, and the other is transmission.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that information for me, Mr. Director. My
only comment, Mr. Chairman, is ... uh ... you know, I think we need to call it what it
really is, which is an expansion. It's not a replacement in my eyes. And second, are you
confident that the funds requested will be able to satisfy your re-bidding process?
MS. TAOMOTO: We are fairly confident that we can get the bids at under $3 million. This is
based on the lowest bid in '04 being $3,398,000 and then subsequently trying to negotiate
with the lowest bidder, we brought it down to $3 million ... but we were still unable to
find the additional funds we needed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you're not going to have any protests?
MS. TAOMOTO: Huh?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Since you've already chosen your ... ?
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, no. This will be a re-bid. I think this will be are-bid.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But you just told us you negotiated with the lowest bidder to go
down to $3 million.
MS. TAOMOTO: I believe we had ... uh ... one-and-a-halfmillion, yeah?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. We had under $2 million in the '04 Budget. I need to ... urn ... from
my understanding, it would require a re-bid but I would need defer to Corporation
Counsel to advise us if we could use the existing bids opened in Fiscal Year '04 and
encumber that contract. I am not sure if ... uh ... from my understanding, it would need
to be are-bid.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well I hope we don't get one lawsuit out of this one, the way it
sounds. I mean if you're negotiating, obviously, you've chosen a provider. You've
chosen a provider to perform and you've negotiated down to $3 million for Kokomo
Tank--I'm going to call it what it is--expansion, and yet you are gonna go re-bid. I
thought you guys entered negotiations. Don't you enter negotiations in good faith?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, it was disclosed to them that there would need to be a lot of thinking out
of the box ... (chuckled) ... to come up with what--I mean from bringing it down from
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what they had at almost $3.5 million to under $2 million was not expected. And so what
they offered--and it wasn't like we asked them to--they offered to ... urn ... in our
general conditions, it allows us to get a best and final offer, but their best and final offer
was still above what the available fundings were. Also, in our general conditions, it states
that if funding is not available, the Department will not award a contract. So I wouldn't
really call it a negotiation. I mean I used that word but they wanted to submit a best and
final offer.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's allowed? The other bidders were not allowed to give
another bid?
MS. TAOMOTO: It's allowed with the lowest bidder, I believe.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What ... only ... by law? State law?
MS. TAOMOTO: I can defer to Corp. Counsel. Our Corp. Counsel's behind me. She would
know. She said she would have to look at the contract.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Sounds interesting how you are working with one person that
wants $3 million from us, guaranteed. Okay, Chairman. I'm done. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. My question was almost in relation to
what Wendy had alluded to in regards to monies in the '04 Budget, the $1.7 million.
How does that appropriation, you know, relate to this $3 million that is being requested
for '06?
MS. TAOMOTO: Fiscal Year '04 funds, if it wasn't encumbered by December 31 st, have lapsed
and are what is being used to fund the Fiscal Year '06 Budget. So those '04 funds are not
available to us.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So that particular fund had already lapsed?
MS. TAOMOTO: Lapsed.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area? Mr. Tengan, if we can move on to the
Lower Paia Tank?
MR. TENGAN: You going take that?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The Lower Paia Tank replacement is for land acquisition, to
acquire land to accommodate a larger Lower Paia Tank to replace the existing tank with a
500,000 gallon tank. This project will improve fire protection for Paia/Kuau. Also, it's
noted in the justification there are commercial areas that need that fire protection. Any
questions?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Has the site actually been
secured already? Or I mean, have you identified a site that you're interested in securing?
MS. TAOMOTO: Honestly, this project is ... uh ... gone way back. We were doing it as a
research for years, the prior Engineering Program Manager. I, personally, haven't nailed
down exactly what the square footage is and approached somebody that I can recall. But
once we get this funding, we will try to get that accomplished.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So do you at least have an idea of potential sites that the
Department would be looking at?
MS. TAOMOTO: I cannot say right now. I would ... uh ... I haven't, I have to pull this file
out and start again. But this was brought to my attention that it was becoming more
urgent and so we needed to get moving with it.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I think that's why, you know, I'm kind of looking at the
identification of a site because your listing of this particular project is like ... uh ... on
your priority list as number one on your priority list. And part of the justification and the
description references the need to address fire protection as well as understanding the
need, the inadequate existing need for protection of the commercial areas. And at this
particular point, I don't know what kind of priority listing it is when the Department
doesn't even have, you know, considerations of a site, which is ... you know what you're
asking monies for. So I would have thought that you would at least have a location
already considered or a list of locations where you can select from. Chairman, I'm just
gonna go past it that I got my answer. Thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Thank you. You are going from a 100,000 gallon tank to a
500,000 gallon tank, and you say that ... urn ... currently, the tank is inadequate for
commercial fire protection. How long has this been the case?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Do you know?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I don't know exactly but it's been a long time ... because there's
Commercial zoning there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What do you mean because there's Commercial zoning
there?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In other words, you've allowed ... the Department has
allowed Commercial development beyond fire protection capacity?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I'm not sure that it was necessarily the Department's decision how an area
was zoned but this was a very small community that has been growing. It is zoned or
designated Commercial or Business/Commercial and ... urn ... there's a need for better
fire protection to support that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Anytime a land use request is brought through the County,
your Department reviews it and the Fire Department reviews it. So if the existing
capacity is inadequate for fire protection ... um ... wouldn't you notify the Planning
Department in their request for review?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Usually, we'll say what the system is in the area and we'll also request that
an applicant be required to meet standards; but we don't actually review ... get the
projects to review until they are at the subdivision and building permit phase. I mean we
review them, through the Planning Department, but we don't set water system
requirements at that point. We say what the water requirements will be when they
develop.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this 5,000 gallon tank is going to provide fire protection
to increase the Commercial area in lower Paia as well as take care of the existing
Commercial?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Actually, the existing tank is too small for the existing situation now. We're,
you know, there have been projects ... in all fairness, I have to point out that there have
been many projects that were approved over and above our comments that the system
was inadequate for that kind of zoning protection. So ... uh ... I'm not gonna say that
that happened in Paia. A lot of Paia was built before my day. But the existing tank is too
small for the Commercial nature of the area.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Was this project foreseen in the water use and development
plan? Was it anticipated that there would be a need for more water storage for fire
protection in Paia?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Anytime you increase the density or the intensity of a use (anywhere,
anytime), you increase the burden on the system. We have, in many cases, tried
unsuccessfully to argue that anything other than as required in the Code to be exempt.
First and second dwelling should require fire protection. But with zoning, typically, it
has ... it's not enforced at the zoning stage. The project gets their zoning and then when
they're ready to develop, they submit their plans for engineer review.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: You know, that had nothing to do with my question.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: My question was ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: I misunderstood you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll say it one more time! Was the need to increase this
tank anticipated in the water use and development plan? I'm assuming this thousand
gallon tank has been there for quite some time. So are you familiar enough with the
water use and development plan to just give me a yes or no answer?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The water use and development plan did not do an inventory ... the old--if
you are talking about the 1992 Draft--there was no inventory of storage and where
storage needed to be increased. It wasn't an item-by-item. It was not a capital plan. So
"no", it was not in the water use and development plan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so storage capacity throughout the County is not
evaluated within the plan at all?
MS. TAOMOTO: Right here.
MS. KRAFTSOW: It is. In the current plan, that's one of the things that we are looking at but it
has not historically been in the plans, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions for this item, members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Of the Corporation Counsel, Mr. Chairman. In the remarks with this
specific project, Corporation Counsel, and we're looking at Attachment 2, Line 23-13.
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When you look at those comments, are we acknowledging additional liability because we
are making a statement of the status of the system?
MS. VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Good morning.
MS. VILLAROSA: You're talking about the comments that were made by the Department?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. So you know, obviously, we gave approvals--the County did.
We have commercial businesses operating. If a major fire hits and bums down the whole
commercial area, we don't have adequate storage for the Fire Department to take care of
the needs of the scope of the fire, are we additionally liable now ... since it's pretty much
being admitted we have an inadequate program?
MS. VILLAROSA: Well I suppose that if somebody were to make a claim against the County,
as you know the minutes of these meetings are public record, so it's possible that
somebody filing a claim against the County could use ... or attempt to use the
information as an admission.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then I guess no water meters are gonna be issued for a while then in
this area? It's the only thing I can see. Mr. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
me--Ms. Taomoto.

Any further questions on this item?

Mr. Tengan.

Excuse

MS. TAOMOTO: Ulumalu Road is the next project, and I'm still on Attachment 2, Page 1. This
project is from the intersection of five comers to standpipe 52, which is approximately
700 feet. We are proposing to install 12-inch ductile iron pipe and approximately three
fire hydrants. This will improve the fire protection.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Point of information, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. There's no FY '06 Budget on this, yeah, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct. In the budget document, there's no funding request?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, excuse me! Yeah, sorry. Let me clarify. In the Budget Ordinance, this
project is what is shown as Haiku Waterline and in parenthesis Iolani La-Ia-Ia-Ia, that
should be Ulumalu Road. If you tum to your budget proposal on Page 23-14, the project
sheet is included, 23-14 of your budget proposal.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And it says zero.
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct. There was a ... urn ... a revision to our initial submittal and I guess
these changes did not get made, so those dollar values should move over two columns
each.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you are ... we're assuming you are requesting $50,000 of what
type of County funds for your design?
MS. TAOMOTO: The $50,000 should be in prior appropriation and the construction money of
$120,000 should be in the Fiscal Year '06 column. And if you turn to Attachment 1,
Page 3, that project is listed under PaialHaiku 23-14, 120 under capital reserve.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that update. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And can you list the Budget Ordinance page, I think you listed
again?
MS. TAOMOTO: I don't have a copy of the budget.
MS. MORRISON: It's Page No. 16, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. MORRISON: Or ... yeah 16, at the bottom of the page.
MS. TAOMOTO: I'm gonna continue on the ... urn ...
CHAIR KANE: Hang on one second. Just hang on.
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh!
CHAIR KANE: Letter "J", No.1, letter "A", J.1.A. Is that it, Ms. Taomoto ... for $120,0007
Okay, thank you. Thank you for bringing that up, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Chairman, just, just to ... uh ... so the correct project name is
Haiku Waterline Improvements?
MS. TAOMOTO: The incorrect name is Haiku Waterline Improvements.
replaced with the word "Ulumalu Road Waterline Improvements".
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And all those streets is accurate: lolani, Kahealani?
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MS. TAOMOTO: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (sigh) ...
MS. TAOMOTO: I know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You need to send us a corrected document, please.
MS. TAOMOTO: The Budget Ordinance will be corrected by, I believe, the Budget Director. If
you would like, we could send ... the project sheet is included in the budget proposal for
the correct project--Ulumalu Road. And again, that is on Page 23-14 of your budget
proposal.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: And ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Could we get the correct amount for Fiscal Year 2006?
CHAIR KANE: $120,000, Ms. Taomoto? The one ... those two numbers on 23-14,
Ms. Anderson and members, should be slid over to the left two spots. So the $50,000
should be under prior appropriation and the $120,000 should be under FY'06
construction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Let's proceed.
MS. TAOMOTO: I'll just take any questions you have.
CHAIR KANE: Are there any questions specific to this item ... besides the adjustment
numbers, and placements, and name, and whatever else you want to change? Members?
Let's move forward, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: I think that's the last project in our district?
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CHAIR KANE: Yeah. So let's move to the next.
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, okay. You want to move to Makawao?
CHAIR KANE: Let's move into MakawaolPukalanilKula.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And give us a moment just to get to the pages in the program, please. On
24-16, members.
MS. TAOMOTO: Dash 16.
CHAIR KANE: That's the next page. And I don't know about you, members, but I don't have
that in my program.
MS. TAOMOTO: You don't have 24-167
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, I get' em.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: The first project is the Hamakuapoko Wells 1 and 2, Environmental
Assessment for Regular Use Up country. This is funding to complete an environmental
assessment so that the Department can use these wells during non-drought periods. Let
me give you a history. There is an existing EA that is filed and approved that allows the
Department to use these wells during drought emergencies. So this proposed EA will
allow us to use it during regular use (non-drought). Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson followed by Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's gonna cost $50,000 to do a supplemental EA?
MS. TAOMOTO: Chair, this is not a supplemental EA. This is a new EA. It's a different
... uh ... condition that we are using this well for. It's just going to be a brand new EA,
not a supplement to our existing EA.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what do you have to do different rather than just
... (end aftape, start 2B) . ..
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MS. TAOMOTO: '" (inaudible) ... I believe, since the existing drought emergency EA was
prepared, there have been changes to the EIS Law for cultural ... urn ... stuff. I can't
remember the exact ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Cultural assessment.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, assessment and other stuff that ... urn ... and there are also different
issues that we would need to be looking at for regular use.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Regarding pollutants in the water?
MS. TAOMOTO: No. I mean that's one thing that we would discuss in our EA but I mean just
that we're .,. now that we're gonna be using it as a backup, so that we have the
flexibility to use it during non-drought periods. We're not saying we are going to be
using it everyday during non-drought periods but so that we have this flexibility to use it
during non-drought periods. This is just a budget item so that we don't have to come
back to Council to request additional funds. We will make our best effort to negotiate
with the consultant what we consider a fair price, but this is just an estimate. It's not
going to be the contract amount.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what exactly is the trigger to do this EA? Are you
being required to do this by a court order of any kind? I mean because I don't see the
trigger.
MS. TAOMOTO: The Hamakuapoko Wells, as you would know, can be used during drought,
which we have used. By completing this EA and getting it through the process, we will
be--when there ... urn ... it would just allow us to provide more water Up country. In
other words, let's ... give us a little bit more flexibility with our system, an additional
source.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What's the trigger for the EA?
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh! When you talk about triggers and you're gomg back to the
environmental triggers, use of County funds, use of County land. We have a County
easement.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You've already got the wells. You've used the funds.
You're already using the well. Those were the triggers that required the initial EA. So
why do you have to do another one, just to increase the use of the wells?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. I believe the trigger is the different purpose of using the well.
Originally, the wells were intended to provide water to the Central Maui area under the
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East Maui project. However, we would like to provide more flexibility in the operations
of the Upcountry water system, whereby, these wells could be used to backup the
Upcountry water system also. As an example, if we see that our--excuse me. If we see
that our storage reservoirs Up country are going down and a drought hasn't been declared,
you know, we may be able to ... uh ... and the ditch flow at the Wailoa is down, and a
drought hasn't been declared yet, this would provide us the capability of taking that water
and pumping it Upcountry to supplement, or to retain as much as we can, of our levels at
the open reservoirs. So it's a matter of, as Wendy says, providing more management
flexibility of our sources Up country.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't see the trigger. I mean if you want to protect
yourself from any challenge by the fact that you are increasing the use of the well, what
you were saying you were going to do when you did the original EA, then I would think
just a supplemental would be good enough but ...
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. If you know ... uh ... Member Anderson's concerns can be
addressed prior to executing a contract with a consultant to help us in this area. If one
isn't needed then certainly, we won't expend the money to do an EA. But in case we
need to it and we understand that we do need to do it and so we are proposing to include
in the budget this $50,000 to address the anticipated need. If it's not needed, we won't
use it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman. I would like the committee to ask Corp.
Counsel's opinion as to the need for this EA or EIS?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. That will be posed in writing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Specifically, what the triggers are.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
response--

We will have that question posed to Corp. Counsel for a written

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --as timely as they can. I think I was going to recognize Mr. Mateo. Pass? So,
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I have just two basic question for the Department. What kind of
supply would you anticipate from Wells 1 and 2? Half a million gallons a day, if utilized?
One million gallons a day, if utilized?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. If we pumped the wells 24 hours a day, the capacity is about
1.5 million gallons per day.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have limitations on your moving daily average, that you
cannot exceed a certain amount, Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Not for those wells.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And this is not the area that we had prior concern in the
previous decade regarding chemicals, whether it be DBCP or heptachlor?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. These two wells were in ... uh ... part of the DBCP lawsuit against the
manufacturers and so the water is presently treated with ... uh ... by passing it through a
GAC plant (granular activated carbon plant) to take out the chemicals.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And the Health Department has verified the potability for
human consumption?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. It's been approved for use.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Is this in any way associated to the Mayor's or the
Administrative agreement that they made with East Maui parties regarding not using
water from surface sources ... or whatever is the agreement that the Mayor has made
with East Maui people?
MR. TENGAN: I believe the agreement you're referring to provides the County to use those
wells while we are seeking other sources in the West Maui mountain area. However,
until we explore all these sources or alternatives, we won't be able to return to the East
Maui project to provide water to the central valley; but these two wells are being allowed
to be used to be ... urn ... transported to the Central Maui system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comments, Mr. Director. Mr. Chair, I
would ask Corp. Counsel to give us a comment. It is a policy that Administration has
agreed to but it was never adopted by Council, so I don't consider it a County policy. It's
an Administrative position that they've taken regarding water ... uh ... and so whether
or not that has any standing if it's challenged or if we choose not to agree to that or make
adjustments in the projects they may be in conflict of an Administrative position. What
standing would that have?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Fujita Villarosa, are you prepared to respond?
MS. VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair. Policies have no force and effect of law, so they are not
enforceable in court and they are not binding, necessarily, on any party, including
Council.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay.

Thank you very much for your comment.

Thank you,

CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. The Chair is gonna call for a recess. Our typical morning
break, we did take about five minutes and so members, we will go ahead and break until
11:05. We stand in recess ... .(gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:52 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:08 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel) . .. Okay, members. Let's reconvene. We left off at the
Hamakuapoko Wells No.1 and 2, Environmental Assessment, the $50,000. Members, I
will inform you that we have scheduled the Water for this morning but at this pace, we
are anticipating that it will take the whole day to deal with just ... we have 51 projects,
according to the handout, and we've gone through seven. So the Chair is not gonna
inhibit you folks. If that's the pace that you folks choose to go at then keep in mind that
we will not be able to reach some other areas of this budget and we will commence, when
the time comes, to deliberations. And if we haven't been able to touch base with other
Departments, it's because we--as a body--have chosen to choose the pace that we are
going at. So the Chair just lets you know that and the Chair will not stop you from asking
questions unless it gets too far out of what we are supposed to be talking about for the
session that we are in. With that, Ms. Taomoto ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What was scheduled for this afternoon? I don't have my
schedule.
CHAIR KANE: This afternoon, we had scheduled the Mayor and the Managing Director's
operations as well as the Finance operations, rates and fees, parking placards, changes in
negotiable instruments, motor vehicle weight tax classifications, et cetera. So we had
... uh ... we have a full plate. But we are looking at either rescheduling this (these
guys), which I do not want to do, and rescheduling this afternoon's session for another
day; but we are ... that's where we're at, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: We are going on the 8th of 51 projects.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: If this is the pace that we are going, I know it's really
slow. I don't know about the other members as far as going, rather than 4:30, maybe up
to 6 o'clock to get this thing done, maybe 7 o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not without dinner.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. With dinner, of course.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Well we'll cross that bridge. And as the Chair stated in earlier
comments, to accommodate your schedules, we have tried to keep to the pace and
admittedly the Chair has perhaps been a little more rigid than some of the members have
liked but it's for a reason. It's because, again, that clock is ticking and I try to
accommodate your personal as well as other professional needs. So if we need to make
adjustments and start taking longer periods of time during the day then, as a body, we
will move in that direction and hopefully everybody can start making adjustments to their
off-meeting schedules, especially in the evenings when a lot of us have already scheduled
things, you know, out forward. Hopefully, not during deliberations, which I think
Mr. Molina touched on. But anyway, we will cross that bridge, Mr. Pontanilla, and we
will see how far we get today.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: In the meantime, I will not compromise our lunch breaks and our, you know,
midmorning and mid-afternoon breaks. That is important for not only us but for staff as
well as the Administrative resource personnel. Okay. Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Kahakapao Bypass Valve and Flow Meter
Replacement. Weare proposing to install a bypass valve and replace the existing flow
meter between the reservoir and the treatment plant on the 24-inch line. This will ... the
request was made by our Treatment Plants Division and it will allow them to have more
flexibility in the control of flow from the reservoir to the plant.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? If not, Ms. Taomoto.
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MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Kamole Water Treatment Improvements. There are
two projects if you go to Attachment 2. The first project is the Acid Cleaning System
Construction. It is to install an acid cleaning system for the micro filtration units for
... urn ... what they call clean-in-place operations. By doing this (the acid cleaning
project), we should see operational cost savings for labor and chemical purchase.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Does this have anything to do with the water quality
Upcountry, the issue right now?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if! may?
CHAIR KANE: Director.
MR. TENGAN: Right now, we have only one tank to do the cleaning of the filters. Anyway,
there's two different solutions that are used to clean the filters. So what has to be done is
that first the staff would be filling up this one tank with the first solution; running it
through the membrane filters; and disposing of that solution. And then they would need
to go into the same vessel (that same tank) and put in the second solution, and then run it
through the filters again. What this tank will do is ... uh ... it will provide two tanks;
whereby, the staff wouldn't be involved in refilling and disposing of the solutions after
each filter cleaning. I think it was explained to me also that by having these two vessels,
we could save the solutions and use it for further cleaning, rather than disposing it after
using it one time. So it should provide for operational efficiency in the running of our
treatment plants.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it has nothing to do with improving the water quality
Up country?
MR. TENGAN: No, it doesn't.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next is Kamo1e Water Treatment Plant Improvement is to replace the
caustic tank in the chemical building. That's just a replacement and the caustic soda,
which is in the tank, is used for the clean-in-place process, so it's just another treatment
plant improvement.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. And this is on the same project, Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions? Proceed, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Kuhulu Lateral Tank Replacement. This is to replace
an existing pressure break tank at the top of the lateral that feeds that, down from the
Ulupalakua-Kanaio Waterline. It's a field request for a tank replacement. Any
questions?
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's the same sized tank?
MS. TAOMOTO: Normally, it would be relatively the same size because it's just a pressure
break tank. It's not used for storage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Moving on, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Lower Kula (Piiholo) Reservoir. This is to fund
environmental impact statement and studies. The Lower Kula water ... uh . . . Lower
Kula (Piiholo) Reservoir is a raw water reservoir for the lower Kula system. At this time,
we are thinking approximately 300 million gallons and awaiting for ... upon waiting for
completion of the design report.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any questions on the design and EIS Phase for Lower Kula
(Piiholo) Reservoir ... 300 million gallons? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You have half a million dollars down for this but then
there's previously $369,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Has any of that money from the prior appropriation been
encumbered?
MS. TAOMOTO: The prior appropriation column of 369 is for an existing contract with
Okuhara to do the engineering design report. We call it a preliminary engineering design
report. In that report, one of the objectives is to just recommend a size and a location.
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This is the second phase, which once we get the size, location, et cetera, we move into
doing the studies, the EIS and the studies, which is what we are asking for today.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well it says design, EIS, and construction.
MS. TAOMOTO: In Fiscal Year '06, design is lumped with the EIS, so the funding is intended
for an environmental impact statement. If you look at the description and justification, it
says design, EIS, and construction. This $500,000 is for the EIS.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It has nothing to do with construction?
MS. TAOMOTO: The $4 million is for the design and the construction is in the out years, pass
the 2011 table on the bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're doing an EIS with the funding for 2006 (the half
a million dollars) and then $4 million is for the design in 2007?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just cannot believe that you need a half a million dollars
for an EIS.
MS. TAOMOTO: I ... urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What's that based on?
MS. TAOMOTO: This is based on the fact that the EIS will most likely be a combined
... uh ... we'll have participation by Federal, hopefully, and State agencies, and so this
EIS is not a standard County-only funding EIS. It's a Federal State EIS. I've consulted
with one of our consultant ... uh . . . planner companies and it looks like it would
normally be in the range of half a million. Again, this is an estimate and the Department
will negotiate what we, you know, consider a reasonable offer.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you go out for EIS ... urn ... RFP, when you put
that out, is that open Statewide? I mean you advertise Statewide for that?
MS. TAOMOTO: The procurement process that we're gonna use is the County's ... uh ...
gonna be under the general County procurement. Sometime in Mayor June, the
purchasing office will place an ad in the Star Bulletin, I believe, and the Maui News, or
was it maybe the Honolulu Advertiser. And in that ad, it will say Lower Kula Reservoir
EIS and any consultants interested, please submit a statement of qualifications. So it will
be done through the County procurement process.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I am just amazed, half a million dollars for an EIS for one
reservoir.
CHAIR KANE: A 300 million gallon reservoir.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's a huge bracket.
CHAIR KANE: That's ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, but still ...
CHAIR KANE: That's like six times bigger than the existing reservoirs that we have up ... or
three times bigger than the reservoirs that we have up there now.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, if I can add? The locations (alternate locations) are within the
Waikamoi Forest Reserve and we are already aware that there may be endangered plants
and possibly some butterflies or animals, you know, like insects, and so the studies will
not just be your standard EIS studies. It's in a forest reserve, so it will involve specialty
experts to come and look at the site-MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair?
MS. TAOMOTO: --and then deal with those issues.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I might add? Since we anticipate working with the Federal
government in doing this project, Federal funds will be needed to do this project and the
EIS will have to meet Federal standards also.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I understand that and, you know, the requirements
for a State under Chapter 343 EIS are not that different from the Federal EIS
requirements. I mean there's scoping meetings that the State doesn't require but the Feds
do; but as far as, you know, what's really required, it is not that different. So could you
give us some substantiation? I mean it sounds like you just got this, you know, figure
from a consultant, who said they thought it might be that amount?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: You have a point of ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: To kind of interject. The whole thing about estimating EISs
and any other design things is done by sort of what industry standard is. And even if the
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EIS comes in at $200,000, if we appropriate $500,000, it's not like we lose that money. It
comes back. And these are Water funds already; it's not general fund. It's on their own
funding and ... urn ... I know it's a lot of money. I mean I used to go berserk, when I
was at Parks looking at conceptual designs cost. But if you look at the total cost of this
budget projected, this project is over a billion dollars. Right? It's not a million dollars;
it's a billion dollars.
MR. TENGAN: Well, we are projecting the project to cost anywhere from $50-60 million at this
point.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. With a share, right?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So it's a huge project and we were always under the
guidelines of 8-10 percent would be the conceptual design portion of any project.
Included in that too is sometimes an EIS and if it is an EIS, it goes closer to the
10-12 percent margin. So you know, in trying to help maybe speeding this process along,
maybe that explanation helps a little bit. But you know, we've seen these costs for other
projects in Public Works and stuff too. So you know, it's kind of like out there. We put
the money in there and if they can negotiate lower or it turns out lower, it's not like it's
money lost. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I appreciate-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --that, Ms. Tavares. Where did you find the total funding
for this proj ect, the cost for construction?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On 24-21 in the program budget under CIP ... the thick
book that we got. That's the County Program Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 24-21?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 24-20, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I'm looking at that but you just said it's almost a
billion dollar project. Where did you find that figure?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, it's not billions. It's four ... 4.5 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's ... that's just the County cost.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And there's gonna be Federal costs. So can someone tell
me, did I ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I was reading the wrong page. I was reading 24-21 on
the next project, which was 1,050 thousands, so that's, you know, that's a billion ... a
billion-dollar project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I was on the wrong page. So it's the 4.5 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For the County but ... 4 million 500, but didn't I hear
... urn ...

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, 45 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 45 million?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 45 million, right?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's not here. It says 4 million 500.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, it's 4.5? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
construction.

That's only for design.

I don't see anything for

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's why I'm wondering where you got that figure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I was on the wrong page. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. So Mr. Director, did I hear you say that this is gonna
be like a 50 million project?
MR. TENGAN: That's the best figure we have right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 50 million?
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MR. TENGAN: $50-60 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how much of that will be County responsibility? Do
you know?
MR. TENGAN: No. We haven't worked with the State and the Federal government as to
... uh ... in determining what each party's share would be on the project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions on 24-20, the Piiholo Reservoir? Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Olinda Treatment Plant Improvements. If you look
... looking at your project sheets (Page 24-21), this is Item 2 under description and
justification. It is to realign the Olinda 8.5 million gallon Reservoir. The line is
deteriorated and is leaking. It was a request by the Water Treatment Plant Chief.
CHAIR KANE: Question, members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, question.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Besides a liner, is there any other type of a barrier that is acceptable
to regulatory agencies?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have a choice? I mean, you know, if you tell me "no, it will
only accept one thing and it has to be this type of lining for the protection barrier and
that's it". Or is there other ... ?
MS. TAOMOTO: It has to be a lining. The type, I'm not sure if there's other manu .. , different
types of manufactures.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. So can it be a concrete lining? Can it be, you know, a plastic
lining? Or does it have to be this lining?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Nakamura?
MR. NAKAMURA: Mr. Chair. In answer to Mr. Hokama's question, I think if you went to a
concrete type lining, it would probably be much more expensive than if you went with a
regular lining as they're proposing ... because you would have to actually, you know,
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pour concrete and make the reservoir in terms of the complete, you know, bottom of the
reservoir. So doing the lining route is probably much more economical than doing the
concrete, using concrete.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: On the short term, I would agree with you. But on the long term, on
the life expectancy of the other types of linings--whether it be concrete or not--and you
project it out, maybe the concrete lining is going to outlast this lining five times. So what
... if we had to pay this five times, as the example, versus one time for the concrete
lining. Do we come out ahead?
MR. NAKAMURA: I think: that's something that we might have to take a look at. I don't really
have an answer for that question right now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I appreciate your comment, Mr. Nakamura. I would just
be up front and ask that the Department be prepared because I am gonna be consistent. If
... my question would be, has the Department looked at alternative assessments to what
is being proposed to us and, hopefully, the answer will be "yes, that we have done this
alternative assessment and for dah-dah dah-dah dah reasons, what we are proposing is the
best option for this committee that we have presented". That's what I want to hear. And
if the answer is "no" then I'm gonna tell you that I am gonna have a hard time,
wondering why is this before us. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you. Further questions? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. On the description and justification,
you note that substantial savings on the pumping costs would be achieved. You guys
have any ... (end of tape, start 3A) . ..
MS. TAOMOTO: '" (inaudible) ... to savings of pumping costs is for the additional filter
project, which was deleted. So that is not included in the Olinda Treatment Plant. Sorry.
There is a revision to the project sheet on 24-21. I would like to request that Item 1,
Additional Filter, design and construction dah-dah dah dah and going to the second line,
all of that be deleted. It is not included in this proposed budget.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good. Thank: you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you. Any further questions, members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One quick one, please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What kind of lining is currently used, please?
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MS. TAOMOTO: What kind of what?
CHAIR KANE: Lining.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What is your current material type of the liner that is there now?
MS. TAOMOTO: Do you know, George?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. I'm not sure whether, in fact, we do have a lining in that reservoir
right now. It might be just ... um ... you know, dug out into the earth and that's why we
are proposing to put in this membrane, put in this liner. Well, yeah, there is a lining. The
current one has deteriorated and it's leaking, so it needs replacement. And in answer to
your concerns about doing ... uh ... let's say a concrete lined reservoir. Operationally, it
would affect us tremendously. We would probably need to shut down the Olinda Plant,
while this reservoir is being constructed. And I envision, you know, taking more than a
year to go through the construction. You would have to dig out the ... um ... where the
reservoir is, do compaction and all those kinds of things and go through the actual
construction of the concrete lined reservoir. And you know, for us to shut down the plant
for a year or more would be a tremendous impact on our operations. We can pump only
about half a million gallons per day now from the lower system up to the upper system.
The current demand is about 1.5 million gallons per day plus. So that's another
consideration in going with the ... uh ... replacing the membrane filters because the
construction time or the replacement time would be somewhat shorter.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does the current reservoir support Agricultural water use?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, it does.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn't the State still moving forward with the alternative line to
provide Agricultural users a dedicated system?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct. The Kimo Lateral should be in construction soon but up till
now, there hasn't been any State use of that water. When that Agricultural line is
activated, what it's gonna do is ... um ... we're gonna bypass the treatment plant and
run the water from the big res .. , Kahakapao Reservoirs into that line, bypassing the
treatment plant and going out to the Ag customers, thereby, avoiding any treatment costs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And again, I just ... uh ... yeah wanted to have us be fully
aware of the situation that's impacting this area. So for me, then the ... this reservoir is
gonna be more dedicated for the future for potable or drinking water use?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate your comments and that is helpful for myself. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area? Chair has one question. The
Kahakapao Reservoir--in relation to the question that Mr. Hokama had about cement
lined versus an alternative liner, which is being proposed--is Kahakapao cement or is it
liner?
MR. TENGAN: It's concrete.
CHAIR KANE: It's concrete?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the life expectancy of the Kahakapao Reservoir, which is what--two
50 million gallon reservoirs?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
CHAIR KANE: And what is the life expectancy on those?
MR. TENGAN: Well, for accounting purposes, we use 50 years but I would think--with proper
maintenance--those reservoirs could last for much longer.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: Maybe up to 100 years.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Now relative to that, the liner repair ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's over $1 million.
CHAIR KANE: On the liner repair for the Olinda Treatment Plant, you folks have an
anticipated life of 15 years. Is that correct?
MS. TAOMOTO: 15 years, yeah.
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And so with the same--Iet me ask two questions then. The existing liner,
do you have a time when that liner was installed brand new?
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. I don't have that information but I've been back here on Maui for
about 10 years now and that reservoir was constructed prior to my corning back to Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: So it's been over 10 years.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And so my question would be ... would your response be the same
regarding if with proper maintenance, the anticipated life, for accounting purposes, would
it be much greater than 15 years on a liner?
MR. TENGAN: Possibly, it could but I would think that the liner would be more susceptible to
wear and tear than the concrete lined reservoir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay, thank you very much. Okay. Any further questions, members,
on Olinda Treatment Plant Improvements? Okay. Moving on.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Waikarnoi Flume Repair and Maintenance. This
funding is requested every year because the Department is responsible to maintain the
Waikamoi Flume and the flume is frequently damaged. It is an old flume and it is in
sections as unexpectedly it gets damaged, and so we request this funding every year.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So why would it be in CIP and not just maintenance, under your
operations? And if it's every year, why are you listing only one year on this sheet and
not having it multiyear listed?
MS. KRAFTSOW: It should have been multiyear listed. It is listed every year. And I think the
reason we put it in capital is because when they do repairs, sometimes they will replace a
whole trestles or something. It is an expensive repair. So just based on the amount, I
think, is why we've been having it in capital.
CHAIR KANE: And it just goes back--yeah, members--to the question that's been posed before.
Maintenance is maintenance, which is operations, (O&M) Operation and Maintenance.
And if you're gonna identify replacements, within that maintenance, then identify it as a
CIP, if it's major enough.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, in may comment?
CHAIR KANE: Please.
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MR. TENGAN: It may be--and I'm pretty sure--we are doing it like this because ... uh ... for
accounting purposes, if it has a useful life over a certain period of time (usually a year),
that work would be capitalized for accounting purposes and maybe we are doing it like
this to accommodate our accounting systems.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Let's move on. Written response, yeah.
MS. TAOMOTO: The ...
CHAIR KANE: Before you move on, Ms. Taomoto--I'm sorry. Ms. Kawasaki. Ifwe can have
a question sent to have Mr. Tengan and the Department respond to, I guess, their
breakdown between what maintenance and capital improvement and their justification for
how they are gonna derive that, and I think they--Mr. Tengan, just for clarity, it's because
of your folks accounting or your indexing? Can you restate what you said? And I
apologize.
MR. TENGAN: Basically, it's an accounting practice. In this case, we are talking about an
amount of $50,000. Our normal practice is to capitalize items over $5,000 ... as
opposed to--you see our accounting system is operated or, you know, handled on a
accrual basis or accounting, which means that on items such as this, you would depreciate
it over the useful life of that asset. For government accounting purposes, and I'm sure
GASB-34 now adjusts it. But in the past, it was mainly on a cash basis. So if you, you
know, if you expended $50,000 in a year to repair a particular asset, you wouldn't
necessarily capitalize that expenditure. You would just show it as an expenditure, without
any recording into a fixed asset account. So it's primarily an accounting treatment of this
particular kind of expenditure.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. How do you ... when you look at
your water rate increase, basically, you are looking at doing work on your existing system
to continue to provide water to consumers. Now if this is down under capital, how do
you capture that cost so that it affects your water increases?
MR. TENGAN: I don't know if! can answer your question, Mr. Pontanilla, but ... urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Well this would provide you with some justification as
far as-MR. TENGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --when you go for water rates increase.
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MR. TENGAN: Well whether it appears as a maintenance item or a regularly scheduled CIP
item, the impact on the rates is the same because the rates would . . . since this is a
replacement kind of project, we normally look towards our water revenues for
replacement projects. So whether it's included in as part of our cost of operations or as a
CIP need every year, it shouldn't impact the overall rate proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Further questions? Okay, let's move onto WailukulKahului, I believe,
members. On 25-68, lao Source Development projects. Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The lao Source Development projects, if you're turning ... please turn to
your project sheet 25-68, includes three projects. And let me just try to fix this project
sheet. The first project is lao Tank Site (Wailuku Shaft) Well. The second project is the
lao Treatment Plant Upgrade; and the third project, the No.3 parenthesis is missing, is
the Waikapu Well. Beginning with the lao Tank Site (Wailuku Shaft) Well, the funding
we are requesting is $1.2 million to develop the well. The existing status is that the
project is in construction phase (exploratory drilling, construction phase). It may be like
30 percent complete. And we anticipate to be on schedule for the development phase for
Fiscal Year '06. Any questions?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. First, before I recognize anybody, because what you're gonna be talking
to us about is different--is it different? Because what we have ... in your Attachment 2
handout, you have four items broken down. In the budget, you have on Page 25-68, you
identify two items broken down-MS. TAOMOTO: And then it ...
CHAIR KANE: --but what you just told us now is that there's gonna be three items broken
down. So we need to know, what is it?
MS. TAOMOTO: If you look at Item 2 on the project sheet (lao Treatment Plant Upgrade),
there's a dash, design and construction. Now you go to our attachment, it is just broken
down into two separate line items--construction then design.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So again, you need to break down the dollar amount.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So the 3-point, the 3 million 40,000 under development on Page 25-68, you
need to show us the breakdown since it's not breaking it down there and yet you are
itemizing.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Okay. Can you tum to Attachment 2, Page 2, and I'll list it there because the
project sheet ... urn ... it will be easier for you. The first project, lao Source
Development, lao Tank Site (Wailuku Shaft) Development is $1.2 million.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project, lao Treatment Plant Upgrade, construction is $1 million.
The next, lao Treatment Plant Upgrade, design is $100,000. The last, Waikapu Well land
acquisition and well development is $840,000.
CHAIR KANE: Budget Director. Ifwe can get from the Water Department maybe a transmittal
from you back to the committee to identify it in this way, we would appreciate that, so
that we can have that for our records, on the specific breakdown, instead of the handout
... like it's listed here. Ms. Morrison?
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair. Did you want it in terms of the Federal work that's in our capital
improvement program budget? Or ... urn ... ?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. We could do that because in the program CIP, it's broken down into
two; and in the handout, it's broken down into four. So if we can just have, I guess, a-MS. MORRISON: Correction page.
CHAIR KANE: --revised page to show the breakdown via that program.
MS. MORRISON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Members, and that's again, just to help us with clarity with their. Are there any
questions with the first item--the lao Tank Site Well (Wailuku Shaft) Development of
$1.2 million for development?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Is this the Wailuku Shaft 33?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The the lao Tank Site Well project is a well located at our existing
lao Tank Site. The Shaft 33 is another site. The reason there's a parenthesis Wailuku
Shaft is that the intention was to replace the withdrawal that the Department is taking
from the shaft by doing this well. So to, you know, reduce the amount of pumping in the
Wailuku Shaft with the amount that we are anticipating from this well.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what amount are you anticipating?
MS. TAOMOTO: Without the test, we don't know; but our guess is 2 million gallons per day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what does this Wailuku Shaft currently provide?
MS. TAOMOTO: Approximately 5 million gallons per day to our Department.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this 2 million will be in addition to?
MR. TENGAN: No.
MS. TAOMOTO: It hasn't been determined by the Water Commission if they will allow the
additional 2 million as an additional source. The initial application stated that it was
gonna be a replacement of the shaft.
MR. TENGAN: That's for existing use, yeah.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. For existing uses ... for existing use.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if! may provide some clarification?
CHAIR KANE: Some background, Mr. Tengan?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TENGAN: As you know, we are currently using the Wailuku Shaft, which is under the
ownership of Kehalani Mauka. We hope to abandon this source at one day ... uh ... at a
point in time because of the liability that may be imposed on the Department by
continued use of it. The shaft is old. It's probably not to OSHA standards and so we
need to abandon that source as quickly as we can. So the intent of this well here is to
provide for some capability for us to eventually, you know, abandon this source
completely. We also have the Waikapu Well as was listed down at the bottom here. That
is also intended to replace whatever we pump in from the shaft right now. Hopefully one
day, and we're working with Kehalani Mauka on an agreement regarding the shaft and
within this agreement, it's going to provide provisions whereby the developer or Kehalani
Mauka needs to develop wells for their use on their projects.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And this ... the whole idea is to spread it out, correct?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
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CHAIR KANE: Spread out the pumping to prevent coning?
MR. TENGAN: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Anderson. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So this is Shaft 33?
MR. TENGAN: No, it's not. It's somewhat related to Shaft 33 in the sense that whatever we can
produce out of this well, we would be able to reduce the amount that we pump from
Shaft 33.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
know they have ...

So Kehalani has control over--I'm confused because I

MR. TENGAN: Kehalani owns the land within which the shaft sits. So in that sense, yes, they
do have control over the use of that shaft.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: As well as Shaft 33?
MR. TENGAN: Well that's one in the same, the Wailuku Shaft and the Shaft 33.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's what I've been asking.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, it's not the same.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the ... the project site is at a different place.
MR. TENGAN: The project site is at the lao Tank Site, which is off of the road that leads
through the older part of Wailuku Heights. If you continue on from Main Street and head
towards lao Valley, you will come to a fork in the road and the tank site is just to the left
of that fork.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But what I'm getting at, Mr. Director, is that this well will
relieve the County from using the water from Wailuku Shaft 3?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, members. Sorry. Something flew in my eye. '" (chuckled) ...
Anybody else have questions? Sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you. I guess since lao had been designated,
does the State have to ... uh ... or are they involved in any of the approval processes for
this particular project?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, they are. The State has always had jurisdiction over issuing well-drilling
pennits. And following that, if you want to take water from the well, then you would
have to apply with the State for a pumping pennit.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And their involvement is strictly just approval and pennitting
processes and this particular project gets no State funds?
MR. TENGAN: Not this particular project, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And the 3 million 682, is that the total costs? Is that the
costs for the total project? Or is this just the costs for this phase of the project, if it's in
phases?
MR. TENGAN: No. The 3 million 682, is to cover the four projects--the development of the
well at lao Tank; the lao Treatment Plant Upgrade, which includes the design and
construction; and the development of the Waikapu Well.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chainnan.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions on this one? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Mr. Director, I know that next week there will
be a hearing on the Wailuku Shaft pennit that both Kehalani and the County are claiming
its use. If the Commission grants the use to Kehalani and ... um ... its production is
5 million gallons and this alternative well will only produce 2 million gallons, is there a
plan to make up the difference?
MR. TENGAN: Well currently, if you take into account all of our wells we have situated within
the lao Aquifer and the Waihee Aquifers, we have the capability to pump and meet our
current demand. But as you know, the Wailuku Shaft is a very important source to our
operations at this point in time. Well in answer to your question, the proposed well at the
lao Tank Site is not sufficient to replace the Wailuku Shaft and our plan ... urn ... right
now is, we need to also increase the capacity at the lao Tank Site Treatment Plant. We
are working on bringing online additional sources such as the Hamakuapoko Wells and
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also we are working with A&B for a water treatment plant at the Waiale Reservoir Site.
So these sources, you know, although it wouldn't be an immediate relief should we not
have the capability of taking water from Wailuku Shaft, we do have means by which we
can accommodate our current demand. The only problem with that is that we would be
pumping in excess of what we are currently--well we haven't even been approved for our
current pumping. That's something that's coming up next week. But we do have ...
system-wise, we do have the capability of pumping should we not have ... uh . . . or
should the Wailuku Shaft not be available to us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? Let's move on, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next lao Source project is the lao Treatment Plant Upgrade, which I said
was $100,000 for design and $1 million for construction. This is an existing treatment
plant and this will provide for a fourth filter. It will increase our capacity to 3.4 million
gallons per day, average day.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. Questions? Mr. Hokama followed by Ms. Anderson.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For this specific project, which is the Treatment Plant Upgrade, the
previous appropriation of design money already took care of some of the initial
requirements for design and that this $100,000 is just to wrap it up?
MS. TAOMOTO: No. That $56,000, I believe, is for the lao Tank Site Well design.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. You are confident you can design and construct
within the Fiscal Year 2006?
MS. TAOMOTO: As you can see by the project description, it is probably gonna be an in-house
design, like the third filter was and in-house construction, like the third filter was. So this
... based on the third filter we did last year, this funding should be sufficient and we
should be able to do it with the staff.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
construction?

Okay.

I understand in-house design.

Did you say in-house

MS. TAOMOTO: We have ... uh ... what we call pipe fitters or ... uh ... we have all kinds of
employees that are able to do the construction, themselves, like we have designers
in-house.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So knowing that we have expertise, within our workforce and
through your Department, it still takes $1 million to do a fourth phase for a fourth filter?
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MS. TAOMOTO: Based on the third filter costs, it was approximately $1 million. We are just
asking for funding for design in the event that we would have to pay for some design
costs but there may not be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Just in case, as you know, we are short staffed so, you know, we are just
making sure that we have the funding available so that we can move forward with this
project in the event that we have to go outside, but our intention is to do it in-house.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. With regard to the design, on the lao Water Treatment Plant, we
work closely with the membrane manufacturer. And in doing the design for the upgrades
at lao, at times, they incur costs that ... urn ... you know, they want to be reimbursed
for, and a lot of this money is used for that purpose. And like Wendy said, there might be
outside design assistance that we may be needing but primarily the project is done
in-house both the design and the construction. The construction is, I believe, 100 percent
in-house. If members want to go and visit the site, they will see an example of quality
workmanship done by County employees and I would be glad to take them up anytime
you're free.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm happy to hear that, Mr. Director. So let me just say that one, we
can pass mustard that more likely we can obviously do it with less financial resources
than if we went out to bid? That is one assumption I'm making, so that would be a pretty
good understanding from the Department's part? You guys can do it better right now for
the costs? ... (end a/tape, start 4A) . ..
MR. TENGAN: '" (inaudible) . .. that we don't have other concerns to--we use maintenance
people because we have the ... urn ... the expertise and the ability within our working
staff. We use their talents, especially in this case here, where the original plant was put
up under emergency conditions. There wasn't time to go out for outside design and
outside construction and so everything was done in-house. So since our staff is familiar
with that particular facility, we decided to continue using our current staff to do the
upgrades and we will do the same when we do the fourth unit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so I understand that. But since this is a capital improvement
project, am I to understand that the Department will contract with itself to do a capital
improvement project and, therefore, in your revenues, you need to show that this
$1 million is gonna recycle back into the Department? And would it go back into the
same fund (capital reserve) or construction?
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MR. TENGAN: No, we wouldn't be doing a contract with ourselves. It's just this million
dollars is to show that it's ... or it's to provide the funding necessary to purchase the
filter unit. It's like paying a contractor a million dollars rather than paying the contractor
for the unit, we would be paying the vendor for the unit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So under this contract, the $1 million takes into account the
labor, under construction? Or just for the actual purchase from the manufacture?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The $1 million does not include Department labor. It is just
funding to purchase the fourth filter from the manufacturer, supplier.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we've reached--Member Anderson, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I just have one quick question on this. You said that
this would increase capacity from what to what?
MR. TENGAN: The average capacity of the plant would be increased to 3.4 million gallons per
day.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: From?
CHAIR KANE: From what?
MR. TENGAN: From about 2.3.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: From 2.3 to 3.4?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. We've reached five after twelve. We're on Item No. 17 of 51,
so we are exactly one-third of the way through. So here are your options. As the Chair
sees it, either we can continue this afternoon with this. Or you can review the material
that we have, the additional 30-some odd items, and provide questions in writing, and we
can continue in our normal schedule. Or we can break here, continue with our regular
schedule this afternoon, and then we can bring back water (reschedule) to finish up the
additional 30 items, plus items that we have. I'm sorry that all members are not here but,
again, we need to keep moving and so the Chair is asking for your feedback and the Chair
will move forward at the pleasure of this body. But again, we are one-third of the way
through of this morning's session. Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. I would rather continue on and, you
know, complete the Water Department and then move into another Department.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any other comments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can work nights, not a problem.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would be willing to go ahead with what we have planned
this afternoon and bring this back later if, because I have a couple questions I would like
to get answered prior to continuing, but I'm happy to go with the rest of the committee's
wish.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Mateo, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I would like to finish the Department.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Actually, I would like to finish, not finish the
Departments. I would like for us to just stay on our schedule and--because we've run
overtime on this one--to bring them back either tonight or tomorrow night or something,
so that we ... our schedule doesn't get that far backed up.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Well because we don't have the other members, we are going to have to
make a decision. So the Chair will look at breaking with the Water Department. We will
continue with the schedule that we oppose with the Mayor and Managing Director's
office, as well as the Finance operations. We will have staff work with the Water
Department to either schedule for this evening or some other evening. And again, we
will just have to touch base with your schedules, members, because again--based on what
we've proposed to move forward--some members have already scheduled things in the
evening time, so we have to check with members' schedules. So at this time, we are
gonna break from water. We're gonna come back in our normal schedule with the Mayor
and Managing Director's operations schedule. We will work ... staff will work with the
Water Department to schedule another time for them to return. In the meantime, the
Chair would request that you folks do take a look at the material that has been presented.
If there are questions, please feel free to pose those questions in writing. That way, we
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can--as much as possible--try to keep things moving. Members, it is 12:10. We are
going to stand in recess until 1:30. Recess. '" (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

12:08 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:35 p.m.

.. .(gavel). . . Members, we are reconvemng.
This is Wednesday,
CHAIR KANE:
April 13, 2005. We are with the Managing Director's office. Mr. Keith Regan, our
Managing Director, and his First Assistant, Mr. Dave Taylor, is with us this afternoon to
go over their operations. Members, are there any questions or comments before we
begin? We have been given a document dated April 13 th from Director Morrison, that
provides us with an attachment of professional services of $60,000 and we will let the
Department give us their opening comments before we proceed. For the record, we have
in attendance for this afternoon's session: Tavares, Pontanilla, Molina, Mateo, and
Carroll. Thank you. Let's proceed. Mr. Regan, good afternoon.
MR. REGAN: Good afternoon, Chair. Good afternoon, members. I guess, you ... would you
like me to provide just opening comments before I begin with my actual presentation?
CHAIR KANE: Please.
MR. REGAN: I just wanted to thank you for providing us this opportunity to be here this
afternoon to discuss our request for Fiscal Year 2006 for our operating budget. We are
prepared to provide you with a presentation, which goes over our requests and provides a
lot of insight in terms of what we are trying to accomplish in Fiscal Year 2006. With
that, we also will have our technical staff that will be present to answer any questions that
may come up as we go through the presentation, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can, please--prior to starting--provide us with any reference
points so that we can follow along and be on the same page as you, Director.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. I would be more than happy to do that.
CHAIR KANE: Let's proceed.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. Good afternoon, Chair Kane and Members of the Budget and
Finance Committee. My name is Keith Regan and I'm the Managing Director for the
County of Maui. Today, we are here to discuss both the Department of Management's
operating budget, I believe, at first and, I guess, eventually, the Office of the Mayor's
operating budget as well. Chair, if it's your pleasure, I would like to begin by providing
an overview of the Department of Management, which begins on our program budget,
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starting with our Departmental Organization Chart on Page 11-1 of the program budget.
I am just pausing to allow everyone to ...
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Program budget?
MR. REGAN: Program budget, yes, 11-1. The organizational chart, which you see on
Page 11-1, reflects the four programs contained within the Department of Management.
They are the Administration program, the Energy program, Management Infonnation
Systems program, and the Geographic Infonnation System programs. Our four programs
have developed goals and activities that help to guide us as we proceed through the fiscal
year. Each one of these divisions play an important role in the overall function of our
County, both internally amongst the other 14 departments, as well as externally, through
the interaction with our citizenry. Chair, if I may? I would like to begin, as stated earlier,
with the review of our Administration program operating budget, which is found on
Page 11-8 of the program budget and begins on Page 9-4 of the budget details.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. REGAN: If we proceed to Page 11-8 and 9-4, as you will note, our Fiscal Year 2006
Budget request for our Administration program was $176,500 as compared to our Fiscal
Year 2005 appropriation of $113,096, which equates to a total difference of $63,404.
Majority of this difference can be found in one specific item in the budget details under
sub-index code 6132 (Professional Services) for $60,000, of which we have prepared and
distributed an overview of what we would like to accomplish with our requested funding.
I believe that was distributed earlier, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. REGAN: I am not sure how you would like me to proceed, Chair. If you want me to
'" uh ...
CHAIR KANE: You can start right there with the $60,000 on 9-4 of your details.
MR. REGAN: Sure. Essentially, the funds would be utilized to help initiate and conduct an
environmental or perhaps a better tenn would be a scientific assessment of the current
condition of the old Wailuku Post Office, which I know that we've had discussions on in
the past. We are estimating that the cost to perfonn this thorough review of the location,
to be in the approximate range of $60,000 given the size of the location and the potential
severity of the problem. Currently, we have restricted access to the old Wailuku Post
Office due to the unknown risks that may be present within the facility. Until such time
as we are able to deem it safe for entry, as was discussed during a Monday session by the
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Prosecutor's Office, the lower level or basement level has been the primary location of
the mold. That's the worst area within the facility because of its location and the
flooding that's occurring on that level. The study would provide a number of answers
that the County would need before moving forward with any of the mediation and
hopefully, the return of the facility to a useable condition. We all recognize that there's a
mold problem within the facility. However, we do not have the expertise--within our
County system--to provide us with the guidance on how to quantify what level of
situation we actually have on our hands with the facility. We would like answers to the
following questions; such as, how severe is the problem? What is there--mold, bacteria,
other things? Where is it exactly? How do we best clean it up? How would we prevent
it from happening in the future? And what measures must we take at this point? These
are questions that must be answered by experts and would require that we hire a
consultant that has the expertise to examine the building and provide us with the proper
guidance. Before I proceed, I am not sure if you want to . . . would like me to pause,
Chair, and answer any questions that may pertain to this item? Or would you like me to
continue and then open for questions? I am not sure what your pleasure is, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Why don't we stop here. I think there is a few questions that were mentioned
that would be asked specific to the Wailuku Post Office. So since we have that in front
of us now, members, the Chair will open it up for questions. Mr. Pontanilla, would you
like to open up, please?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Sure. Thank you. In regards to the old Wailuku Post
Office, you know, reading your presentation here, you said that the building was actually
leased to provide storage space only and not utilizing the offices that are presently there
by, I guess, a previous Administration.
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. REGAN: Member Pontanilla. I'm not sure exactly what the original intentions were for
that particular facility, whether they anticipated to actually have offices in that location or
if they were specifically intending to use it for storage. We believe that it was intended
for storage just based on the way that it's been laid out in there. I don't want to ... I
cannot speak for the purpose that the prior Administration may have had for that facility.
Going through the facility, if you look at it, it's almost as though all the offices on the
upper floors have been gutted, which I would have expected that that would have been
the office space that we're kind of talking about ... or you're referring to.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chair, I'll pass for now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Director, when did the lease
begin ... the start date of the lease, just trying to refresh myself on this?
MR. REGAN: Chair, one moment, we do have the lease in front of us so I'll get that
information.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: Chair, it was ... urn ... and Member Molina, July 1,1996.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 1996? And currently, is the building still being used for
storage? There are some ... we do have some documents and whatever else in that
building right now?
MR. REGAN: Yes, we do have documents in that building.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: It's not ... there are no new documents that are being stored in the buildings,
because we are restricting access to the building until we fully understand what we have
on our hands with the mold issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Regan, is the actual intent to
rehabilitate the building, address the mold and the bacteria situation, and once that is
done, to continue using it specifically for storage only?
MR. REGAN: That is our intent. Yeah, we would like to ... given it's proximity to the current,
to our current facility (to this campus), it makes a lot of ... urn ... what's happening now
are the department's are leasing storage space at private facilities such as KT&S (Kahului
Trucking & Storage) for instance. We want to try to reduce those costs and by opening
this up for storage (active storage), we will be able to consolidate that and have our
records close to our facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So more like a consolidation facility for other storage
... urn ... I guess, facilities being utilized at this point?
MR. REGAN: Correct.

- 69-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So ... and I guess part of this assessment will be actions
needed to keep the building free of whatever ailments are in there, yeah?
MR. REGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Once more ... uh ... we deal with a
building that we are spending quite a lot of, a reasonable amount of financial resources
on, have you talked to the property owners about various other considerations and just
beheld to this lease program that we have until 2026?
MR. REGAN: Chair? Member Hokama, if I understand your question, you are asking if we've
asked them if they would be interested in entertaining possibly a purchase or a sale of the
location?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Or renegotiate the lease, which I think is very prohibitive for the
County.
MR. REGAN: We have entertained discussions with the current landlords regarding if they
would be interested in possibly selling the property to the County. Given its location, we
feel that in the long term, if we were to want to build additional office space perhaps
there would be ... uh ... it's actually a very convenient location. So that might be a
long-term solution as to purchase the underlying land and of course the building and then
create office space there in the long ... in the very long-term. But in terms of
renegotiating the lease ... urn ... in our discussions with them, we haven't specifically
asked them if we could renegotiate the lease agreement. So the answer to that portion of
your question is, "no, we have not taken that discussion up with them".
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So there's no future intention to discuss with the owners of the
property for future considerations?
MR. REGAN: We would keep our options open. Yeah, so I would not want to say that we
wouldn't ... we would close that off in terms of wanting to discuss that for renegotiation
but at this point, we are not doing that. We are not actively pursuing renegotiation of the
lease. Part of the problem is they have ... urn ... they have approached us and asked us
to fix this water issue that we're having, that's occurring in the basement level of the
facility. We've kind of been going back and forth with that and our position is that that is
a structural problem with the facility and not necessarily the responsibility of the tenant to
fix that, and so we've kind of been going back and forth with them on those discussions,
but we have not had any discussion to renegotiate, but we wouldn't close those doors.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr. Director.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm done, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Are there any options in the lease--option to
purchase or option to renegotiate?
MR. REGAN: Chair, we would have to review the lease to answer that question but we would
be more than happy to provide that information to you. I believe there is an option. I
believe there is an option, at the end of the lease, to purchase the facility . . . or to
renegotiate the lease. But I, you know, I don't have that in front of me to go to the
specific item.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we ...
MR. REGAN: I can get that as we're having discussion.
CHAIR KANE: We will have that answered, verbal.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: It just takes a few more--do you have any other question, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: Any other member? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you. Mr. Regan, what is the ... how old is the
building? How many years old?
MR. REGAN: It's been there for a long time. I'm not sure specifically. Probably the fifties. I
mean it's a relatively old government building.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So we took over the lease of-MR. REGAN: In '96.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --about a 40 year old building, maybe?
MR. REGAN: More than likely, yeah. There are no elevators within the building. I mean it's
definitely not up to our current Codes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. REGAN: '88 compliance. There are some major issues that would have to be addressed
with the facility. Fortunately, that first level, though, that we would use for storage
purposes is essentially a ground level. So I think in terms of any improvements that we
may need to make to bring it up to Code, would be relatively ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Do you know roughly how much of the square footage is used
for space ... of the 12,500 square feet?
MR. REGAN: Yeah. I know that the entire basement level and the entire ... urn ... yeah. So
on the first floor, there's 4,500 square feet that is being utilized for storage; and on the
basement level, there's 1,100 square feet that's available. There are, as you heard from
the Prosecutor's, they had boxes that were down there--185 boxes. They were taking up
most of that storage in the basement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: To me, the landlords did well. They negotiated a lease on their
part, considering the condition of the building, yeah, and what we are faced with now.
Just a comment. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Chair has a few questions. Mr. Regan,
because there's--according to your handout--approximately 21 years left on this for lease
payments, approximately, and at ... well let me just cut right to it. For 21 more years,
we are looking at an additional ... uh ... approximately $1.5 million in lease payments
for the next 21 years, and that's not including the 2 percent yearly increase. Has there
been any discussion? Or have you ... has the office done anything to estimate what it
would cost for this building to be completely removed? Have you gone that far at all,
raising of the building?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. Mr. Chair, we did run some numbers and the raising of the building
would include purchasing the building, of course.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So yeah, take out the purchase part because that's an unknown at this
point. So have you run figures specifically to raise the building and have a clear vacant
piece of property.
MR. TAYLOR: We don't have a detailed cost estimate for that.
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CHAIR KANE: Do you have any idea? Have you done any preliminary, because I know you
folks do a lot of preliminary stuff?
MR. TAYLOR: A good estimate would be between ... uh ... it would be in the neighborhood
of a million dollars.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So the million dollars plus the payments of 21 years, that's probably
gonna add up to another $1.6 million that it would cost the County to have a vacant piece
of land in that area if you were to negotiate any price. Did you folks have any
preliminary discussions on prices?
MR. REGAN: Uh-huh. Yeah, we have.
CHAIR KANE: Can you, would you be willing to relieve ... uh ... let this body know of what
preliminary discussions you had on the sale of this property?
MR. REGAN: Sure. Chair, our understanding is that the landlord would be willing to entertain
a sales price of approximately $2 million for that property.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: And Mr. Chair, I do have an answer to the options on the lease.
CHAIR KANE: Please.
MR. TAYLOR: There is an option to renew the lease when this existing lease ends. The
document calls for an option to renew for another 30 years with three 10-year periods,
and that's upon ending of the current lease.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Now you've broken down the current rent to $6,000 per month with
increases of 2 percent per year. The payment schedule is you provide one lump sum
payment up front per year? In other words, as an example, you would pay $72,000; and
then the next year, you would pay $73,440; and then the next year, $74,900, et cetera. Is
that how the structure is of the contract?
MR. TAYLOR: Chair, I'm not sure but I do see the Finance Director in the audience and ifhe
knows the answer to that, I would ask him ... (chuckled) ... to come up and answer that
question.
CHAIR KANE: And members, this is the Chair's final question. I'm just trying to get some
additional information.
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MR. REGAN: The payments, Chair, are not coming directly from the Department of
Management. It's my understanding that they are coming from another department,
probably Public Works. That's my understanding.
CHAIR KANE: It's not spelled out in the contract, on how the payments are being paid?
MR. REGAN: Let me look. If you can give us a moment to kind of just review the lease
agreement-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. REGAN: --we can go ahead and provide that.
CHAIR KANE: And before we release you this afternoon, I guess, there's two questions that
you could possibly answer for us. Member Anderson's question, if we haven't already
got that answer, as well as the question that I've asked.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You mean about the options and the lease?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They just told us the answer.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So I'm just making sure that ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There's no option to purchase.
CHAIR KANE: At the end of the lease, just renegotiate.
MR. REGAN: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, it just said an option to renew at the end of the lease.
MR. REGAN: Renew it ... yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any further questions on the ... ? So at this point, Mr. Regan,
the ...
MR. REGAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: The $60,000 for professional service is to figure out where we're at with ... as
you've listed--mold abatement, remediation of the flooding, the ventilation system, new
lighting, storage shelves, et cetera. Is that correct?
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MR. REGAN: That is correct, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And there's no preliminary understanding of where we're at with that, whether
it's ... I think it was brought up in a previous discussion just on the mold abatement.
Although that building is occupied, this one is not. We've dealt with what--$750,OOO
down there, members, on that building? And do you ... is there some sort of comparison
that you folks are using or anticipating if the mold were the same. Are you looking
at--for the health and safety of the County workings--that you would have to do the same
level of mold abatement as far as costs for this building, even if it's not being occupied
by daily workers? Have you folks done that analysis?
MR. REGAN: Yeah. We've had the opportunity to do some preliminary research and
discussion regarding the facility and how we think ... but see, unfortunately, we are not
the experts in that field. So given the fact that the facility itself is not occupied by
staff--and it's really only occupied by records--it might be a little easier for us to do the
remediation efforts that we wouldn't necessarily be able to do in an occupied building or
a building that may eventually have occupation by staff. So yeah, we really need to bring
in experts to be able to tell us: how we can do this; what's the best way to address this
issue; and how can we prevent it from becoming an issue in the future. And that's our
intention with this funding. It's to finally be able to utilize that building, instead of just
putting money out and not having access to it. The other key thing too is that there are
records that are located in there ... urn ... and it's gonna require--or it may require--see
I'm not sure if it will require remediation of the records, themselves. The Prosecutor's
did speak about their challenges but they were . . . their records were literally in the
basement with the water. And water and paper and lack of ventilation, essentially,
equates to a very good environment to create mold. That's why, I think, they had the
severity of the problem they did. The balance of the records (the majority of what's
there) is located on the first floor, which--if you've had an opportunity go through the
building--which I have, you know that there is that ... you can smell it. I mean it's clear
that it's coming up, where it's reached into that first floor, where I'm certain ... urn ...
but hopefully this study will help to lay this out for us. That's the intention of this.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Finally, regarding the actual documents that are being stored there,
is there some plan to relieve us of those physical documents via scanning or doing things
that would re-categorize those documents, so that those physical documents don't have to
be kept?
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. I believe the last time that we were here with MIS, there was
some discussion regarding a couple of positions or a position that would be utilized
specifically to .. . (end of tape, start 4B). .. hard copy documents and put them into
digital format, which will thereby allow us to have and maintain these records as long as
the digital media exists. So that is the intention and we do have that intention, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. REGAN: Some of the documents we may find that as Prosecutor's went through their
documents that there are a number of them that they really just no longer had use for and
that may be what we would run into as we proceed through this and take a look at the
records that are there. So it may not be that 100 percent of the documents are then placed
in a digital format but a portion thereof.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the intent of the question is to find out if we are culling our
unnecessary documents by transferring their access to digital as you stated. Okay. Any
final questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Have--and maybe this
might be part of your intention for these professional environmental and planning
services--but have you had an engineer look at the building to substantiate whether or not
the structural defects, which have caused the flooding in the basement, are just that (a
structural defect to the building) and not something that the County would be responsible
for as the lessee of the building.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah. Ms. Anderson ... uh ... myself--as a licensed engineer--I did look at
that building for exactly that purpose. Our position to the owner was exactly that ... that
there was nothing the County could have done--as of normal maintenance--that could
have prevented the water leaking into the basement. That it had something to do with
either the design or the original construction of the facility and it wasn't due to any
negligence on the part of the County that the water was leaking. That is our position.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is there anything in the lease that would release us from
the use of this building because the building is structurally defective and it really negates
our use ofthe building, for which we are paying $6,000 a month?
MR. TAYLOR: I would have to ask that Corp. Counsel address that legal question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could we make sure that that gets addressed because I
think that's critical? You know the building also has asbestos. So basically, we are
committing a million and a half plus whatever we've spent in the past since 1996 on a
white elephant. If we could get out of this lease or get some consideration for bringing
the building up to a standard of use against our lease payments, then I could see us
investing more money. But it's very difficult to invest money in a building that we're not
getting full use of and that is posing a health hazard to our employees.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, may I respond?
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: There is currently no asbestos, to our knowledge, in the building. There was a
project previously, in a past Administration, to remove the asbestos from the building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: I do know that Corporation Counsel has, in the past, looked into trying to use
some of the deficiencies to see if we could get out of the lease. I remember seeing a
document, which--before the lease was signed--clearly described some of these
deficiencies. I believe the County had full knowledge of these deficiencies when they
signed the lease and our previous advice from Corporation Counsel was that the current
condition of the building was not grounds to get out of this lease. So that is what was
communicated to us by Corporation Counsel in the past and I'm assuming that they
would provide the same answer at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you know for a fact that we signed a lease on a
building, knowing that it was defective?
MR. TAYLOR: There were certain known deficiencies, such as, that the air-conditioning system
wasn't working. And I don't recall the list, but there were some known deficiencies that
were made clear to the County before the County signed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And were they structural?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't remember the details of what that list was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is there a way you could get a hold of that?
MR. TAYLOR: We could answer that, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then incorporate that in the question that I asked you
earlier about whether or not we could get out of the lease because of the structural
defects. Or at least, you know, use some of our lease rent to pay for the remediation of
the building, which is not our fault if the building is structurally defective. So anyway,
the other question I had was, do you know how much we are currently spending for
record storage elsewhere in the County ... for County as a whole?
MR. REGAN: Chair. Individual departments make arrangements for their own storage. We
don't have a consolidated figure with us right now. That would be a question that
perhaps you could pose to the different departments to get a picture. I know for a fact,
coming from the Finance Department as the former Finance Director for the County, that
we did actively pursue other locations to store our records. I mean we have to. There are
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so many records that the Finance Department produces on an annual basis that in order to
store them on the second floor would be literally impossible, you would be swimming in
documents, so we had to go forward and secure other options. I don't have that figure in
my mind right now--what we were spending--but I am certain that other departments are
contracting with private locations to store their records.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: As the Department of Management, could you request
those figures from every department and transmit' em to this committee?
MR. REGAN: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: You mentioned that if we were to purchase the building,
is it today that it would cost us $2 million?
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. Member Pontanilla, these were just some very preliminary
discussions that occurred with the current owners and the figure that was presented by the
current owners was-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Two million?
MR. REGAN: --two million. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And would we still have to pay the leasehold that we
have presently? Or can we can we get out of it once purchase is done?
MR. REGAN: That was--Chair? That was just purchase and eliminating the remainder of the
lease.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Regan, from what you
know of the provisions that are in the lease, is the landlord partially responsible for at
least assuming part of the costs related?
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MR. REGAN: Yeah, that's something that we've ... that is currently under dispute right now.
Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area? Hearing none. Are there any questions
regarding the Page 9-4 of your details, which had a few minor increases in R&M services
contract from 22,4 to 25 and from miscellaneous other costs under other costs from--or
excuse me--under dues from 350 to 1,000? Other than that it's pretty much a flat budget
with the exception of those three items. Any questions, members, on those two pages?
Hearing no questions. Mr. Regan, why don't we proceed.
MR. REGAN: Oh, okay. Certainly, Chair. I do have an answer to your question though
regarding the lump sum payment.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. REGAN: And it is a one, it is a lump sum payment (an annual payment to the lease) to the
current owners of the facility.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So--and just to clarify. So if it's 72,000--again, approximately--then
every year, it increases the lump sum. So it would go to 73,440. The next year would be
74,9 and some change and on and on.
MR. REGAN: Two percent, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERANDERSON: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one quick question. I just want to make sure that this
is fee simple property?
MR. REGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, we are leasing it from the person who owns the land. It's not a sublease,
in other words.
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MR. REGAN: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. It's a ... we are leasing directly from the owner. Okay. Any final
questions, members, in this area? I know we've spent some time but it's an important
piece of property that makes up our campus, I guess, is the term that's being used. So the
Chair has no problem with us taking some time in this area. Hang on one second, please.
Okay. Again members, any questions for the details on this portion under the Managing
Director's office? Hearing none. Mr. Regan, let's proceed.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Chair. With your permission, I would like to proceed to
our next program?
CHAIR KANE: Let's go.
MR. REGAN: The next program is found on Page 11-9 of the program budget and Page 9-7 of
the budget details. This program is the Energy program. We are not requesting any
operating budget increases this fiscal year.
The Energy program managed by
Kal Kobayashi (our Energy Program Specialist) provides technical support to the public,
the private sector, and various government agencies. We also help to coordinate
emergency energy management activities, manage energy projects and programs, and
participate in various energy planning groups, task forces, and the Public Utilities
Commission proceedings. A role of the energy program is to also further assist the
County in identifying ways to help reduce our energy consumption through implementing
energy-saving techniques in design and planning of our facilities. I believe that our
Energy Program Specialist is here today to answer any questions that the committee may
have regarding this program and, as stated earlier, there are no operating changes
requested for this fiscal year in that program.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. Mr. Kobayashi is here if you have any general questions
regarding his overall functions. He is available for questions. Okay. Seeing none.
Mr. Regan, let's move forward.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Chair. With your permission, I would like to proceed to
our next program?
CHAIR KANE: And that is Management Information Systems?
MR. REGAN: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Let's proceed.
MR. REGAN: The next program, Chair, is found on Page 11-15 of the program budget and
begins on Page 9-10 of the budget details. With us today in the audience is Mr. Jacob
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Verkerke, our Information Systems Manager. Mr. Chair and the members, the MIS
program is--in my opinion--one of the most important internal infrastructure programs
here within our County system. MIS, as you know, provides computing support to
almost every department within the County system with the limited exception of the
Maui Police Department and of course the legislative branch of our government. These
services range from software procurement and installation to hardware configuration and
maintenance. MIS provides user support, software training, and a myriad of other
services to our County. They ensure that our network connectivity exists and our E-mail
functions properly. MIS provides security to our data and constantly works to approve
the over functionality of our system. In Fiscal Year 2006, we are requesting your support
of $844,800, which is an $18,025 increase over our Fiscal Year 2005 appropriation of
$826,775. Majority of this increase is found in our request for additional funds for
professional services and software. Mr. Verkerke is here today to help answer any
questions you may have and provide additional details and specifics regarding the
operating budget increases for our Fiscal Year 2006 proposal as well as any other
questions the committee may have regarding our equipment request. I'm not sure if that
was something we would be discussing today but we are prepared to talk about that.
Mr. Chair rather than consume your time, I feel it be--if it's okay with you and your
pleasure--to open up to questions and have Mr. Verkerke provide any answers that you
may have, the committee may have.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, would you like to have Mr. Verkerke come down to
provide us information with respect to their operations? He is available with us today.
Mr. Regan has pointed out a couple of the spikes or the changes, including a decrease in
the R&M service contracts from 510 down to 475; but then a couple of increases, which
were noted in his opening comments. Mr. Pontanilla, a request for Mr. Verkerke or to the
Managing Director?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe the Managing Director can answer this in regards
to the equipment replacement. Is that for total Countywide or is that ... what
departments are we talking about?
MR. REGAN: What you see here (this equipment replacement) is Countywide.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Countywide?
MR. REGAN: It's just annual normal regular replacement of equipment that's reached its
... urn ... the end of its lifecycle, essentially, yeah. I think you're specifically talking
about PC Replacement, which is one of the top items under equipment. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So it's gonna be like a cycle that we-MR. REGAN: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --look at these kinds of costs?
MR. REGAN: We regularly request for PC Replacement, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan. That breakdown for the equipment is reflected on pages ... ?
MR. REGAN: Oh! I'm sorry, Chair. On Page 9-11.
CHAIR KANE: 9-11 through 9-13?
MR. REGAN: Yes, correct. I'm ... uh ... my apologies, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And that breaks down where the specific pieces are going, the respective
departments?
MR. REGAN: I believe it provides some information regarding the specific department requests
and there is a request for replacement that would be used Countywide for those general
requests for equipment replacement.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions, members, for Mr. Verkerke or for Mr. Regan in this
area of MIS? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Could you tell me what IF AS is?
CHAIR KANE: IF AS.
MR. REGAN: IFAS. Thank you. IFAS is our accounting software system that we use. It's
where all of our payables, receivables, general ledger information, budget information,
everything that you see here in this budget details (all of our encumbrances) are
maintained within the IF AS system. I think you're probably speaking about that IF AS
Upgrade. Is that, Chair, Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, yeah. Are you saying $160,000 for software?
MR. REGAN: This is an enterprise-wide software system so almost every--I shouldn't say
"almost". Every department utilizes this particular piece of software, so it's very
... urn ... it's important to the overall operations of our accounting system throughout
our structure. This upgrade, I want to just note, and Mr. Verkerke can probably provide
additional information if you'd like specifics. But if you are familiar with IF AS--I don't
know if any of you have had that opportunity to utilize the system. But it is a ... urn ...
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I liken it to a DOS-based computer program, essentially. Many of you are probably
familiar with Windows-based graphical user interface type programs (GUI programs)
basically, and that is not what we currently have. We currently have what they call the
classic version of the software, which is probably one or two steps away from no longer
being supported by the software vendor. So this upgrade will bring us up-to-date with
our current, with our software, and allow us a lot of flexibility. I've had an opportunity to
view this presentation of what this upgrade is possible of doing in terms of increasing the
efficiency and in the usability of the system, which I think is important. Right now, the
current system is not very user friendly. You have to literally be trained on how to go in
and collate reports and extract information and this will help us take that next step in
terms of being able to improve the availability of accounting information Countywide.
Some of you may have heard of things called the dashboard, which, you know, is a way
of kind of consolidating information into one location. These are the types of things that
we will be able to do with this IF AS upgrade, including going into a paperless purchase
order system, which you know, in speaking with our Finance Department and specifically
with our procurement ... urn ... with Greg King (our Purchasing Administrator) they are
really looking forward to this. They really feel that there's gonna be ... this is something
they have wanted to do for decades and this will help them, tremendously.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area before we move onto GIS? If not,
Mr. Regan, let's move to GIS.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Chair, with your permission, I would like to proceed to
our next and final program within the Department of Management--the Geographic
Information Systems program?
CHAIR KANE: Let's move.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. The information regarding our request may be found on
Page 11-18 ofthe program budget and on Page 9-15 of the budget details. Mr. Chair, we
are not requesting any additional funding request for the GIS program for 2006 in their
operating budget. We are requesting your continued support for this very important
function that provides services to all branches and departments of our County
government. As we move further and further into the digital age, the importance of
developing and maintaining a healthy, properly functioning GIS Division is becoming
more and more apparent. Information that was once scattered amongst many different
locations is now becoming consolidated, thereby, creating an effective tool that our
agencies may use to improve their services to the community. GIS has other benefits
such as its assistance with the digitalizing of our zoning and land use maps in partnership
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with the Department of Planning. We have been working diligently to take these paper
maps and convert them into a digital form for future use on the update of our general plan
and community plans. Additionally, as you will hear more about during the discussion of
the E-Tech program under the Mayor's office, GIS is expected to playa role in the
GASB-34 project to help develop a graphical representation of the location of our
Countywide assets. This is something that is used nationwide in a number of
jurisdictions to help improve their effectiveness. Today, in the audience, we have the
head of our GIS Division (Mr. Bill Medeiros), who is here and may help answer any
questions that the committee may have regarding the function of this division and the
services that we provide--both internally and externally--to various government agencies
and to the public. We are requesting your support of additional equipment for the GIS
Division in the form of computing equipment that will further enhance our abilities to
provide timely and efficient services to our customers. Mr. Medeiros, as I mentioned
earlier, will be able to further explain the need for these pieces of equipment and any
other questions that the committee may have, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. Mr. Medeiros is available for us in the chamber. Are there
any requests to have him come forward to help respond to any questions you may have?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Anderson, is your request for Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I don't know ifhe's necessary for my question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Why don't you go ahead and ask.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you just give me an idea of the status of the GIS
system right now? How much information has been inputted, you know, as far as
digitizing the land use maps and getting all the information on a map so it's useable?
MR. REGAN: Yeah. I appreciate your question, Member Anderson. We are approximately
70 percent in terms of the completion of that project. So it's ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Ofthe land use maps?
MR. REGAN: Correct. Yeah. So we do intend--and we have been working closely with the
Department ofPlanning--to complete this project because we know that it's gonna be an
important tool as they go forward in their general plan update.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so as far as other things, like sewage lines, and
drainage lines, and all of that (everything else that needs to be put in the GIS system),
what is the status on that?
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MR. REGAN: If I may, Chair? Would it be okay if I asked Mr. Medeiros to come down and
answer those because he would have the specifics?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman? Excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't see the relevance to the budget to get this
information. I think maybe this is a better topic to be discussed in one of the committees,
to get a status of the GIS and how it's interfaced with the Planning Department's
information systems. So if we could move along, it would be, I think, helpful because,
you know, I would love to talk about this and get more information but I don't believe
this is the proper venue for it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for stating your point, Ms. Tavares. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well there's a ... what is the equipment upgrade have to
do with the status of the system?
CHAIR KANE: Let me inteIject there. If you look on Page 9-16 of your details, there isn't an
expansion request; it is a replacement request for three pieces of equipment. The $20,000
is for three pieces of equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Question, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. I forgot to ask about the other one. In regards to
... what do we do with the equipment that is replaced or are replaced?
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: I believe, as Mr. Verkerke mentioned the last time that we were here and I think
we had some brief discussion on that. But my understanding is that if it's still in a
condition that is useable, it is donated to nonprofits. We also have that Compu-Swap that
happens periodically, so essentially, we dispose of the equipment. Most of it, Chair, most
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of the equipment, once it's taken out of service, it is at the end of its useable lifecyc1e. I
mean it's, you know, these things--I mean if you are familiar with equipment, we are
talking about replacing 386, 286 computers with Pentium III and IVs, which obviously
are required. I mean you see that the software has progressed to the point where you
would need to have this computing ability and really those types of ... even Pentium and
Pentium lIs are becoming obsolete at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: What about these pieces of equipment here?
MR. REGAN: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: The pieces of equipment that is being replaced in the
GIS system.
MR. REGAN: Specifically, these two pieces of equipment? I'm not sure what they're replacing.
I don't know what's there right now. Mr. Medeiros would know exactly what's there.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Medeiros, why don't you come down and provide a response to the
question? And if you can, please sir, identify yourself for the record.
MR. MEDEIROS: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I am Bill Medeiros. I'm the GIS Manager for the County.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. MEDEIROS: In terms of the three pieces of equipment, they are all machines that are older
than five years. One is actually from 1997. It's a 233 megahertz Windows 95 machine; a
333 megahertz Windows 95 machine; and a 500 megahertz Windows NT machine.
Those are the three oldest ones we have. We normally try to pick up every other year,
two or three machines and just replace the old ones. The older ones that we have, that we
go ... we, top of the line workstations to do GIS work, the older ones then go on to do
E-mail. So those machines are primarily like ... uh ... been kind of relegated down to
just doing daily tasks.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Put out to pasture .... (chuckled) ... Any further questions in this area? For
GIS, we have Mr. Medeiros here. Hearing none. Are there any further questions for the
overall operations of the Managing Director's office? If you can, please pose them in
writing and we will get that responded to. Thank you, Mr. Medeiros, Mr. Taylor,
Mr. Regan. Any final comments, Mr. Regan?
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MR. REGAN: Oh, no thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to thank you for the opportunity to be
here today and have this discussion and I look forward to receiving the questions that
were posed today in writing and we will definitely get back to you very promptly.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you very much. Okay, members. Next, we are going to
bring down Finance and I would like to keep it seamless. So why don't we have them
corne down. Thank you, Mr. Regan and Mr. Taylor. We will get right into that with
Finance and we'll see how far we can get before our mid-afternoon break. I believe staff
does have some documents to pass out, members. Members, just for your information,
Mr. Regan will be available after Finance's presentation to talk about the Mayor's office
presentation. Chair was remiss in getting into that but we will keep moving with Finance
and once we finish in Finance, we will get back to the Mayor's operations. Good
afternoon, Mr. Young. Thank you for being here and Mr. Vila, thank you.
MR. YOUNG: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. Thank you for this opportunity to you and the
members. The presentation that I have before you is structured so that ... to be brief, I
have organized it as two different sections where we desire to present this afternoon. One
is on the proposed revisions to rates and fees and the second is on the significant
increases to the operating budget within the Finance Department. I'll leave it to the
discretion and the desire of the Chair, which you would like for me to proceed with first.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's take care of, members--without objections--the significant
increases in operating budget and then we will wrap it up with changes to rates and fees.
Any objections to that, members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Young, let's proceed.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I've provided a--through the Budget Director--a single
paged handout that is entitled "Presentation of Significant Increases In Operating
Budget" and specifically, it's two statement of operating expenses. The first by expense
type and the second by the individual divisions within the Department of Finance. What
this statement shows is a comparison of budgeted amounts from Fiscal Year 2005 and the
proposed budget amounts for Fiscal Year 2006. The first statement, by expense type,
shows that of the three expense categories (Salaries & Wages, Operating Expenses, and
Equipment), the Finance Department is seeing its most significant and I would probably
say it's really only significant increase in the area of ... (end a/tape, start 5A) . .. Ifwe
look further at the second statement organized by different divisions, we will see further
that the most significant increase actually is in Department ... uh ... Division of Motor
Vehicles and Licensing. As the members are probably already aware--as outlined in the
detailed budget--all divisions with the exception of DMVL and the Department of
Finance has essentially flat operating budgets. It is only the Division of Motor Vehicles
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that is seeing a most rapid--oh, I'm sorry--the most significant increase. This is in the
area of--just for operating as presented in the detailed budget--in the amount of$104,916.
If we look at Note D on the bottom statement, Note D identifies that the ... uh ... for
DMVL, where they see about $177,000 in salary expense increase, another $124,000 is
also specifically for the expansion positions. The operating expenses increases are in the
area, two major areas. One being auto plates and tags, with an increase of about $41,980;
and computer services, which is an increase of about $54,350. I will note that the
operating expenses are also showing a decline of $24,130 in the area of rentals and for
specific operations ... uh ... Mr. Lito Vila (the DMVL Administrator) is available for
any specific questions. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Vila, any additional comments before we open it up?
MR. VILA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No comments at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, it's open for questions if you would like to pursue one area at
a time or ... uh ... first, let the Chair ask if there's any specific questions in any division
of the Administration, Administration's divisions? Under the Director's office, the
changes, Risk Management, or Treasury, any questions in those areas? And again, we
are in operations, members. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. On the Risk Management, can we have the appropriate
personnel brought forward?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Do we have somebody from Risk Management with us this afternoon,
Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Chair. The Risk Manager is available if you allow some time for him to be
called up.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We will have him called, Mr. Hokama, so if we can defer until he
arrives. We will get him here.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any other questions, Mr. Hokama, in any of the other areas?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I have questions regarding the parking placards area, please.
CHAIR KANE: Parking placards, thank you. Mr. Vila, I think, would be our person to ...
please, proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: May I proceed, Chairman?
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CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I bring this up, Mr. Chairman, because I think it's timely
... uh ... our subject matter chairman, Mr. Molina, head of our Committee of the Whole,
has put forward a communication for the members for consideration on this Friday's
Council agenda regarding the specific program of disabled persons' parking placards.
And I bring it up, Mr. Chairman, because once more, I think we are taking it in the shorts
when it comes to being reimbursed for a State Department of Health program that is to
... uh ... provide funds in repayment of the County's costs. And the State Department
has provided us with an agreement (memorandum of agreement) that would just
compensate or re-compensate the County back for $9,000-plus, when we are well aware
that it's more than quadruple that amount, or at least triple that amount, that is expended
by our department and our employees. So my question to the department is what have
you done to try and recoup what is rightfully ours?
MR. VILA: Mr. Chair, if! may?
CHAIR KANE: If you can identify yourself first, please.
MR. VILA: Yes. I am Lito Vila. I'm the DMVL Administrator.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. VILA: In our attempts to continue to ... or to recoup our expenses, we--meaning myself
and all of my counterparts within the other counties--have met with the Department of
Health in attempting to get additional funding to reimburse the counties. The Department
of Health did go before the Legislature, as this body probably knows, they got a certain
amount of monies appropriated in one year and our portion of that was ... of the $9,000,
I think it was just a portion of what was released by the Legislature. Our intent has
always been ... um ... where it's ... this County as well as the other counties that it is a
State funded program and we concur with your sentiments, Mr. Hokama, that we want to
be fully reimbursed. However, at this point, we've just been marginally successful. Now
the $9,000 that they are offering to provide doesn't cover the whole amount. However, I
do need at least some help as far as expenses.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell the committee this afternoon what you believe is the
more accurate amount that the County should be reimbursed because one year, we saw
$30,000-plus given back to the County. Okay. I don't even know if that met the full
reimbursement amount but now to go down to $9,000. And I can tell you, we are aware
that the Legislature provided x-amount of dollars for funding and the Lingle
Administration has determined that 50 percent of that allocation will not be used at all.
So now we end up with a $9,000 check that is being presented to us in acceptance of our
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good faith efforts to provide our people with those parking placards that they qualify for,
which is not our responsibility.
MR. VILA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Vila.
MR. VILA: I'm going from recollection because I did not bring those figures with me. I believe
the last time we did a cost analysis on the actual amount that it costs the County to
provide those services was roughly around $30,000 or in that vicinity. And that I did
provide to the Department of Health for their information because they were also
compiling statistics and actual expenses so that they could go again before the Legislature
and ask for full subsidy of funding. The other part of this program is not only the
issuance of placards, it's--along with any placard issuance, the secondary portion, which
is just as crucial as obtaining the placards, is the enforcement portion. And you know,
Maui County is lacking in that area also and there's really no funding for that. Thus,
basically, there's very minimal enforcement of the parking situations out in the public
areas.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought that your division, within the Department of Finance, and
Maui Police Department had some type of working relationship with a volunteer disabled
enforcement group?
MR. VILA: I believe they had a volunteer enforcement group a while back. I don't know the
status of that, at this point, if it's still intact. I would have to defer to Maui Police
Department as far as where that is presently at.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Have you made any attempts to lobby the Governor and her
Administration because that's where it appears we have a standstill with them freezing
50 percent of the total amount due to the counties?
MR. VILA: Directly, I have not lobbied the Legislature. By State mandate (by HRS), it is in the
purview of the Department of Health. They are given that responsibility. Before the
Department of Health--just to give you some history--that responsibility fell under the
State Motor Vehicles Safety office, which did a much ... well, less than what the current
Department of Health is doing. The Department of Health has implemented programs to
make it more consistent Statewide. It's making it more easier for us, operationally, by
having a Statewide database program for us to input. However, it still does not fully
reimburse the counties but to answer your question, "no, I have not lobbied the
Governor".
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Have you requested the Health Department to request, from the
Governor's Budget Office, the release of those funds since this is a service we have
provided?
MR. VILA: Yes. That's why I believe she appeared before the subcommittee before and I
know, personally, that she has written and requested and has done her very best in getting
those funds released back to the counties.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And the answer to her and to the Department of Health is still "no".
MR. VILA: As far as I know, it's still status quo.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One thing I wanted to ask you, which I found to be interesting, is
that--is the County of Maui required to purchase items from the State to run a State
program, like the placards?
MR. VILA: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we don't need to purchase anything anymore in order to run; it is
all provided by Department of Health?
MR. VILA: You mean in the operational supplies?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well in the agreement (memo of agreement), it says that we "shall
purchase from the State" certain things.
MR. VILA: No. I believe the agreement states that they will reimburse us for purchases relative
for our operation that is associated with the issuance of disabled placards up to
$9,000-plus, which they would pay for out ofthat fund.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And what happens ifit goes over that $9,000 mark? Do we eat it?
MR. VILA: That's the limit that I would have to live with.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that's all we provide ... up to $9,000 worth of service?
MR. VILA: That's all that they are authorized ... urn ... if we enter into this memorandum of
agreement, that they are authorized to reimburse the County.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm saying are you authorized to only provide $9,000 worth of
service in return?
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MR. VILA: Right. To answer your question, if we end up purchasing $12,000 worth of
expenses, the balance would have to be funded by the County; and that would be a
conscious decision that I probably wouldn't purchase above whatever is allotted ... or
come as close as possible.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That does not take care of your cost for employees?
MR. VILA: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So we subsidize that, too?
MR. VILA: Well, as I mentioned earlier, my projection on our best estimate of our true costs is
approximately $30,000 per year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would hope your division and the Department would make more
aggressive attempts the recoup what is rightfully the counties and again, being subsidized
by our taxpayers for tax programs. Okay. And here the State Legislature is having
difficulty providing funding for State programs and projects in the County of Maui. So it
continues to be a lopsided picture, as far as I'm concerned, and I hope you would
aggressively at least request the release of the maximum amount that the County can
receive under the current appropriation levels. At least show your good faith efforts to us
that you are doing your best to try and get what it is because if we got the full
amount--and even if it is less than $19,000--that is $19,000 that this committee could
provide another needy program or service for our people and that's how I look at it.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Are there any other questions regarding the placard area? Or any
other questions to Mr. Vila? I know that we have yet to go ... under Financial Services,
there is an increase of $445,000 in their operations. Are there any additional questions in
this area before we bring on Mr. Gates to respond to some questions under Risk
Management? Again, we are under DMVL, members, since Mr. Vila is here. Okay.
Hearing none. Members, if you do have any further questions for that division, we will
make sure it's forwarded to the Department for proper disposal and timely response.
Mr. Vila, thank you. Mr. Hokama, you have the floor of the Risk Management request
and Mr. Gates, if you can, please identify yourself for the record.
MR. GATES: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman Kane. My name is Gary Gates, Risk Manager.
Good afternoon, Council members.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, thank you. Before I ask Mr. Gates my
questions in his primary area, I would just like to make note and hope the Department
will try and follow up. There is a bill in the Legislature that just passed third reading in
the Senate; it's House Bill 1645, Senate Draft 2. I bring this up because the Legislature is
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willing to consider--through the counties--and ad valorem tax on the fair market value of
cars, which is an interesting concept. It means that if you buy a $50,000 car, you are
gonna pay a lot more in taxes than if you bought a $20,000 car. Okay. And that is in
addition to all of the other current registration, fuel tax, and other fees associated with ...
as the Legislature looks at the privilege of driving and owning a vehicle. So I just bring
that up to you that that is a potential revenue source for your program, Mr. Vila.
The other thing I want to bring up with Risk Management is ... uh ... can you give us,
in your words Mr. Gates, where are we within the program from amounts of ... uh ...
let's say claims and settlements that are more than one year old. Is that 50 percent of
your workload, which would encompass 250 files or cases? Can you give us some
comment,please?
MR. GATES: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. I don't have that exact information with me. Are you
speaking ofthe liability claims?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm talking more about workman's comps. Okay. Just let me give
you some background. I think when Mr. Kane and I started together in '98 or '99, I
would say we had ... gee I don't know. I know Charmaine has a tremendous memory. I
would say we had something like 600 cases backlogged. And again, that was how the old
program chose to not deal with our employees. Okay? And I use that term, not lightly,
but you know, these are our own employees and we weren't dealing with them what, you
know, what I thought was fair and equitable manner and also in a timely manner. So we
made strides. We stride to put resources accordingly. We, you know, we went through
many changes of who headed that program and then we've come to now the third-party
program, which provides some assistance to us. And you have been very diligent in your
commitment to running this program the best that it can be. So I would like to know
where are we now, in particularly, since this is the beginning of the third year of the
Arakawa Administration.
MR. GATES: Thank you for that clarification. We are significantly better than those days that
you referenced, back in the days of 600 open workers' compensation claims. At that
time--and I wasn't here at that time, with the County--but the information that I do have
about those days were approximately 2,000-2,100 employees with about 600 open
claims, and you can do the math on that. That is a significant number of your workforce
with workplace incidents and injuries. Today, we are at about 285. So it's been reduced
by half and I believe we are on a downward trend in terms of the number of new claims
per year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Can you tell us, in your own opinion, is this because we now
have the third-party adjuster working and focused specifically on trying to come up to a
closure and still being fair to the employees? Or is it because ... or is there other factors
that is making this reduction of caseloads?
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MR. GATES: Good question, Mr. Hokama. I think you touched on it in your previous remarks
about the way the claims were handled back then. I think to some extent, the method or
approach in handling the claims was quite different than our third-party administrator
now. So I believe that out of that 600, there were a lot that could simply be processed
professionally and closed, and I think that's what played a significant part in reducing the
number. I think as far as being fair and equitable to employees, I believe that the
adjusters and our third-party administrator are fair and equitable. I feel very comfortable
with the way that my division and the third-party administrator handles the investigation
and the handling of the claims.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. A couple of other questions please, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Do you foresee--since we have this nice direction that
we are going in, in my opinion--the need to where we will be able to eliminate the
third-party adjusters? Or do you see us still, even in the near future, having the
requirement that we need to keep this service provider for the County of Maui?
MR. GATES: I strongly believe that we need to keep the service provider, especially in the near
future, whatever that near future time line would be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Even if let's say the cases go below 100 open cases?
MR. GATES: Yes. Because the expertise that we get through the service provider, I believe, it
can be matched. But dollar-for-dollar with the contract with that service provider, and
what it would cost to fill positions with the expertise that you folks have at the third-party
administrator, I believe that is really the key to it. I think that in the long run, if we had
people that were trained to the level of these folks, then we would ... uh . . . to be
equivalent and compare apples to apples, we would have to create about six positions
because that's how many adjusters work on our cases now within the contract with the
level of expertise that they have. So you could imagine how long it might take us to get
up to speed to match that. So I say that I think it's very necessary for the short term or
even the mid-term, but in the long run, if we wanted to bring it back in-house, I think it
could be done but we would have to achieve that level of expertise.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I haven't found the page but maybe you can tell us what is
your program's requirements in the current budget proposal that you are requesting for
the third-party adjuster?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Young. If you can give us a reference point, please?
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MR. YOUNG: Yeah. Your patience, Mr. Chair, while we look for it. We are looking in the
detailed budget.
CHAIR KANE: Details for Risk Management, members, starts A account on 5-4. Details for
operations on 5-5.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Chair. I believe it might be located in the ... uh ... or is probably
located in the Countywide section, which is 5 dash-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's 5-6.
MR. YOUNG: What?
CHAIR KANE: It continues into, yeah, into 5-6.
MR. YOUNG: I'm sorry. 5-6.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 5-6?
CHAIR KANE: As far as the division, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: The division, 5-6.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well let me give you my suggestion on where I think it is and you
tell me if this is the right account or not? I am looking at Page 5-41. Is it under self
insurance or is it, which also has a settlement and judgments, is that your
number--$2.8 million?
MR. YOUNG: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair. It's actually currently located on Page 5-37 of the
detailed budget, specifically, Item No. 907618 (Workers' Compensation).
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. $3 million?
MR. YOUNG: Approximate--yes, $3 million.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So since $3 million is the request, with the reduction in
caseloads, is this number still the right number, Mr. Gates?
MR. GATES: I believe it's the right number due to the fluctuating caseload and the inability to
foresee or forecast how many claims that we might have ... uh ... large claims. I think
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that there is some additional insurance there, if you will. I don't know if I'm comfortable
with suggesting how much more is there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And you gotta understand now, what we are working
from--especially with this proposal. We know that at the end of June 2004, which was
the 2004 Fiscal Year, we put out $775,000 in workers' compensation payments. Okay?
And while it's interesting how ... uh . . . right now, we just have this lump sum of
$3 million. With your improvements in the program, departments, I believe, such as
Water and Public Works--I'm not sure exactly, Mr. Chairman--but their request for safety
... urn ... was it, safety officers or whatnot to reduce injuries and claims, is this to adjust
the $5.3 million request? Because I assume we are gonna cut down further injuries by
having those safety officers in the appropriate departments or part of your coordinated
program.
MR. GATES: I believe it is a reasonable number. A lot of the cases that we currently have
(the 300) and I say 300 on the average because we do go down to 285; we go up to 310.
But a significant number of those are not new claims, in the past two years. We have
several claims that date back to the 80's and the 70's. There are claims that we've paid
something on for ... uh ... annually since that time. I believe that some of those claims
may reach the point that they could reach a settlement and in that light (for that reason), I
think that that's a reasonable request.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. My last question to you is, operationally, does your
division--and I know it's hard because you're sitting next to Mr. Young, but I need to hear
your comment. Is your division in the Department? You know, we've talked about Risk
Management should be in Personnel Services. One time, we heard a suggestion that it
should be in Corporation Counsel because of the legal matters. You are in the Finance
Department. What I need to know is, what is the best place for you to do your job to take
care of our employees?
MR. GATES: Probably, my own department. But short of that, I think the Finance Department
would be exactly where I should be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For what reasons? Now, you gotta be specific.
MR. GATES: I can only relate that question to the other departments that Risk Management
Divisions are commonly found in. I believe that the best Department for the Risk
Management Division to be in would be the Finance Department versus the other
departments, so that we can concentrate on the prevention aspects of Risk Management
and workplace injuries and workplace incidents as opposed to say litigation. I think that
it would be more practical to have it in Finance for those reasons, to address the
pro-activity of Risk Management, if you will.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of our Personnel Services, where you guys can monitor all the
commonalities of various positions that is consistent throughout multiple departments?
MR. GATES: Yeah, but ... that's a good point, Mr. Hokama. I work closely with Department of
Personnel Services and we interact with them on an ongoing basis for our needs with
respect to Personnel. They are very diligent and very helpful in supporting us.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Any comments, Mr. Young? ... (end a/tape, start 5B) . ..
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. On a personal level, I would like ... um ... in my
brief tenure here with the County, I am very impressed with the Risk Management
function and with Mr. Gates, individually, in his performance of the Risk Management
function. Professionally, what I've seen in terms of organizational consulting for a
number of organizations given the same size of employees as Maui County and the same
size operating budget, the Risk Management function can be anyone of the areas that
you've described: the Finance Department in the HR role; or in the Corporation Counsel;
or the legal affairs area. From what I believe and have found is that the Risk
Management philosophy of the organization usually can be illustrated in where it's
located. I'm not saying ... for me, I don't really have a desire that it needs to be in
Finance because I believe Mr. Gates can function and will succeed for the County no
matter where the role is placed; but it does say something to the philosophy of Risk
Management, having it in Finance or even in DPS. I believe, it does say that we are
looking at it from the prevention; it is prevention focused. Having it being in Finance as
opposed to DPS, though, says specifically that we recognize that there is the financial risk
factor, there. It's more of a financial/economic perspective, rather than say the human
capital value. So I don't have a, you know, one way or the other, whether or not it should
be in Finance. I like that Mr. Gates is part of the Finance team. I believe he is one of the
stronger assets that Finance brings to the County. That's my personal opinion, though.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate your candid comments, Mr. Director. And while I
can ... uh ... being the type of person I am, I can appreciate your fiscal discipline
regarding the claims; nonetheless, these are still our employees. They need to be treated
as respected people of our community that work for the County. So I hope that we make
sure that it is properly balanced because I don't just look at it as employees as a number
on a case with a dollar amount attached for settlement.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama. We, in the Finance Department, like to make sure that we,
you know, whether or not the Risk Management operates from a financial perspective, or
a Personnel perspective, or a litigation legal perspective, we want to make sure that our
Risk Management Division can work very cohesively with all the different departments.
That is really the key. As long as we can make sure that these lines of communication
and cooperative work for each of those areas, as well as all the other departments as well,
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can remain cohesive and cooperative, there really should not be any difference in terms
of where the Risk Management function is located.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. One more question for Mr. Gates, Mr. Chairman.
Has any other collective bargaining agreements been a detriment or has hampered the
ability of reaching reasonable solution to certain claims under workers' comp? Because
if it is then, you know, it is going to be people like us that are gonna need to either work
with the Legislature or find it if it's within our purview to make appropriate adjustments
to the law in a fair and timely treatment of these matters.
MR. GATES: Thank you for that question. It's a good question and I do have some opinions
about how the collective bargaining agreements affect the workers' compensation in this
State. I don't believe that ... I think we have to look at it from a standpoint of taking
care of the employees and the biggest benefit to the employees as far as how the work,
how the bargaining unit agreements affect the rights of an injured employee. I feel
comfortable in saying that, from a compensation standpoint, there is a ... urn ... not
much of an incentive, other than the love for your job, to go back to work after being
disabled because of the amount of pay that a person receives and the rights they have to
that pay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's within the collective bargaining portion and its
relationship to compensation?
MR. GATES: That's right. That's right. Under the current system, you ...
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Gates. But I would like to interject and say that I don't want to
get too far off. Okay.
MR. GATES: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: I mean we've got a lot of stuff ahead of us and this is important information, so
if we can try to, you know, if we need general information to help us with our decisions,
that's fine.
MR. GATES: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: But you know, we are going off into realms where basically we have no
control. I don't think that's ... we don't have the time now to get into those areas, where
we don't have the control over the destiny of this budget. So if we can limit our
comments to where we have the control of our destiny, please.
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MR. GATES: Thank you, Chairman. Mr. Hokama, I would just say I appreciate the invitation to
make whatever changes you folks would be willing to change and at the time that I feel
like we could make some headway in those areas, then I would be happy to let you know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. And again, thank you, Chairman. I appreciate
your parameters on this matter.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the time now is about 3:10. But before we go into our
afternoon break, if there are any further questions for Risk Management or in the area
that has been presented on that one-page document by Mr. Young, regarding financial
services or administrative accounts, the Chair, at this time, in the interest oftime, that we
need to get into the changes of rates and fees, I would like to come back and start on that
area. If there's any further questions, that we have them forwarded in writing and we get
responses for that. Okay. Members, the time now is 3:10, we will recess until 3:25. We
are in recess. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

3:08 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:29 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel). . . Okay members, let's reconvene. Thank you for that
much-needed break. We are now gonna get into the FY '06 Budget changes to rates and
fees and I believe Mr. Young provided us with another document that would give us the
breakdown. If all members have your Budget Ordinance handy, that's where the actual
changes are highlighted. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Chairman, I ... uh ... let me first say my apologies. If this
is not the right time because it's a multi-departmental thing that ... uh ... whatnot, then
just let me know that I will have my opportunity. When will we talk about the HR
Initiative that is also part of Finance, Office of the Mayor, Personnel Services?
CHAIR KANE: Our intention is once we finish with Finance--that's why we have the resource
person for the Mayor's Office--then we are gonna finish, try to finish it up this afternoon.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: And it was the Chair's ... urn ... the Chair apologizes. When we had the
Managing Director up here, that was the time we were gonna do the Mayor's office and
the Chair let them escape and we got Finance down here before realizing that they were
here to do that. So we will bring them right back down.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, thank you. I anticipate it with great expectations.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. Just so you folks can get your bearings, while Mr. Young
does his opening comments, I think we are gonna start on Page 2 of your Budget
Ordinance, and then there's an accompanying piece of paper that was passed out this
afternoon along with, I believe, a hard copy of a presentation. And so with that,
Mr. Young.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I will be proceeding with this handout. It's
approximately 10 pages, entitled "Changes to rates & fees under the purview of the
Finance Department". There's seven proposed changes referenced in Appendix B of the
Budget Ordinance. Under the purview of the Department of Finance, there are a number
of real property tax rate changes; the peddling merchandise license; fee structure for
taxicab drivers permits; consolidation of fees for disabled persons parking four-year
placards as well as the temporary parking placards; the fee for dishonored negotiable
instruments; and some revised language for the motor vehicle weight tax. Not all of these
proposals are resulting in actual fee dollar changes. In regards to the real property tax
rates, as presented earlier before this committee, there are proposed ... uh . . . three
revisions to the property tax rates in three different classes: homeowner; improved
residential; and apartment; as well as a new rate for timeshares. The first three rates that I
mentioned are rate reductions and the timeshare rate is a new rate classification; but those
properties are currently taxed at the hotel rate and we are proposing that the rate be upped
to $16. The peddling merchandise rate change is reflected on Page 2 of the Appendix B.
We are proposing to change the amount from $25 to $50. And for the members
reference, in Fiscal Year '04, there were 15 licenses issued under peddling merchandise.
In regards to the taxi driver's permits, this essentially breaks out to create a fee structure
that doesn't currently exist for taxicab business license transactions. It adds fees for such
items as initial activation; the annual fee--it establishes an annual fee; the transfer of
business license; replacement of lost, stolen, or mutilated business permit, as well as the
service decal; and whenever they want ... uh . . . a taxi license wants to change the
vehicle assignment. In terms of the disabled persons parking placards, we're proposing
... uh ... no change in the fee amount per se for the four-year permit or the temporary
permit, but the change in the consolidation of the language, which could result in
... uh ... expend the applicability of when the fee will be assessed. And for the
members reference, through December of 2004, there were 726 four-year permits issued
and through December of 2004, there were about 199 temporary permits issued. In terms
of the dishonored negotiable instruments, we're proposing an increase in the fee that is
currently from $15 to $25. This change is necessary to reflect the added increase cost of
the County ... uh ... that is charged to the counties from the banks, when the County
receives or tries to cash a dishonored instrument. In addition, Administrative expenses
are constantly going up within the County and the ability to process or the intangible
financial cost to process these items is constantly rising. By example, the Water
Department already charges $25 for NSF checks. And this fee, the Department has
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reviewed other states nationwide and have found that this same fee is inline with about
$20-25 on average in other states. Lastly, the motor vehicle weight tax, we are proposing
a change in the language for the application of the vehicle weight tax. This will further
clarify the application of the tax to passenger vehicles, trucks, and non-commercial
vehicles to be under 6,501Ibs., so no greater than 6,500 lbs. Mr. Lito Vila (the DMVL
Administrator) is available to speak to the majority of these rate changes as well as
myself, at the desire of the Chair. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, before I open it up, the Chair will inform you that the
intention is to have the discussion on real property tax rates after we receive the tax
certification or ... we are scheduled, at this time, for Tuesday (next week Tuesday).
Today's intention is to cover all the others, which were deemed to be relatively more
minor in nature than the real property assessments ... uh ... tax rates. So with that being
said, members, if we can, we will defer on the property tax rates and we will proceed
with the rest of the presentation, and if there are any questions in this presentation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just one quick question on the property tax rates, in general.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: On Page 3, Mr. Young, when you mentioned the 14 percent-plus
percent increase in revenue from class, you are talking about the $3 rate as it relates to the
current levels of assessed valuation?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. The 14 percent that I reference here means that at charging as proposed the
$3 rate, we will collect from this classification, 14 percent more than we collected last
year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For this year's budget?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, for the '05. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And it will apply accordingly, 18 percent for apartment and
improved residential?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And members, on that Page 2 of your Budget Ordinance, you will
see those, the specific numbers, the bracket. As an example, the improved residential
bracketed $3.6 million approximate and the bracket 586, and what's underlined, you will
see an increase from 3.6 to $4.7 million. And that is at the reduced rate. So
hypothetically, if we charged the original rate, we would have a number that would be in
excess of the $4.7 million. So again, that's where you can find those numbers. Any
questions, members, with all of the remainder of the presentation, starting from ... ? And
why don't we just go in order, members, just to help us keep a sense of order and not
flipping pages? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Young. Since this would be in the order, under peddling
merchandise, can you tell us when was the last time the fee was adjusted?
MR. YOUNG: May I defer to Mr. Lito Vila for that response?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. VILA: To my knowledge, it's been quite a while. It's always been $25 as far as I can
remember.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So give us around ... what you think ... uh ... we can understand
that--lO years?
MR. VILA: I've been with the County going on 11 years, now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So at least through your term, it's been the same $25 amount.
MR. VILA: To my knowledge.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. As we understand how we set fees, which is the recouping of
our expenses, $50 ... your analysis shows that $50 is the right number, Mr. Vila? Or is it
just a nice round number?
MR. VILA: I haven't done a cost analysis. When it comes to peddling or vending licenses,
there's two stages. One is the initial application, which would result--if everything is
approved--in the issuance of a license. It would be charged. The initial work or amount
of things that has to be done with that permit is substantial, which includes review by my
Department, review by the Police, review by the Planning Department, a letter of
correspondence approving/disapproving, which would subsequently result in the issuance
of that permit for this amount.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Would that also include verifying whether or not the required State
clearances are also completed, whether it be Department of Health.
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MR. VILA: Yeah. Normally, that would require proof of the processing area, if it's for prepared
foods in an open establishment; the supporting location of the vending operation; the
review of the proposed sites by the Police Department to make sure that the area is ...
there's no safety concerns that they would have; and a lot of, sometimes, what the license
holders will do too is amend their present license to include additional routes. On one
license, they may have five or six different routes on there because the ordinance is silent
on that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Just so we have a pretty good understanding, what is the
definition of a peddler, since we are providing a peddling merchandise license?
MR. VILA: That's actually defined in the Maui County Code, Chapter 5.12, I believe. I don't
have the Code with me.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Corp. Counsel, can you tell us in a kind of short definition what
type oflicense this is and for who?
MS. VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair. The definition is found, as Mr. Vila stated, in Chapter 5.12 of the
Maui County Code. The definition of a "vendor" means any person, including
employees or agents, who engage in business in one locality or traveling from place to
place, whether on foot or from a stand, wagon, pUshcart, motor vehicle, or any other
place other than a permanent structure constructed and used in accordance with all
applicable county ordinances, including, but not limited to, building, zoning, and other
land use provisions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So in general, like a lunch wagon would be a person that would
apply for this license to do lunch wagons on and around certain areas?
MS. VILLAROSA: There's a separate definition for a lunch wagon.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, there is? ... (chuckled) . " But they would still come for the
same license?
MR. VILA: Yes.
MS. VILLAROSA: I believe so.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So since you told us that your people had a lot of things to
review, $50 ... is it an acceptable recapturing of your services and your requirements,
Mr. Vila?
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MR. VILA: I wouldn't be comfortable in specifying anything greater. If we were to do a more
detailed, it ... the other subsequent would be, I think, the initial review and approval, and
in the event they give an
or request for a review of an additional route to be
added to their license, that is substantially more work.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ifthere's a violation regarding this license, who enforces it?
MR. VILA: The police.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The police?
MR. VILA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Before I recognize you, Mr. Molina, members, just
by way of background and for a lot of us who have been around a long time, there was a
discussion when Mr. Moto was presiding as the Corporation Counsel, back several years
ago, there was a question of how fees arrived at. There has to be some nexus. It has to
be a coalition to the service or the work that is actually done, that you can't make a profit
or a revenue from a fee. So with that being said, was there any sort of review or
anything? And I know Mr. Hokama was kind of touching on that, Mr. Vila, because it's
100 percent increase overall for the fees that we're gonna be looking at? Or Mr. Young,
was there any type of analysis in your fee increase proposals that met, I guess, the
threshold that was specified in past budget discussions with respects to fees and how we
arrive at them?
MR. VILA: Mr. Chair. There has not ... I have not conducted a formal review. However, my
knowing the operation and what's involved in the processing at this point, this is a
nominal amount and probably would not cover the total cost for the review process.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Thank you very much. Mr. Molina, thank you for yielding.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no problem, Mr. Chairman. Can I offer a suggestion as to
how we proceed as it relates to these changes? Being that we've already, we're gonna
defer on the discussion for real property tax rates and we're still in the process of doing
the peddling of merchandise license, maybe if Mr. Vila or Mr. Young can maybe just give
a brief overview of each proposed change, to include maybe in their brief overview as to
why ... to include as to why the change is being considered and any historical
background because, you know, some of us may have a lot of questions that may seem
general to others and I would sure hate to see colleagues or other people getting flustered
or irritated. I am just looking at it as a way of saving some time and in a brief overview,
some of the questions that we may have could be answered. So I would just like to offer
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that suggestion because I know you've been emphasizing to us, we do have a heavy load
ahead and we do want to proceed in a manner as efficient as possible. So I would just
like to throw that out for your consideration, Mr. Chair, because otherwise, some of us
may have a lot of questions and take up a lot of time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Is there any requests for additional explanation on any of the items that
were briefly touched on by the Director, just to get additional clarification? And again,
the Chair will note that if you have your Budget Ordinance available that there are some
noted. As an example, for the peddling merchandise, you will see that there are some
exemptions available. If you would note that no licenses are required for fish, fresh
fruits, leis, flowers, or vegetables, nor for persons 60 years of age or older. So I mean
there's some additional information within the actual ordinance that helps members like
Member Tavares, who's close--I think--to a 60 year or older.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't think so. '" (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Anyway. Is there any additional requests on any of the specific items? Other
than that, any ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. I guess it's not specific but it goes back to the general
thing about these fees and that there should be a relationship between them. I think I had
E-mailed the staff to ask how we would put this into the budget document but somehow
we need to have that cost benefit analysis done for the department, whether they do it
in-house or out of ... I mean, or outside contract. But that will help us, I think, to justify
some of these fees that are being proposed here, and we are talking about a very small
amount of money here--15 licenses. You know, we've got multimillion dollar projects so
maybe it can wait a year.
CHAIR KANE: It will go from 375 to $750.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: I mean it's not real ... manini money.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't know. It's just a thought, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any specific questions? We can move on to taxi driver
permits. I know there's a lot of stuff there. Chair only has one question in here. It's that
we are adding fees on there and yet they've been in here for the past five or six years
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off-and-on asking for a quarter or for 50 cents to increase their rates and their gasoline
costs have all gone up and everything else, and yet, we are increasing fees on them. Is
there ... if the Chair may ask to either Director Y oung--was there any consideration of
allowing them to recoup some of their increased costs since we're adding costs and not
providing them the opportunity to increase their take on the front-end. Mr. Vila or
Mr. Young?
MR. VILA: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Relative to the business owner's plea for additional
consideration to charge the rates, I believe that within the taxi ordinance, this body may
request that a panel be convened to review the proposed power of structures of the
ordinance. The business owners that have inquired with me, I have pointed that out to
them so ... urn ... I don't know if they have made contact with any members of this
body for such a review, which I understand their plight. However, at this point, the
amount that we are charging for the taxicab related transactions at the DMV is virtually
nil and we do experience various types of transactions that contribute to the services that
are offered at the service center.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any questions in this area? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. So in general, like the ... the last time the permit fees
were raised was when and I guess ... uh ... basically overall, how much taxi operators
do we have in the County?
MR. VILA: We have (for the island of Maui) 257 licenses authorized based upon the resident
popUlation formula. Out of those 257, 14 of them presently are on hold, meaning the
owners have corne in and said I am not using this permit at this time, so we have flagged
that licenses as being on hold. Some of them have expired and have not been renewed.
So about 234-237 is presently active.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And with this proposed increase, it will significantly offset
some of the costs that we incur, administratively?
MR. VILA: Well, it will definitely. For example, on the issuance of ... uh ... when we conduct
a lottery, we do all of the legwork: the advertising; the calculation; the publication in the
newspaper; conducting of the lottery, notification; the verification that all of the
requirements that need to physically ... uh ... be on the vehicle, be there; the vehicle's
property registered under that name it's checked; and then we issue the permit, which I
believe, we've been charging only $5 for all of that work, upon the initial issuance. The
last ... uh ... last year, from experience, was ... I know of at least one taxicab award
winner that did activate ... urn ... to activate the license he was awarded, took a vehicle
that he had on another license, put that on hold, through us, took that vehicle and used it
to activate a new license. Once it's activated, put that license back on hold to move a
vehicle back and sold that license to somebody else. I mean I know it's a minor
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____ but that's a lot of times that they would come into the service center to do each
of those transactions.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I was gonna ask about that renewal because it's in the
Code at $5, so I guess we need to adjust the original chapter of 5.16. And I can
remember the last time we had various business operators asking us for adjustments in
the meter rate program. Two things I wanted to bring forward to the division and the
Department. One, because of the lottery system in how you ... uh . . . how do you
determine the amount of permits that the County ... ?
MR. VILA: On the ordinance.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The ordinance provides you a formula through resident population?
MR. VILA: One ... (end a!tape, start 6A) . .. resident population. So we've been basing it upon
the last census and the growth. I think the growth is about 4 percent a year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So let's say, real simple, Lanai rounded out 3,000 people. That
means they can have six permits?
MR. VILA: Approximately six. Last time we awarded, we had--based on the drawing--six
licenses available. People did apply for those. However, at this point, they are not
activated. So since they are not activated, we plan to ... uh ... at the next award, we'll
plan to put that up again. Same thing with Molokai.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, yeah, thank you for giving us that status because it
doesn't help my community and my island by the County giving out license permits to
operators here on Maui that do not perform the service on Lanai. And yet, I know that
Lanai people have put in requests to be the service provider, hiring Lanai people to do
Lanai jobs. So if there's a way that you can make sure because if they don't run, we
don't collect certain fees and revenue for your program. I would ask you to please look
at how to make the appropriate adjustments because I will not be very supportive of
having Maui licenses given for the Lanai program and now, as you said, none is activated
and no service is provided to my community. That's not fair.
MR. VILA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Vila.
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MR. VILA: I agree with you, Mr. Hokama. One recommendation at this point if ... as I read
the ordinance--and Corp. Counsel can correct me--I would not have a problem issuing
licenses provided ... urn ... if the ordinance is changed. Right now, I'm only ... the
division is only ... is restricted to issuing new licenses only via the lottery system.
However, if the ordinance is changed to provide if those permits are not activated within
a certain amount of time, then it becomes some other fair mechanism that we could ...
because in order to conduct a lottery, there's a lot of legwork involved with the
application. I don't have a problem doing that, it's just time-consuming. The ordinance
also states once a year we conduct that lottery to recalculate, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I appreciate that. My other question to you because
I've thought about it. Tell me how much your Department actually spends (financial
resources) to run this program, please? Quarter million dollars?
MR. VILA: To run this ... ?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The taxicab program under Department of Finance.
MR. VILA: I don't have it costed in that manner. As people come in to do their transactions, it's
processed as a transaction. I've recently upgraded our ... urn ... it used to be all
manual. Everything was hand typed. I just wrote a database program to accommodate
that, to make it easier for my staff and try to streamline it so we can get a better count and
grasp of the taxicab and producing of the licenses, but I don't have a good number strictly
for taxicab business licenses or taxi driver permits. This is actually two different things.
The taxi driver permit is to operate the, drive the taxicab and that requires the permit.
Currently, in the ordinance, it states $10 for initial and $5 for renewal. Given that a
duplicate licenses, we want to take the renewals from $5 to $10 and keep it the same.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. The Code requires each of this to have a chauffeur's
permit, chauffeur's license. Do you run that side of the program?
MR. VILA: That's actually ... uh ... we are interpreting that as the taxi driver's permit,
Mr. Hokama. You need a Type 3 license to get a taxi driver's permit and we issue that
permit to the driver. Each driver has to have that obtained and it's valid for one year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Because the Code just says that the person shall have, which
is a requirement, a chauffeur's license and a permit. I couldn't find in the rates and fees,
"chauffeur's license".
MR. VILA: In my 10 years, we have never issued a chauffeur's license just the taxi driver's
permit.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, that's why I'm asking. The Code says "required".
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MR. VILA: It's a rather old Code that probably needs to be updated for conformance with our
present licensing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well the last revision was in 1999, in this section, so that's why I'm
asking.
MR. VILA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We don't see it in the rates and fees.
MR. VILA: Right. And as I recall, back at that stage ('97-'98), I think the body requested ...
the Council requested a panel be convened to reevaluate the taxi ordinance per se in the
rate structures and Taxi Advisory Committee was formed by various members of the
community. They did submit their findings; however, only certain sections of their
findings resulted in being codified into the ordinance.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. If you can get us that number, then I would ask you to please
forward it to our Chairman regarding the expenses that the Department incurs on behalf
of this program. I would be interested because I have been asked if I would be open to
consideration that we tum this whole program back or to the Public Utilities Commission,
and I wouldn't know what to say unless we have some kind of an analysis and
information provided from your Department. I would appreciate that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We will make sure we get that question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm done.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions in this area, members? Hearing none. Let's
move on ... disabled persons parking placards. Any additional comments, Mr. Young or
Mr. Vila? Before I go any further, any requests for additional information from the
members? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. I guess I might as well just ask my question now if the
Department doesn't want to give their overview. You know since we don't charge for the
initial non-temporary placard, what kind of costs are we incurring with the replacements?
Has their been a significant amount of replacements being requested for?
MR. VILA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Vila.
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MR. VILA: My latest estimate that I submitted--I alluded to earlier--was approximately, going
from memory, about $30 each time we issue. That's our estimated costs, so that would be
our costs. As far as replacement, it's very minimal. The former placard replacement,
those are the ... uh . .. what you would consider the long-term or the permanent
disability. It's irreversible. So they tend to guard those placards very well. And they
take care, that's their means of mobility, which I totally agree with. I can try to get you
how many duplicate requests from the database. I can request that from the State
database programmer, to see. It's not one of the
reports that I receive regularly
but I can request a special program for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If! could have that, yeah. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And just to reiterate, members, we are just consolidating language
and bracketing out each bullet and making it into one bullet for the replacement for
mutilated, under the permanent ... or the four-year parking, and then the same thing
under the temporary parking placard. Hearing no further questions here. Dishonored
negotiable instruments. Any need for clarification on this item? It's found on Page 19 of
your Budget Ordinance. Questions? Okay, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. One question. Can you kind of give us some
background experience on the number of insufficient fund checks or forms of payment
that we (the County departments) deal with, Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. Certainly, Mr. Hokama. I don't have the all inclusive for all departments
but I can provide let's say if ... example, if that's sufficient for you. From the Division
of Treasury, they've seen that in the first quarter of 2005, for only vehicle registrations
(checks related to vehicle registrations), 110 dishonored checks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Out of how many of those received? It's like out of 500 received?
So that would be ... for first quarter?
MR. VILA: It would be approximately 130,000 divided by 4. So that's ...
CHAIR KANE: 32,5
MR. VILA: About 32,500. That's total registered vehicles.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So 32,000 in the first quarter. What was that number, Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: 110 dishonored checks, only for vehicle registration.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Any of that is an increase over the previous period ... uh ...
previous year's first period too?
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MR. YOUNG: It's been ... it's pretty much consistent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Consistent?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah. In terms of the vehicle registration. And in, for real property tax or tax
collection, approximately, for both Fiscal Year 2003-2004, in the area of 800 NSF checks.
The impact of this situation actually extends beyond the initial deposit because the
members are probably aware that each of the banks that the County does business with
have raised the fee that when the County tries to cash a dishonored check, has raised the
fee from anywhere between ... uh ... for $5-6. That's how much they charge the
County. And for each of the banks, we have agreements with them that they will at least
try to re-cash, you know, again, re-cash the check at least once before sending it back. So
each time that happens, the County incurs a cost anywhere from $10-12, as well as the
Administrative expense for our staff to maintain the records and to follow up on
non-payments. So this fee, again, is inline with other states that have--for this exact same
fee structure--that have charged on average between $20-25.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And if I can take it to the next level. How many times do you
resubmit that payment until you put a lean on the property, if it regards to real property
payments?
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Hokama. I don't know how many times we would resubmit it before we do
the lean. There is, at some point, we have our individual staff people in the division
actually follow up with a telephone call to try and collect; but I don't know if they allow
the bank to try and redeposit the checks a number of times, other than two.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Twice?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then it's returned to the County?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. But what I'm saying is I don't know if--they do it at least twice. I don't
know if, when it gets returned to the County, if we then say resubmit it to the bank to go
another two times; or if it is at that point, that we have our . . . we actually have a
physical employee follow up to try and collect. If you want, I can provide that
information after speaking with the division.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. I'm just trying to understand if the $25 is enough since the
effort is obviously a lot more than $25.
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MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama. I would say that ... urn ... like all the fees that we're
proposing here, we look at them as being reasonable. But because we haven't done the
full-blown cost benefit analysis to evaluate what is the true cost of all these services, I
would say that these fees all represent some portion of the actual cost and not the full
100 percent recapture.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there a way, to make it easier, that we can add the penalty of
recapturing this dishonored negotiable instruments onto their tax bill ... so that it's added
onto their property tax bill?
MR. YOUNG: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: County has done it in good faith upon receiving your check; got
turned down twice; we've been charged for this; so you know what, we're gonna charge
you back as a penalty on your taxes.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Hokama. In regards to the real property tax, it is assessed on their real
property tax bill. We do charge the $15 NSF fee.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman. I sort ofrecall--when we were looking
at this fee in years passed--that what the then policy was to be inline with whatever the
banks were charging for returned checks. Because we raised it once before and we used
that as like the industry standard kind of thing. I don't know if that was looked at. I
haven't been to the bank. I go to the ATM ... (chuckled) ... so I don't know what they
are charging now.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Tavares. (NOTE: He cleared his throat.) Excuse me. Yes,
Ms. Tavares. The examination of what the State governments charge also was a general
review of what banks charge to individual citizens for NSF checks.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, was this $25?
MR. YOUNG: And it is inline with that charge ($25), yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, members, before we move on to motor vehicle weight tax,
change of language?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Overview, Chainnan?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Could we have a brief overview from the Director?
CHAIR KANE: Over and above what they've opened up with ... because they did go over this
when they ... when we went through this, they went through their handout, so you want
additional infonnation?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Just maybe a rationale as to why and the issues as to
how it's gonna impact the public.
CHAIR KANE:
Okay.
Okay, thank you.
Mr. Young?
And maybe--along with
Mr. Molina--because the Chair's question in here is that because you are making this
change of language, is there gonna be an impact that we are gonna get phone calls on that
somebody who didn't fall within some sort of category, because of this language change,
will now fall into this change category and get included into some rate structure change?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I believe Mr. Moto--in the last bond ... uh ... when the
County went out for a bond refunding--he had sent a note for us to consider this during
the Fiscal Year '06 Budget because this language matches what is used in the bond
authorization documents that are submitted. That was, I believe, was the rationale for
this, that it came from Corporation Counsel to match the same language.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So, Ms. Fujita Villarosa. Additional comments, please.
MS. VILLAROSA: Yes, Mr. Chair. Actually, the language tracks what's in HRS; it is in
Section 249-13. I think the language that was ... urn ... well that is currently in the
Budget Ordinance is not clear. And so we were just trying to clarify that language, and
we based it on the language that's in the State statute.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And we can see the changes on Page 26, members, the bracketed out and
then the underlined or underscored. Any additional explanation needed? The Chair is
satisfied in not asking for additional impact since the language would be consistent with
the language in HRS. Mr. Molina, any additional infonnation for you?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, just a question whenever you deem it appropriate.
CHAIR KANE: No, you go ahead. You have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So will this propose change have ... uh ... in terms of
impacts on revenue for the County? I'm thinking like, you know, people who are buying
these bigger SUV s and Hummers and everything else, I mean ... that's gonna have some
kind of impact, right, because these Hummers and mega-SUVs as I'd like to call 'em are
pretty heavy. Can you comment on that?
MR. VILA: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. VILA: Yeah. The tax is based on the weight. So the heavier your vehicle, the more taxes
you will pay. The 6,500-pound threshold demarcates the difference between being
assessed the passenger rate versus the commercial rate. So I know there's a bill before
the Legislature this year. Somebody... or a group is trying to change that to take the
threshold up higher than that 6,500 lbs. So in essence, it really has no bearing on what
we will charge the owners. It matches the language of the HRS. So therefore, if your
vehicle is 6,502 lbs., you will get assessed the proper rate on that. There is an exception
rate. It involves your pickup trucks for example. Since it's a vehicle designed for
carrying cargo, we do provide ... uh ... the law provides for a provision to acknowledge
that it's not being used for commercial purposes. Therefore, that pickUp truck may be
assessed the passenger rate.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So with 6,500 lbs. as the cutoff, the magic is between ... I guess,
what--a luxury car and then the next level, which is, would be like maybe a stretched out
limousine or something? I mean what's the magic with that number?
MR. VILA: It's the manufacturer's weight, the weight of vehicle. I don't know. I don't quite
understand.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand that. But why is it at 6,500 lbs.? Why isn't it
5,000Ibs.? What's the ... why is it 6,500 lbs.?
MR. VILA: I really can't, I would have to do ... urn ... research on the intent of the
Legislature, when they enacted that law, to establish that threshold of 6,500 lbs. I could
perhaps ask Corp. Counsel to see if they could shed some light onto that.
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CHAIR KANE: That was established by State law? I mean--sorry for inteljecting--just so we
understand where it came from, that is State law established?
MR. VILA: State law, yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I would be happy if she can provide a comment from
Corporation Counsel. If not, I was just curious, why is it ... the number the number?
CHAIR KANE: Are you prepared--yeah? She's not prepared to respond, Mr. Hokama. I'm
sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions in this final item that has been given to us as part of
their proposals? If you do have any further questions, members, please pose them in
writing to the Department and we will get them to ... uh ... we will ask for a timely
response. At this time, I would like to ask the Managing Director to come back up and he
will be discussing the Mayor's proposed operations.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good. One last question for Mr. Vila?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Please, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Vila?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Should the Governor sign HB 1645, which allows the counties to
have an ad valorem tax on vehicles, how soon is that ... do you think it can be
implemented in the County of Maui? And I know ... and I hope it's not until the next
fiscal year because I am happy to ask Chairman to consider adjusting the budget; but we
renew cars every month. You know, so to me, there's no really magic ... uh ... but if
you say it might take six months, Council might need an ordinance in the Code to enable
it from the local side, I can appreciate that. But what do you think if this venue pops up
as revenue for us, how soon do you think we can implement it?
MR. VILA: If I may add, and try to answer that? Usually--and I haven't really read through the
bill and the proposal--usually at the end, there is ... urn . .. this bill will become
effective date, there's an effective date of that bill.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The effective date is July 1, 2005.
MR. VILA: The first challenge would be getting the computer (statewide computer program)
modified to accommodate that change in the assessment of the tax and the calculation
method. Right now, the entire state's data program is based upon the weight of the
vehicle. I know this ... a similar version has been before the City & County and the
Legislature a couple of years ago and it's resurfacing. I really can't give you a good
answer as far as the timing because we don't control the programming portion and how
detailed that is. What I do know is . . . the programmers at the City & County that
maintains the mainframe, have a lot of Federally-mandated programs that they have to
comply with. So that's ... (inaudible) ... resources.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you are dependent on the City & County's computer system,
Mr. Vila?
MR. VILA: That is the ... uh . . . we share the same database program, which we pay the
computer usage fee for the use of that and that was reflected in my operating expense
(B account). It's a computer charge for both motor vehicle and driver licensing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that a State's law requirement that we all share and use that one
system?
MR. VILA: No. However, it would be very, in my opinion, it would be very difficult to
establish our own computer system with interconnectivity. For example, the driver
licensing system--with the other jurisdictions and the programming support and the
maintenance and the software--I mean it's a whole massive, which-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. VILA: --I don't think we (as a small County) could support.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Young. Thank you, Mr. Vila, for your time this
afternoon. If we can have Mr. Regan and Mr. Taylor and, I believe, we have some
resource personnel. And again, Managing Director Regan, the Chair apologizes for
having you wait all afternoon. Mr. Regan, if you can provide us, in your opening
remarks, some reference points for the members to follow along in your presentation,
please.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. If I could just have a few moments to-CHAIR KANE: No problem.
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MR. REGAN: --get organized.
CHAIR KANE: Take the time you need. Details, members, is in Section 10 for the Mayor's
budget; and then program, I believe, we're in Section 12. Mr. Regan?
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon, Mr. Chair and Members of the Budget and
Finance Committee. My name is Keith Regan and I'm here. I am the Managing Director
for the County of Maui here today to discuss the operating budget for the Office of the
Mayor. The Office of the Mayor is divided up into four major programs, which can be
found on Page 12-1 of the program budget, which are the Administration program, the
Economic Development program, the Community Development Block Grant program,
and the E-Tech program. Chair, if it's your pleasure, I would like to proceed and begin
our discussions this afternoon with the Administration program for the Office of the
Mayor, which begins on Page 12-9 of the program budget and may be referenced on
Page 10-4 of the budget details.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Let's proceed with that, members, without any objections.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: The Administration program is seeking your support for a request of $226,200
for Fiscal Year 2006, which is a $116,500 increase over the Fiscal Year 2005
appropriation of $109,700. The Mayor, as in any Administration, is the head of the
Executive Branch of our government and acts as a ceremonial representative of the
County of Maui, essentially to the world. Oftentimes, the Mayor will receive officials
from other areas of our country as well as foreign dignitaries that travel to our beautiful
islands. With the responsibility of acting as the ceremonial representative comes the need
for funding to perform this function in a professional and tasteful manner, which may
include various amenities. The Mayor's office and lobby are an extremely important part
of the reception of the public, visiting dignitaries, and other government officials. As
such, we are intending to use these funds (or a portion thereof) to replace the carpet
located on the 9th floor and more specifically, the portion controlled by the Office of the
Mayor. This carpet was installed in 1991 and has become severely stained and tattered in
many visible areas. We feel that with respect to the office, the carpet needs to be
replaced. The cost of which has been estimated to be approximately $8-10,000
depending on market conditions.
Additionally, the Mayor--as the ceremonial
representative of the County--must oftentimes travel to other islands and sometimes to
other states for important conventions; such as, the NACo Conference, u.S. Conference
of Mayors, and others. The Mayor must also travel to attend the State Legislature in
Honolulu periodically to represent the position of the County and help lobby for
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important pieces of legislation. This travel is important in maintaining the ceremonial
respect of the office and allows the Mayor an opportunity to gain additional
understanding that will ultimately benefit our community. As a Mayor with the
responsibility of three islands, travel to these other locations must also be considered as
part of this additional request. The Mayor must have access to the citizens of Lanai and
Molokai, to hear their issues and make important improvements. The cost of inter-island
travel continues to increase and the inconvenient flights make it difficult to spend one day
at these locations. This additional funding will be used to improve our Mayor's
connection to these communities and will ultimately benefit us all. The Office of the
Mayor is also responsible for the oversight of three commissions. The Salary
Commission; the Cost of Government Commission; and the Committee on the Status of
Women are part of our responsibility. We are asked to provide support services to these
committees, which may include a small amount of operating funds, to assist with the
processing of various requests made by the commissions. The development of minutes
for these committees has been an extreme challenge. We would like to improve the
quality of service to these committees by providing for more timely transcription of
minutes. This would only be ... (end a/tape, start 6B) . .. capabilities and by contracting
these services out to a third party. The Administration believes in the importance of
maintaining close relations with all areas of the County, which includes our annual
budget discussion visits to all districts of our County. This annual budget discussion
requires that travel expenses be incurred because of the makeup of our three-island
community. Additionally, there are needs for travel forms to allow the Budget Director
and staff to travel, as well as for the cost of our Mayor and Executive Assistants to travel
and meet with the community: go on site visits; meet with County employees; and
address community issues. Ultimately, the funding requested for Fiscal Year 2006 will
assist the Office of the Mayor in its efforts to improve its ability to reach and meet our
public's needs, while also accomplishing the goals and objectives as outlined in the
Mayor's program budget. We humbly request your support of this request and would be
pleased to answer any questions you may have regarding the operating changes as
presented in the budget proposal, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Regan. Members, we have a starting point on Page 10-4 and
10-5 of your details as well as 12-9 in your program. The floor is open for questions.
Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My question relates to the
proposed increase in travel. It's been brought to the attention of the Committee of the
Whole that there is a request to establish a sister-city relationship with three communities.
One, I believe, is in the Philippines and I don't, presently, I don't have the names of the
other two cities. Maybe if staff can get the names of those other two cities. Is it the
intention of the Mayor to go and visit these sister cities for the upcoming fiscal year. Is
that part of ... uh . . . does that include the cost for the, I guess, the rationale for the
increase in travel costs.
- 118 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

MR. REGAN: I don't believe that's one ofthe considerations, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. REGAN: We do believe in supporting these sister-city relationship but, however, in our
proposal, that's not part ofthis costs.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Maybe Mr. Regan can help us understand the fivefold increase in
professional services to $50,000.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan, under services.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you, Chair. The increase in the professional services
include such things as ... uh ... providing for transcription of the commission meetings
that we do have. There are other things that come up; such as, some of the things that I
talked about with our need to improve our facilities but all of that wouldn't necessarily
come under this particular line item. But essentially, this would be to provide for services
to support the Mayor's ongoing efforts as well as to provide operating assistance for these
commissions as well. I don't have a detailed specific dollar-by-dollar breakout of the
$50,000 but I know the intention of that particular item, where it was placed into, was to
help with those commissions as well as other.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well to be candid here, Mr. Regan, in two years, under salary and
wages, you guys went up a big chunk too. Some I know is by Salary Commission for our
Mayor, of course; but from $800,000 to $950,000 just for salaries and wages and from
$90,000 to $226,000? I can ... I can, you know, I am very open and supportive of the
Mayor to have some flexibility to '" uh . .. because I have just received--and the
members will be receiving--the Cost of Government Commission's latest report, which
made comments regarding the need of commissions to have more support. So, I can
appreciate that as well as ... uh . . . you know, we also travel and we have all those
beneficial in our participation with HSAC and NACo, so I can be open and in support of
having the Mayor have some additional resources to represent Maui when required at
those appropriate Conference of Mayors. Why would I be asked to support an EA's
travel? If they want the Mayor, they want the Mayor. If they're not the Mayor, the next
person is you, Mr. Director. You are the number two man in the County of Maui, not the
EA. And if you are not available, Finance Director is the next one in charge. So, and
again, not the EA. Any comments, Mr. Regan?
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan, any comments?
MR. REGAN: I can provide some comments on that ... urn ... and I appreciate your position,
Member Hokama. Oftentimes, you know, we are required to go out to the communities
and meet with the communities on certain issues that may come up. From time to time,
there may be issues on the outer, on the other islands (Molokai and Lanai) where the
Mayor is not able to attend and I may not be able to attend, but yet the issues are specific
to the Office of the Mayor or at least would necessarily be addressed by the Office of the
Mayor and the Executive Assistants act as a ... uh ... as backup to the, not backup to the
Mayor, but assistants to the Mayor. And oftentimes, they are helping him with issues,
helping to address issues, at least, to understand the issues and then bring them back and
explain them to us either to myself or to the Mayor, for us to go forward and have
resolution through the departments. So they do ... the EAs do playa very integral role
in what we are trying to accomplish within the Office of the Mayor, so ... urn ...
periodically, you know, they would be required to travel--perhaps not as much as the
Mayor or myself--but there would be a need to have the flexibility to allow them to
travel. I know that in the past that one of Executive Assistants, who is now in the State
Legislature, was following specific legislation that would affect Maui County and that
required a significant amount of travel to go and attend and make sure that our bills are
being pushed through the Legislature.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that was a very good example, Mr. Director. But as it regards
our sister islands, the Mayor has set up his own Mayor's committee to address specific
regional or island concerns that he meets with on a periodic basis. So you know for me it
... I'll be real candid, I am ... uh ... I'll be cautious on this request. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions at this area? Ms. Tavares followed by
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. I had a question about the mileage, under the Mayor's
thing. Who gets mileage in the Mayor's office? This is on 10-4, object ... it's under
travel (6204). I thought that the Mayor receives a set automobile allowance and that it
wasn't tied into mileage.
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan, or if Ms. Morrison has a response?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. There used to be a car allowance for the Mayor.
However, I believe the last Mayor to get that was Mayor Hannibal Tavares. Then they've
used mileage, as far as I know, since that time.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. The carpet replacement, under what
line item does that (the replacement) comes under?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: I believe under "miscellaneous other costs". If you see there's an item for
approximately $20,500 ... urn ... is where we're looking at those funds to come from,
Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And just to clarify that point. In your opening remarks, the carpet costs you
folks anticipated based on the market was $8-10,000?
MR. REGAN: Approximately, yeah, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: So the other $10,000, approximately?
MR. REGAN: You know, we also have ... urn ... there are, the Mayor belongs to the U.S.
Conference of Mayors--which Member Hokama mentioned earlier--and there are dues
that are related to that and part of that (part of those dues) would come from that
particular object code. So I know that currently we pay about $4,000 and based on our
population, it is gonna go up to about $11,000. So there's a significant increase in the
due structure so that's another thing to be considered, Chair, which I didn't mention in
my opening remarks but I thank Member Hokama for bringing that up because I forgot to
mention that, but that is one of the considerations also.
CHAIR KANE: Members, if the Chair can, there's a couple of areas just to get clarification.
First under materials and supplies, under miscellaneous supplies, if you can again
identify, we had a $1,728 actual expenditure for '04; $2,500 was appropriated for this
fiscal year; and there was a $9,000 increase. What was the highlighted area that you
wanted to pose for this increase, Mr. Regan?
MR. REGAN: Chair, I believe that it's just the additional operating costs of the Office of the
Mayor to be able to order supplies as needed and as necessary to maintain a functioning
- 121 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

office. The cost of doing business continues to rise and increase and although this seems
like a substantial increase over our request from last year and it is. It is due in part to the
fact that it does cost us more money to run this office. Supplies are increasing in costs
and that's what I would have to associate that request with, Chair. Unless ... I mean I
can get a detailed breakdown but I'm assuming that that's the cost. The other thing is
that ...
CHAIR KANE: You're going from $2,700 in this materials and supplies area to almost $15,000
and you are attributing it to increased costs to run an office?
MR. REGAN: And also ... urn ... there are other costs of ... that are incurred by the Office of
the Mayor, ceremonial costs, that need to be covered as well that currently are being paid
for, basically, out of pocket by the Mayor and other staff. So we are requesting this to
help defray some of that and to be able to pay for it, I guess, essentially through the
Mayor's budget versus coming out of his own pocket.
CHAIR KANE: And again, members, there's no separation between A, B, and C accounts. And
so it's a choice of having your A account the way it is and the increase is there, and now
it's being supplemented to be supported with the account funds that are being requested.
Any additional questions in this area? Mr. Mateo followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Regan, just for, I guess,
my own information. Going back to airfare and transportation, what is the actual amount
that the Mayor spent for travel in this last fiscal year?
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: I would have to go back and pull out that information for you so I would ... we
would be happy to provide a response.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Would you know if it would be close to the $8,000 or less than
the $8,000 that's shown as of 6/30105?
MR. REGAN: I would have to say that it's close to the $8,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Close to it.
MR. REGAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the requested (the increased amount) primarily, travel is
within the tri-isles for this $20,000?
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MR. REGAN: Yes. And there also needs to be an understanding that periodically the Mayor
may be required to travel to the mainland.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. REGAN: So that needs to be taken into consideration. And it's costly. I mean we all know
how expensive it is to travel to the mainland.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mister--I'm sorry--Member Tavares and then I know Mr. Molina
and Mr. Pontanilla have questions.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Of all the positions that are listed, are all of them filled right
now? Are there any vacancies in the Mayor's office?
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: There are vacancies within the Mayor's office. One of 'em in particular was an
Executive Assistant position held by the former EA (Mele Carroll), who is now at the
State Legislature and, I believe, there is a budget ... uh ... position in the Budget office
that's vacant. I'm not sure exactly which one of those.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Director, just on two things. I don't
know if you've mentioned it in your opening remarks, just on the E-Tech program, the
increases there, if you could just comment on that and also the cell phone increase (the
additional $2,000) if you could comment on those.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry. Mr. Molina, E-Tech program, we're gonna ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh!
CHAIR KANE: We're gonna get to that. We're still in the operation of the Mayor's office.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. I apologize.
CHAIR KANE: And so we'll defer on that and get back to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Just on the cell phone ... uh ... why the additional
increase?
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MR. REGAN: Specifically under cell phone, we are asking for additional revenues because it's
... the additional costs of using cellular technology to improve our services, I mean it's
there. It is a real cost and it's something that we need to budget for, and then that's
essentially why we are requesting for the additional monies.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can you cite an example of additional costs for cell phone?
MR. REGAN: I know that for instance the PIO has a cellular telephone. I believe the Senior
EA, the Budget Director, the Mayor, so that they can be in contact. I'm not sure what
other staff have cellular telephones, but those are real costs. I mean they exist and it is
important for us to have contact with staff in the event of an emergency or in the event
that we need to get in touch with them under certain conditions. That's where those costs
come into play. And again, I'm not sure exactly who ... I don't have the information on
who has cellular telephones that are provided by the Mayor's office but I can provide that
information to you if you'd like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Great! Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Would you like that information, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes. Yes sir, Mr. Chairman, ifpossible. Thank you.
MR. REGAN: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: So we will forward that question. Okay, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is in regards to retirement and service
awards. Is this a program that is done on a yearly basis for each individual island? I see
that you have an increase of about $5,000 to that.
CHAIR KANE: Actually, Mr. Pontanilla. The Chair apologizes. I think it's zero and then that
would be for registration and training fees that's been increased by $5,500.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh.
CHAIR KANE: Sorry about that. I think that's where the number is reflected on that line item.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, his ruler is clear; that's why.... (chuckled) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: My ruler too clear. . .. (chuckled) . .. So is there any
monies that's budgeted for any kind of an awards system?
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. I believe it's under Department of Personnel Services. And I believe most
of the departments used to have allocations or appropriations for this and then it was all
shifted to DPS.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Personnel?
MR. REGAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's see, Mr. Hokama, you had additional questions? And the Chair is
aware of the time, Members, and our intent to come back this evening at 6:30 to continue
our discussion with Water. And then we may have to reschedule this session for another
day to continue along the other lines. But again, here we are, so we will do what we can
nowand-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --accommodate your dinner schedule. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One ... uh ... if the Managing Director has protocols regarding cell
phone program, I would ask that if it can be forwarded to our Chairman, that would be
appreciated. Other than that, Mr. Chairman, I will await the E-Tech program. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area, members? Hearing none. Why don't
we go ahead and bring forward--forgive me members. Mr. Regan, your intention was to
have E-Tech and I know we have OED, which I think we're gonna schedule separate.
Ms. Koller, no? I'm sorry. Members, we are just trying to get our bearings here.
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MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair. I don't believe there are any major changes in OED's operations
costs.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
MS. KOLLER: The only changes were in the grants.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. So we will go ahead and, members, we will go ahead and wrap
up with the E-Tech, with questions in there. So if we can have ... and I think in CDBG,
we had one request for an expansion if! am not mistaken. Forgive me.
MR. REGAN: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Yeah. I believe you're correct, Chair. But in speaking with the CDBG
Coordinator, we were talking that perhaps they had already come before the committee to
discuss their budget in an earlier, at an earlier point. So unless, I mean she is here to
answer any questions that you may have but it's up to you, Chair, whatever your pleasure
IS.

CHAIR KANE: Yeah, thank you. Members, I don't recall us asking to bring specifically CDBG
unless you folks wanted them. I think we did have the previous discussion. We will go
ahead and we won't be requesting their presence. Ms. Hayashi, thank you for being here
this afternoon, anyway.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would be happy to have her be able to respond, in writing though,
with the current situation of the program and whether it will truly exist next year or not. I
would appreciate some comments from our ... uh ... Ms. Hayashi regarding the current
status of Congress and CDBG, and whether or not it will actually exist-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --under the Department of Commerce.
CHAIR KANE: We will forward a question directly to her office, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: And we will get a response from Ms. Hayashi. Thank you. We have the
E-Tech presentation. Director Regan, if you have any opening remarks?
MR. REGAN: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: And provide us with a reference point, please.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The final program within the Office of the Mayor that we
would like to discuss this afternoon, with your permission, is the E-Tech program. With
us today to discuss the E-Tech program and its specific operating budget request for
Fiscal Year 2006 is Executive Assistant to Mayor Arakawa, Mr. David Ching, who I
believe is in the process of putting up his laptop computer to be able to continue with his
portion of the presentation. So Mr. Chair, if it's okay with you, I would like to tum over
discussion for this program to Mr. Ching.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, for your information, we have on details starting on
10-16 and I think onto 10-17 is where you will find the E-Tech program A and
B accounts and ... uh ... details. We will get to that point momentarily but in the
meantime, let's see E-Tech program is on--forgive me, members. E-Tech starts on 12-20
of your program. Good afternoon, Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair. I am David Ching, Executive Assistant to Mayor
Arakawa and also the project leader of the Mayor's E-Tech program. Thank you for
allowing me this time to be here. Thank you, Budget Committee Members. As the
leader of the Mayor's E-Tech program, I am going to take this opportunity to address you
with respect to the program's Fiscal Year 2005 activities and budget requirement requests
for Fiscal Year 2006. The broad objective of the E-Tech program has been to acquire
funding, plan, manage, and implement cross-departmental improvement projects using
high-technology solutions that are aimed at improving the delivery of efficiency and
services of specifically targeted County operations. E-Tech's staff has been acting much
like the CIO or CTO executive function of a large corporation, where departmental
boundaries and silos are bridged by the CIO or CTO in order to move enterprise-wide
high-tech improvement projects through to completion. Project management, funding,
contracting, and resource allocations are all controlled by E-Tech's staff. Chair, it's my
intent to provide you right now with a brief overview of the activities of Fiscal Year 2005
for E-Tech. I was going to run through each project. There are four specific projects. I
was gonna run through them all at once and then entertain questions. Or if you'd like, I
can run through one project, entertain questions, and then move on to another.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I think--and members, please, correct me if I'm wrong--but I think the
intent is for this body to understand first and foremost the $297,500 request for the
'06 proposal. You need to tie in what you are doing currently to tie it into what the next
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step is in your proposal. So as long as you do that, Mr. Ching, the Chair will provide you
the flexibility but please keep in mind that you need to show some connection to what
your $297,500 request is all about since it is for the most part just a one line called "other
services" in your details.
MR. CHING: Oh, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: So we would like you to give us the breakdown.
MR. CHING: I think it will go good if I just do as I intended. Right now, let me provide the
committee with a breakdown of the 2005 activities and funding for the E-Tech program,
and then it will slide right into 2006 appropriation. Altogether, I've had four Countywide
projects and program administration for the Fiscal Year 2005 to manage in the E-Tech
project. Project one is identified as E-Tech 1 (ET1) with the funding of approximately
$35,424 to complete two 400-sample Countywide tracking surveys that are held at least
six months apart. Okay. These surveys are of our resident satisfaction levels with
specific County services that the respondents have used during the prior twelve-month
period and also to identify our community's major areas of concerns and overall
satisfaction with living conditions in Maui County. This tracking survey has been
conducted at least once annually since the year 2001, and it's nonbiased results
concerning community identified issues have been consistent with other
community-based surveys; such as, Focus Maui Nui, Maui Voices, and the periodic
County Department of Housing community needs analysis. Of Fiscal Year 2005's two
surveys, one has been completed as of October 2004 and the second is about to take place
later on this month. The second project is entitled project ET3 and it was funded for
$35,000 to identify a software solution and implementation plan that would enable
County departments with infrastructure and other large fixed assets to track changes in
the financial valuations of those assets in order to report changes to the Department of
Finance for inclusion in annual County financial statements as required by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Decision 34 (GASB-34). This project is in the vendor
selection phase at this time and it should be completed by the end of third quarter,
calendar year 2005. Project three ...
CHAIR KANE: Before you go any further, you identified that as ET3, is it ET2?
MR. CHING: Chair, it's actually ET3. The numbers are out of sequence because there were
other projects that funding was requested for and they were not funded. So that's why
you see a skip in ... urn ... actually last year, ET2 was not funded activity.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Page 12-22.

And I am just referencing, members, on your program budget

MR. CHING: That's a mistake.
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CHAIR KANE: It specifically states ET2 and it was consistent with your verbal presentation.
So I am just making a note of the project numbers; how you presented them in writing;
and how you're presenting them now.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. The actual project numbering should have been corrected and
what I am presenting to you, in my testimony today, is what the true number should be.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. CHING: Project ET4 was actually funded through CIP bonds. It was not really a part of
the E-Tech specific budget last year but it was for a E-Tech managed project, which was
the completion of Phase II for the Human Resources, Payroll, and Time and Attendance
System project. This project was originally funded in Fiscal Year 2004 with an original
$600,000 appropriation for Phase I. It was kicked off with a selection of a software
solution and implementation vendor in March of 2004. An original timeline called for
completion of Phase I, where the projects two core modules, which are Human Resources
and Payroll were to be live Countywide by December 31, 2004. Once those two core
modules were live, Phase II would kick in and add on ... (end of tape, start 7A). .. for
employee self-service and manager's self-service, recruiting, training and development,
recruiting self-service, organizational charting, labor relations, and budgeting and
forecasting would be brought online and implemented throughout the first half of
calendar year 2005. As oftoday, Phase I is not complete; however, it is very, very nearly
complete. It will be complete by May 30,2005 and Phase II activities will commence
shortly thereafter.
The new anticipated completion of Phase II is the end of
September 2005. With respect to budgetary concerns, the project has been delayed by
approximately four months due to unforeseen circumstances but it is still on budget,
however, tenuous that may be. I am anticipating a slight need for additional funds in the
next fiscal year and you will see it in my budget request. The next project is titled ET6
and it was a funding of $8,000 for the development of a business continuity plan for our
County from primarily a technology perspective. This plan would inventory the
County's IT infrastructure; applied application's systems and data; it would then identify
the business recovery requirements of each system user or application user (departments,
for example, or divisions) in the event of a catastrophic happening; and define the
recovery resources and requirements needed to meet the business needs. I am working
... uh ... E-Tech is working very closely with MIS in this project. To date, a lot of the
initial activities have been placed on hold, primarily because of some of the additional
resource requirements required for our HR, Payroll project. We plan to carry this project
forward to Fiscal Year 2006 also. Lastly in 2005, our E-Tech program administration
costs were budgeted for $11,000 for general office operational costs (training, equipment,
travel, etc.) and staffing of$125,256. In Fiscal Year 2005, the total E-Tech program cost
excluded the bond funds of $535,000 was $214,680. Mr. Chair, would like me to move
on into the Fiscal Year 2006? Or shall I entertain questions?
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CHAIR KANE: Members, I would like him to connect it to this year's proposal. And if you
can, provide breakdown to help this 297,5 is going to connect into the projects that you
just highlighted that are not completed.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. The connection is real easy on this one. Members, the same
four projects that were the primary focus of last year E-Tech program are going to be the
same four projects that are the primary focus this year of E-Tech's program. However,
we intend to finish completely three out of the four programs. ETI, where we conduct
our annual customer satisfaction surveys, is meant to be an ongoing tracking survey. And
for lack of anywhere else for that tracking survey to go it's been continued year over year
in our E-Tech project. This project is designed to be continued from year to year in an
effort to provide a basis for analysis and improvement of day-to-day County operations
and as an indicator of specific community concerns. In Fiscal Year 2006, the program is
asking for $35,000 to continue that activity. Project ET3, where we have our GASB-34
infrastructure and fixed asset assessment, is asking for $200,000 in Fiscal Year 2006 to
actually acquire the software identified by the activities conducted in 2005, and to
implement that software Countywide by the end of Fiscal Year 2006. As for the HR,
Payroll project (Project ET4) ...
CHAIR KANE: Before you proceed, Mr. Pontanilla, your microphone?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. What was the amount for ET3 (the GASB)
200?
MR. CHING: $200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: $200,000. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Ching.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Let's proceed.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. The HR and Payroll System project is requesting an additional
$40,000 for anticipated excesses in implementation and modification costs for the
installation of our system and configuration of the system, and for additional knowledge
transfer to specific application support staff that we have requested as part of a system
support team to be housed in the Department of Personnel Services. Once the support
team is up and deployed and fully trained, it will be managed by the Department of
Personnel Services. Project ET6 (our business continuity plan), since it was not
completed or is not anticipated to be completed in this fiscal year, we are asking for funds
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to complete the project in Fiscal Year 2006 and that remains at $8,000 as it was in Fiscal
Year 2005. Once Project ET6 is complete, it will continue to be a joint venture of MIS
and E-Tech to manage throughout the rest of the organization. In terms of E-Tech's
program administration costs and staff salaries, we are asking for $14,500 for office
program and operational costs and we have asked for $132,725 for program salaries.
Total Fiscal Year 2006 appropriation request is $430,225. Mr. Chair, I'd like to entertain
questions at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we will go ahead and open it up and, members, I will ask that
you provide each member with a fair opportunity at the lines of questioning ... and that
because we are going to schedule for 6:30 for reconvening of this meeting, that I would
ask that we go no later than 5:30 in this area. So I hope that we can focus in on this area
and try to get as best as you can to help us make a decision in this program. And I'll
open the floor with Mr. Hokama and we'll just move right down and finish up with
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me be the first to say I am one of
great disappointment with this program. I bought into SERV, the whole line and sinker,
and I had a colleague from Upcountry who had suggested to me that maybe we need to
take baby steps instead of trying to fly. Well, I thought maybe flying might have been
nice but I was proved wrong once. Last year, I bought into "we can finish by
December 31 st" and so you burned me twice. Well, not again. You know, last year you
guys had $215,000 and now you want $430,000 this year; and yet, you still do not make
the marks. I going tell you now, I have no confidence in you guys to perform, no
confidence. You set your own deadlines and you guys failed to make that deadline. So
what is the problem with the HR, Payroll being fully implemented right now? Is it
departments not cooperating with one another? What is it? I am still signing manual
timesheets. I thought we were supposed to get rid of that.
MR. CHING: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: It was never the intent of the project to be fully complete and implemented with
respect to HR, Payroll by December 31, 2005 ... uh . . . 2004. It was . . . and it was
communicated to this, to the entire County, it was to be completed as of Phase I, which
included the County being live on the Human Resources and Payroll modules (the core
modules). From those core modules being implemented, we were then to start rolling out
additional modules and the self-service aspects of the application. Nowhere ... nowhere
did we indicate that it was the intent of the entire project to be completed by
December 31, 2004. We managed to hit just about every single benchmark, just about
every single milestone, with respect to bringing the two core modules live on the 31 st of
December or by the 31 st of December 2004. In fact, we succeeded with the personnel or
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the HR module. It was live since November of 2004. We did have and we ... uh ...
where we did not make it on our timeline was the implementation or the goal live of the
Payroll module of the application. And it was not for lack of effort by the project core
team. It was not for lack of effort by everyone involved in the project. It was not even
for lack of performance by our vendor or the software. We did have a number of
unforeseen circumstances that has happened with respect to the payroll area and to staff
that has prevented us from moving forward and deploying the payroll module live.
Those hurdles have been, we hope, completely jumped and we are at the point now that
we can deploy the system live. We are electing to go live with the May 15 th paycheck.
So everyone's May 15 th paycheck should be or have been processed with the core payroll
module of our new system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Hearing that, I can tell you ... I don't feel to be supportive. I'm
done, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I guess it's for ET6 (the
business continuity planning). Mr. Ching, you referenced that you are working closely
with MIS in this particular area, yeah. When MIS appeared before this committee, they
in fact talked about the same program. Is this a duplication of their effort because both
referenced the need to protect data, County data and information in times of disaster,
which is a similar target of this particular program. So the question goes back to
duplication of another service and why not let the MIS handle this particular project
because you weren't able to complete it with the prior allocation?
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Mateo, if I may? The MIS project that you heard about earlier in the week
was for a backup physical installation system. It wasn't for software or business process
investigation. It was for physically .... equipment and construction of a facility.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: So, there is not redundancy in these.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So this program is actually to protect the software part of it?
MR. CHING: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: It actually all ties together. And it's a much greater picture than just individual
projects ... uh ... paint. E-Tech has been working hard trying to fill in like the
executive management role for a lot of these projects that cross departments. I need to
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work or E-Tech needs to work closely with MIS to make sure that all of the needs of the
departments (different departments) are met, and that the security for our data and for our
applications are also met, and that's what our continuity planning will do. Together we
need to plan it--the steps we need to take to recover in case there is a disaster; things we
can do to mitigate the effects of a disaster--and we just can't do that apart. We need to do
that together, so that's what E-Tech provides.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So then at this particular point, the progress ofthe MIS needs to
develop the structure and your need to develop the components to preserve the
information and the data, are you kind of like then kind of like in tune with each other so
that your need and your need gets met at about the same time?
MR. CHING: Exactly. We're exactly in tune.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And your ability to work on this program to move it forward so
it is consistent with what MIS has projected, you are online, timetable-wise?
MR. CHING: As far as Fiscal Year 2005, no; we are not. As far as moving forward into Fiscal
Year 2006, yes; we will be.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And what's going to be the difference in 2006 that will bring
this program up to par when prior you could not?
MR. CHING: I'll tell you what the biggest hurdle has been--and I hope you folks can all
understand this--and it's unfortunate that Member Hokama isn't here.
CHAIR KANE: He'll hear about it. Don't worry about it.
MR. CHING: The HR, Payroll project has been a very, very complex and involved project. It
has required much greater participation from staff than was ever dreamed of. It's been
incredible. I mean, you know, I kind of take it personal. I feel hurt here. We've given
up weekends, holidays, nighttime, we've given up everything to make this project work.
And I don't know what communications have come down to make ... to have an
impression that this project's failed. We've made great strides. We are ... the benefits
that we will bring this County--by just completing the HR, Payroll portion--is incredible.
It's truly incredible what we will save this County. But we never anticipated--in fact, you
know what, I have a document here that I can share with you. It just has ... maybe staff
would like to make copies. I didn't make enough copies to hand out, but here are just
some things that we've had to go through just for the HR, Payroll project alone. We've
created over 400 department definitions in this system; 161 user calculations;
29,054 work rule time code definitions; 1,800 work rule records--we've had to take that
from seven different bargaining unit contracts--5,405 wage scale step records;
13,710 time scheduling shift pattern detail records. I mean it goes on and on. I mean,
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we've got so much that we've worked through that the project has compiled over
48.7 gigabytes of project data. Okay, this is--outside of the system database or the
application itself--this is 48.7 gigabytes of project data. That is equivalent ... if you take
your proposed budget in front of you (one of those books), that's equivalent to 5,598 of
those things. I mean we have worked diligently to make this happen. It's going to
happen. It is very complex.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ching, I'm going to interject. The Chair recognizes your frustration with
the proceedings, but I need you to stick to this task that we have before us and I need you
to respond concisely to questions that are asked so that we can get through. We are
providing you with the opportunity to convince the members of the importance of this.
So if you can please help us with that and we will leave the personal things for when we
adjourn this meeting or recess this meeting and then we'll deal with those personal things
on a personal level; but for now, we need to remove those things and we need to proceed
forward with the business at hand, please.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And Mr. Mateo, I'll give you the floor. Mr. Ching, if you can please, we'll
provide Mr. Mateo an opportunity to ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I'll pass on my question. Mr. Ching has provided
... will provide us with information on, I guess, on these components. So I will wait
until the distribution of that materials and I'll pass.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Mr. Molina, any questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, I think Mr. Ching answered my question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla, anything at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. A request from, I guess Mr. Ching, in regards to
timeline schedule as well as a, you know, a flowchart on how this thing is going to be ...
how it's going to work. I can understand the frustration because coming from my
previous job, we've done the same thing as far as having timesheets online and it's not
easy ... not easy. So yeah, I can understand your frustration. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Carroll, any questions at this time? Members, the Chair
has just a few questions, if I may proceed? Mr. Ching, under the ET3 GASB-34
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component of the proposal, in your open remarks, you stated that out of the 297,500,
200,000 would be incorporated here. Is that correct, first?
MR. CHING: Chair, thank you very much. I apologize for ... uh ... members, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Don't worry about it, Mr. Ching.
MR. CHING: Thank you. Yes, I've indicated that we're requesting $200,000 for the actual
acquisition of the software solution and the implementation funds to get the software
installed and then deployed Countywide.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So my questions would revolve around ... urn ... I am reading from the
program 12-22 that the Phase I (assessment of needs and identification of possible
solutions) is set to be completed by March 31, 2005. Your $200,000 is meant to
complete that Phase I? And if not, please correct me. It's meant ... you represented it
be completed by the end of '06, which would be June of 2006. And so I am trying to see
if that correlates in that, in this case, you are--based on your comments--behind by five
quarters? And if not, please clarify the difference between what is listed in the ET3
GASB-34, what we have there, as ... and from your verbal comments.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. Correct. The intent of E-Tech prior to fully recognizing the
resource requirements of the Human Resources and Payroll project was to complete the
initial assessment and plan by the 31 st of March 2005. That was not possible because of
the requirements of the HR, Payroll project. That's not to say that the project isn't
moving forward. It is moving forward. It is in the vendor selection stage right now and
we should be able to complete that plan by the end of June or July of this year. The funds
that we are asking for, for Fiscal Year 2006--which are $200,000--is actually for the
acquisition of the software that that plan will provide us.
CHAIR KANE: And that is not described here. So I will ask that you provide, in writing, the
justification for the $200,000, Mr. Ching. If you can, please.
MR. CHING: Certainly.
CHAIR KANE: Since I don't think any of us have anything in writing to justify that $200,000.
So if you can, we'll have that question sent to you, Mr. Ching. And then, finally, under
the ET4--and just to get clarity--on that Page 12-23, it reads "Phase I was completed in
Q1 of '05, which is by March. This is where you made the note that it actually was
completed in November of '04 or was that just the HR, the Department of Personnel
component? Do you see where I'm coming from? Are you on the same page as me,
Mr. Ching?
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. I am now.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. CHING: I ... uh ... yeah, I apologize.
CHAIR KANE: This is what we get, Mr. Ching, yeah. This is where we get our guidance on to
the proposal. So you need to understand that this is what we're following and we are
trying to correlate it to your oral comments to us this evening. So I am trying to verify
... or make the connection between what you said and what is before us in writing.
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. And I understand where you're coming from. When the
documentation for the budget was put together and sent down, Phase I was intended to be
complete. It would have been complete but we had a last minute resignation by our key
payroll person that prevented it from being complete. And we ... urn ... so that
statement was intended to be correct; however, it is not. We will be live with payroll-CHAIR KANE: May 15th.
MR. CHING: --May 15,2005.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. I see that. And that ... you stated that $40,000 of the $297,500,
$40,000 is intended to ... I'll term it as ''wrap up loose ends and close it out" as far as
this project. Is that correct?
MR. CHING: Correct, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And that $40,000 specifically is going to be ... what specific components of
this area are needed to have this closed up? Since you're saying that we're going live
May 15th paycheck, what additional work in this area ofET4 needs to be ... uh ... needs
the additional $40,000 to wrap it up?
MR. CHING: Chair, I anticipate that this delay in going live with the payroll module will cost us
an additional $20,000 and that's where half of the request is targeted. It may cost a little
more. It may cost a little less, depending upon what we do with our Phase II
implementation and how well that goes. As for the other half of the funds requested, that
is targeted for the really detailed knowledge transfer that's going to be required to be
given to the application support personnel once they come on board and once they begin
training. It is going to be fairly intense and ... urn . . . it's going to require a lot of
participation from the vendors, so that's where those funds are coming from.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Ching, thank you for your comments. Are there any additional
questions, members? Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chainnan, you know, I knew I couldn't have been too off base
regarding my analysis of this program. On December 8, 2004, Chainnan, happy to put it
on the record "we are going live with a new Human Resources, Payroll system on
January 1, 2005". What will happen on January 15 th , following the new payroll process?
Premiums for the January st to the 15 th pay period will be paid on the January 31 st
paycheck, with a one-month lag versus a two-week lag. It's still not happening. Go back
to the minutes. Verbatim. March 17,2004, Mr. Ching: "Mr. Chair, the original project
estimation was $600,000, and that was prior to us actually doing all the assessments and
going out and looking for someone to ... that could meet our requirements Countywide.
So in last year's budget allocation, not knowing any better, we went .. .(end of tape,
start 7B) . .. forward with a request for $600,000, and that had been based on a best guess
by one of our, oh well, I should say our current payroll vendor." My statement: "How
confident are you that this now additional $530,000 will be able to complete the project
objectives? I would not like to see you come back next year for another half million
dollars." Mr. Ching: "I am very confident that this project will be on time, on target, and
we will probably, if I have my way, we'll be under budget." Verbatim. And people
cannot understand my disappointment! I'm going on what they've been telling us,
Chainnan, their targets. This is a two ... when did we start this--2003? Spring of2003?
You know what would happen if we were in a private sector, we would be seeing new
faces.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions, members? Hearing none. Members, the Chair is going to
recess this meeting until 6:30. And before we do that, I want to thank Mr. Regan,
Mr. Taylor and Mr. Ching for their presence here this evening. Members, if there are any
further questions in this area, we ask that you pose them in writing to our staff and we'll
make sure that it gets to the department for timely response. We will be reconvening at
6:30 in continuation with the Department of Water under CIP. Members, this committee
stands in recess until 6:30 p.m. . .. (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

5:28 p.m.

RECONVENE:

6:38 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. Good evening, members. This meeting is reconvened. Hope you
all had an opportunity to get some fonn of nourishment before this evening's session.
Members, the Chair's intent is that we will have one session and hopefully we can
conclude regardless of where we're at, at about 8:30, so that we can come back and start
the day again tomorrow. That's the latest.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I thought we were going to be operations afterwards?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah .... (chuckled) ...
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CHAIR KANE: There you go. '" (chuckled) . .. Members, we left off on your program
budget, Page No. 25-68. And that is where we're gonna talk about the, I believe, the
Waikapu component. And so if you have all your information (relevant information)
from the Water Department, I believe they gave us several handouts, so if we can all have
that ready. With that, Ms. Taomoto, good evening.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. Starting with Waikapu Well, this project is for land ... this
funding is for land acquisition of $40,000 and well development construction of
$800,000. This well will ... um ... is for distribution of the lao Aquifer withdrawals
and involves the installation of a deep well pump and associated communications
telemetry at the existing Waikapu Well site ... well and tank site.
CHAIR KANE: The 800 is for development, 40 is for land acquisition, you said?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. To the division, can you tell us--regarding some
information regarding the developer's contribution, please--how was that contribution
arrived at and what kind of dollars are we talking about, please?
CHAIR KANE: Director.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. With respect to this Waikapu Well, we don't anticipate any
developer contributions unless that question was ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm just reading off of your project description. I'm looking at
lao Source Development - Waikapu Well - Land Acquisition and Well Development.
Install deep well pump and telemetry to lift water to Wailuku Heights. Partial developer
contribution. Is this a ... ?
MR. TENGAN: Is that off of ... uh ... 25-68?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm looking at Attachment 2.
MR. TENGAN: Oh, I see.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Attachment 2, Page 2 of 5, the last 25-68, lao Source Development.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
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MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. As I stated earlier, I don't believe there's going to be any developer
contributions with respect to this well. Maybe the comment there is erroneous.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn't Stanford Carr trying to work out one agreement with you folks?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, but that's in replacement for the Wailuku Shaft. Unless someone on staff
knows something that I don't know of. I'm not aware that we're in negotiations with
Stanford Carr to participate in the development of this well.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And nothing as far as contributions from either the Waiolani
Pikake or Waiolani Mauka projects, are they contributing any type of assistance for some
kind of share to ensure water for their projects?
MR. TENGAN: Their participation will be primarily in the storage. Okay, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean it's kind of curious, Mr. Director. I mean someone made it a
point to write this sentence.
MR. TENGAN: Well, let me clarify that. It says here, developer provided booster pump,
controls, and pipelines. So that is not a direct contribution to the development of the
well.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Which developer are we talking about, please, Mr. Director, that
provided booster pump, controls, and pipeline?
MR. TENGAN: This ... yeah, I guess the way it's worded, it sounds like ... uh ... it's in past
tense but this statement was written in the future tense. It's in the sense that the
developer still hasn't done anything to construct and put in place the booster pump,
controls, and pipeline. And it's probably going to be Stanford Carr. As I see the project,
this booster pump station will be needed to pump the water from the Waikapu Well up to
the Wailuku Heights system but that hasn't been done yet.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Plus under, you know, I'm just moving along the line. We
have project title, we have description, justification, and remarks. On your remarks
column, Department, it states that there is a development design contract for slightly
under $90,000 done in November 2002. I wasn't aware that this project is this old. So
can you give us some understanding? I mean, obviously, almost three years ago,
someone in your department entered into a contract.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The Waikapu Well development design contract amount of
$89,870 is a contract we have to prepare the construction plans to install the permanent
pump, telemetry, et cetera. It is true that I think that contract was done sometime in the
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year 2002 and the reason for the delay, between now and completion of the design
contract, is that the site where we need to acquire the additional space to install the
infrastructure was subject to a foreclosure and that only got resolved in late '04. And at
this time, we're ... now that it, that is resolved and we know who the landowner is who,
I guess, purchased the foreclosure property, we have commenced with negotiations to
expand the existing Waikapu tank site.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So who is the current landowner?
MS. TAOMOTO: It's Herb Ushiroda.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Our Maui Herb Ushiroda?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The one on Maui.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is this a needed contribution from Carr Development to move
on with their Wailuku Project District?
MS. TAOMOTO: The statement, I believe, that is in that remarks column "developer provided"
which should be "would provide", is ... urn ... from my recollection, came about ... I
think Stanford Carr is proposing a development, which would obtain its water from
Waikapu Well. And in order to do so, they would need to install a booster pump station
to boost that water from W aikapu Well to Wailuku Heights' tank, like George stated. If
they don't ... I mean and it's up to Stanford Carr if they are going to proceed with the
development or not to proceed, but that is not really connected to our well development.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Then what about the Spencer project in Waikapu? I pretty
much remember--and the other members can recall--that they were gonna pay some kind
of contribution to another developer to take care some of their water requirements.
Whether it be for a storage tank or part of a booster pump or whatever it be, I am pretty
sure I heard both the father and the son of the Spencer's family, stating that they were
providing financial support for water requirements. Is this part of that?
MS. TAOMOTO: That is not part of the Waikapu Well development. I believe that is part of
this "developer provide the booster pump station" should those developers decide to go
along with their projects but the Waikapu Well development--taking away all the
developers--is just a well development project. The development (the Carr, the Spencer
projects) came after the idea to drill ... or after the drilling of the Waikapu Well.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Aquifers?

Is it because of the designation and the concern of the Waihee

MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. The well was originally drilled to spread the pumping of the lao
Aquifer, and so that's what we are doing now. We want to complete that project so we
can spread the pumping and additionally, it will provide the capability for us to divorce
ourselves from the Wailuku Shaft.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: To provide further clarification on the requirements for the Spencer project,
Spencer is supposed to get together with Nunokawa and another project in the area. It's
Kehalani, I think. Between the three of them they're supposed to provide another tank to
provide storage for their projects. That's the only water requirement that Spencer has.
Aside from that, he would have to pay all of the water system development fee-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: --which would include the source and the transmission.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And there's nowhere in your matrix of CIP projects regarding that
tank? Is that thing gonna be your ... the Department's tank or an independently-owned
tank?
MR. TENGAN: No, they would construct the tank and ... or at least provide the funding and
tum it over to the Department for operation and maintenance.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. When you can, I would appreciate a bird's eye or a site map
for the Waikapu Well, please, you know, some ... some, so I can get some general
location understanding. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I recognize anybody else, Mr. Tengan, this Waikapu
Well, is this the one that had the test site right below Wailuku Heights and you guys had
the big tower over there and I called and asked you guys about that because people in
Wailuku Heights were complaining about what is that?
MR. TENGAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Is that ... ?
MR. TENGAN: That's correct, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So this is the one ...
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MR. TENGAN: So it's right off ofWaiko Road-CHAIR KANE: Right. Yeah, yeah.
MR. TENGAN: --on the dirt portion, mauka of where the Piltz's live.
CHAIR KANE: When you're going up Kuikahi, right before you reach Wailuku Heights, there
.
.
IS a reservOlr-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --on the Waikapu side of the reservoir, in that old pineapple field.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Right there, right below the perimeter of the ... of Wailuku Heights.
MR. TENGAN: Oh, no. This ...
CHAIR KANE: That's where the well is, and which is close to Waiko Road, which is the top of
Waiko Road. Is that the one?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: That's the one we had that temporary tower there.
MR. TENGAN: It's right offofWaiko Road.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, yeah. By the old Steve Knox property?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Don't you have a tank way at the top ofWaiko?
MR. TENGAN: Uh ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's the tank, right?
MR. TENGAN: Yeah, that's the tank.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Chairman.

Okay, I know the area.

CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you need a site map?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no. I know ... now, I am very clear of where it's at.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Yeah. That's why I brought it up, so that way we can avoid getting ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions on this particular one, members? Okay. Let's
move, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The next project is the Naska Baseyard Improvements
Roof Repair. The Naska Baseyard is our Department's main baseyard, where our
maintenance workers report to. It is located in Naska, Kahului. The roof on the
... uh ... one of the buildings blew off during a severe storm in January 2004 and since
then, it has not been repaired and it is left open with just the rafters exposed. This
funding will allow us to replace the roof as well as improve the interior for disability,
American Disabilities Act, which means we're gonna redo the bathrooms for handicap
access. There is, I believe, one bathroom that is ... two bathrooms that is gonna be
renovated into one bathroom to accommodate that, and this was triggered by the dollar
value from our recollection.
CHAIR KANE: And for clarity, this is . . . when you going, driving to the airport on the
right-hand side?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. Driving to the airport on the right-hand side, where the entrance to the
State Department of Transportation is.
CHAIR KANE: Right after the A&B property, where the hotel-MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --project was approved. Members, any questions in this area? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. The property is State land, yeah, where this
is at? Will the County be in the process of negotiating the lease any time soon? Because
I'm just kind of ... this is what--about a $600,000 project, right?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct. Our request is for $600,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the intentions of the Department is to stay there a while
then, right? So it's not like we're gonna pack our bags and go elsewhere in the near
future, right?
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MS. TAOMOTO: We have a lease with the State.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And how long is that for?
MS. TAOMOTO: Do you know, George?
MR. TENGAN: That's somewhat of an issue. Several years ago, the State was required by FAA
to charge its tenants the fair market value for the properties that they lease out. In the
meantime, the Department had some water building issues with the Airports Division,
and so, anyway, that has been unresolved and the lease amount has been unresolved. The
Department originally acquired permission to use the site through an executive order as I
understand and there was no rent to pay. But now, if the State was to enforce the
requirements of FAA, then the Department would have to pay like ... uh ... I thought it
was in the area of $70,000 a year to use that land. So we've been kind of keeping that
issue under the rug so to speak. ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, enough said. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then, you know, since we've been ... I'm not sure if we've already
made a decision on the executive order of the Puunene acreage, Mr. Chairman; but would
that, would it make better planning for you in your need of ... uh ... in the future too to
relocate to the Puunene site if ... uh ... the situation at Kahului Airport may be tenuous
at best and ...
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chairman. Aside from that lease value issue, the Kahului site--in my
opinion--is a good site and if you take away the tsunami issue also. The site is very
centrally located. There's access to all of the major highways on the island. We can go
to Upcountry. We can go to PaialHaiku. We can go to Lahaina. We can go to
Kahului/Wailuku from this site. If we were to relocate to Puunene, then we would have
to ... if we had to go to Up country, we would have to backtrack all the way back to
Kahului and then go up to Upcountry or wherever we needed to go. So in my mind, the
Kahului site is a very good site in that it's centrally located. We have easy access to all
the main highways on the island and we can serve the people better from that site.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What's your square footage of that building that's being improved
upon, please?
MR. TENGAN: I would estimate that it's maybe close to 3,000 square feet.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: A 3,000 square foot building and $600,000 for improvements in
roof.
MR. TENGAN: Yeah. The whole roofing structure has to be redone. The rafters and the
trusses are all dry rotted.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So when does it come a point it's cheaper to build a new building
than do improvements to the old building?
MR. TENGAN: Urn ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I am assuming you folks did a structural assessment then, from an
engineer?
MR. NAKAMURA: Mr. Chair. We had hired GYA Architects to look at this whole situation
and evaluate what would be the best alternative as far as repairing of this building. When
they did the assessment, they determined that for one thing with the amount of work that
needed to be done on the roof, you know if you have to do so much repair on a particular
structure then--if it exceeds a certain point--then you're subject to ADA requirements and
all of that, so that's what triggered all these other things in here. In addition to that,
talking to the folks that actually use the building, they were also interested in extending
some of the eaves out a little further and redoing some other modification to that, that
would allow the operations of the department (trucks and whatever they use it for) to be a
better use of ... uh ... as far as the building is concerned. So all of this all ... all added
in and enhanced the cost.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I can appreciate Mr. Molina; $600,000 is a lot of money.
And if you just need a structure that's basically storing things and whatnot--I mean I
don't know what is inside the building. It's not like you need what ... a lot ofinterior--is
it offices besides equipment and supplies?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. There is one office, our plant ops, a portion of our ... what I think
is our plant ops and then the remainder is storage for our materials. And ... urn ... yeah,
what I stated.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I'm just like Mr. Molina; $600,000 is a lot of money.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? Hearing none. North Waihee Source
Development projects. Members, before we get into the descriptions, if the Department
can provide a specific breakdown for the scheduled projects and how ... what portions of
the FY '06 breakdown for land acquisition, design, construction, and development
design, as well as exploratory well drilling. If you can have those itemized for this body,
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we would appreciate that. Because it has Kupaa Well (transmission construction);
Maluhia Well (exploratory well drilling, land acquisition, development design); Waiolai
Well. So you have three projects over a five-year period, so if you can be more specific in
the breakdown.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes, Mr. Chair. Looking ... I assume you folks are looking at the project
sheet on Page 25-71.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
MS. TAOMOTO: Under ... I want to just point out the corrections. The ... under description
and justification, "Develop source ... " and then going to the second sentence,
"Scheduled projects in FY '06 include" and it is Kupaa Well (transmission--delete the
word "and"--construction); Maluhia Well (exploratory drilling, land acquisition--strike
the word "development design and transmission design" and also strike the project
"Waiolai Well (preliminary study and land acquisition)."
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That whole project is wiped out?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes. That was moved to our Fiscal Year '07.
CHAIR KANE: So how much of the money in the FY '06 proposal is also going to get wiped
out, since you just scratched out-MS. TAOMOTO: No, the dollar ...
CHAIR KANE: --half of your project.
MS. TAOMOTO: The table on the bottom is correct, not necessarily correct, so I'll give you the
corrections on that also. So moving to the table and then I'll give you the actual three
projects breakdown. Let's correct ... I'll correct the table first.
CHAIR KANE: Before you move on, so Waiolai ... the Waiolai Well is not going to be on the
project for '06, so you're gonna give us two, correct?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: No, actually, there are three dollar values that I am going to give you.
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CHAIR KANE: No, but two projects we're talking about.
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Go ahead.
MS. TAOMOTO: On the table under land acquisition FY '06, that should be 250; under design
Fiscal Year '06, that 250 should be deleted, not ... should be blank; under construction
Fiscal Year '06, that should be 1,200, not 700; and going down three lines, under other
(development design) Fiscal Year '06, that 150 should be striked out; and the total is
correct.
CHAIR KANE: So the one million ... what is it, SRF?
MS. TAOMOTO: That is the DLNR grant that you approved in Fiscal Year '05.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And that is for the exploratory well drilling?
MS. TAOMOTO: For Maluhia Well, correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And we would still like to have it in writing from your Department,
please. Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay. And if you guys want to just jot down that the Kupaa--then I'm gonna
go ... now I'm going to go back to Attachment 2, Page 2 of 5, and read the project
description starting with Kupaa Well. North Waihee Source Development, Kupaa Well,
Transmission from Well Site to System, construction, that dollar amount is 1,200. That is
to construct 4,000 feet of 24-inch pipe between the Kupaa Well and the Kanoa Well area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You mean, $1.2 million?
MS. TAOMOTO: Sorry. Yeah, we want $1.2 million.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I was thinking you can do ... I give you plenty more
money if you can do it for $1,200.
MS. TAOMOTO: I just ... (chuckled) ... I'm just using the numbers we use on the project
sheet. ... (chuckled) . .. Sorry--$l.2 million.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES: Sign me up .... (chuckled) ...
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MS. TAOMOTO: And this project is in conjunction with the Kupaa Well project, which will
distribute withdrawal of the aquifer and also increase availability and reliability of source
for Central Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's cover the second one as well--the Maluhia Well.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Maluhia Well, exploratory well drilling, construction.
This project is $1 million. That's the DLNR grant (Department of Land and Natural
Resources grant) that was approved in Fiscal Year '05. This project ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Where is that on your matrix, please? Which one is that on your
matrix?
MS. TAOMOTO: Attachment 2.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Bottom of Page 2?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes. 25-71, bottom of Page 2.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Where it says "will encumber", Mr. Hokama. It says over there "DLNR grant".
Right in the far bottom right-hand comer.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: $1 million.
VIC IE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: The Maluhia Well project is to drill an exploratory well to investigate the
potential of the area on the North side of Makamakaole Gulch. The project is currently
... urn ... we are currently looking for a well site. Being that this is a DLNR grant,
which we have secured, it's not going to lapse. So we are still working as we said
... (end of tape, start 8A) . .. acquisition on Page 3, first item is $250,000 and that is to
acquire the site.
CHAIR KANE: Status ofland acquisition, Mr. Tengan?
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MS. TAOMOTO: As I stated, we are still looking for another site since the land acquisition
... uh ... the owner that we tried to negotiate the well site for failed. Weare going to
look for alternate sites and I am going to send another letter for his reconsideration.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members ... ?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question on that one, please.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does the State, by chance, own any land in that area that may be
useable for the Department's needs and then we can maybe do an intergovernmental
agreement?
MS. TAOMOTO: Not that we're aware of. The State did visit the site to ... actually, they were
wanting to drill a well and was unable to come to a site, so that's why they gave us the
money. So I don't think there is a site.
VICIE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (chuckled) . .. I didn't mean to laugh. It's like a lot of other
State things here "give it to the County". Okay, thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions in this area? Members, we have the three items--Page 2 and
30f5. The 1,200 Kupaa Well--oh, excuse me--the 1.2 million; and then for Maluhia
Well, the million dollars grant as well as the 250 for land acquisition. I think on the
additional document that was provided to us, it's No.4 on their priority list.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Mr. Chairman, if! may ask our Engineer a question, please?
CHAIR KANE: Continue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What kind of size are we talking about--Iand acquisition and
$250,000? One acre? Half an acre?
MS. TAOMOTO: Normally, for a well site with a control building or ____, it's usually
about a half an acre, 20,000 somewhat square foot.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Square feet. And normally they are
Conservation District lands? Would that be a pretty good ... ?

III

either Agricultural or

MS. TAOMOTO: Normally, not in Conservation ... but try not to go into Residential due to the
noise, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The value, yeah, the cost of the land?
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MS. TAOMOTO: The cost and the noise, too.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To drill?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, of the facility.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: By the pump, itself?
MS. TAOMOTO: It will have big noise.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: So normally it's in Agriculture or above residential areas, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this 250 for a half acre, does that include right-of-ways and
easements also? Or is this just for half an acre of land?
MS. TAOMOTO: When we acquire a parcel for a well site, it is negotiated with access and
utility electrical easements. Once we secure the site and get the appraisal, we will
include an appraisal for the site acquisition and associated easements necessary to
develop that site.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: And this is just our best guess of what we think we might need because we
really don't know where the land value is going in that area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. I'm just ... again, I'm just making a note that we requested a revision
from the Department to specifically identify what we just discussed, yeah, since it's
gonna be significantly different from what was originally given to us in the budget,
program budget.
Okay.
Moving on to Waihee Waterline Replacement ...
Replacements--excuse me.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair.
"replacement" .

The Waihee Waterline Replacement should be singular,

CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: It includes ... go to Attachment 2, second item, Halewaiu & Wailipohaku
Roads, and Papaku & Kaihamu Place. It's ... uh ...
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. TAOMOTO: This ... (chuckled) ... sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: A pretty good job. '" (chuckled) . . . Pretty good job.
MS. TAOMOTO: We are requesting $50,000 for design funds. The total project includes
installation of 1,650 feet of 8-inch and 550 feet of 6-inch ductile iron pipe to replace the
old 2 Y2-inch and 3-inch lines on the subject streets. It also includes installation of
approximately 6 fire hydrants and 41 water service laterals existing.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Questions, members? Halewaiu, Wai .. , Waiili .. , ... (chuckled) ...
Wailipohaku, Papaku ... (chuckled) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wilipohaku.
CHAIR KANE: Although you get Papaku on one and you get Pakaku on another one.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because in the book, Chairman, it's Wilipohaku.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. So Wilipohaku, Pakaku and Kaihamu. So we'll figure it out, I guess.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One question for-CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --the Department, please.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: With all the technology, ductile is still the best material for this type
of project? I mean that's been around for many, many decades; maybe it's almost as old
as the Director.
MS. TAOMOTO: Ductile iron--that's why we're going to use it again because it is as old as the
Director. ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. TAOMOTO: It's proven!
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But seriously, I mean, with all our technology and advancements in
materials, that is still-MS. TAOMOTO: Our preferred ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --a preferred material for this type of programs?
MS. TAOMOTO: The engineers in our office have been approached to consider alternate pipe
materials and we are still confident that ductile iron is the best choice for the Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No kidding?
MS. TAOMOTO: And this is not coming really all from the engineers, it is coming from our
field personnel.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's kind of interesting to know. So that ... so is it more of a cost
matter, no? It's the dependability of the material to perform under operational situations?
Is that the driving force to keep using this material?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct. Yeah, it's not the cost. The cost is a little bit higher than what you
would call plastic pipe, but it is ... urn ... we pay that cost because it proves ... urn ...
in the field, it performs in the field longer than our experience with plastic pipe.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good to know. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Additional questions in this area, members? Moving on, Ms. Taomoto.
MR. TENGAN: ... (inaudible) . ..
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, he said Ms. Taomoto? I thought he said Mr. Hokama. Sorry. The next
project is the Wailuku Waterline Improvements, and there are changes to the project
sheet that I would like to go over now. Items 1,2,3 and 4 should be stricken. They were
moved to Fiscal Year '07 due to lack of funding. And so we are left with Items 5 and 6.
Piihana Road Waterline Improvements, construct 1,850 feet of 6-inch and 8-inch ductile
iron line and 3 fire hydrants. That is $251,000.
CHAIR KANE: Say that again ... one more time.
MS. TAOMOTO: $251,000. Two five one.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For the Piihana Road Waterline Improvement?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
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CHAIR KANE: And that is for design, or construction, or both?
MS. TAOMOTO: Construction.
CHAIR KANE: Construction, okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Do you want me to discuss that project or move ... uh ... correct the sheet?
CHAIR KANE: Move onto the Vineyard Street-MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --and then we'll open it up.
MS. TAOMOTO: The Vineyard Street waterline construction of 2,750 feet of 12-inch ductile
iron pipe and 9 hydrants is $503,000. Five zero three zero, zero, zero.
CHAIR KANE: That's construction?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct. Going down to the table and I'm going to give the values in
thousands of dollars, dollars in thousands. The 60,000 under Fiscal Year 2006 design,
design Fiscal Year 2006, 60,000 should be stricken and added to the prior appropriation
number to come out with a number of $306,000. Three zero six.
CHAIR KANE: Wow.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Three one six.
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, sorry. Three one six.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait, wait, wait, wait, wait, wait.
CHAIR KANE: Under construction, you have a number of 694 there. You're gonna add the
60 to that to give you the 754 figure? You're in '06, right? Not in prior appropriations,
right?
MS. TAOMOTO: The 60 should be moved in prior.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Back one column.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Moved back to add to the prior.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's three one six?
MS. TAOMOTO: But ... huh? Three one six. And the ... uh ... moving to the next line,
construction, under Fiscal Year 2006, that number should be 754,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, okay; I got it. Thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And members, before I open the floor, same thing here--Ms. Taomoto--from
the Department, Mr. Tengan, we want a revision sent in writing as how the program is
shown. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Does that mean new project sheets?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Substitute for-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUINCILMEMBER TAVARES: --in the binders?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUINCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So we can substitute and have a clean look at what we're looking at.
MS. TAOMOTO: Can I ...
CHAIR KANE: And we're doing it because you folks are making significant changes to what
has been submitted to us so ... although the numbers are the same, generally, all the
project descriptions are not the same.
MS. TAOMOTO: Can I clarify ... correct something that I just stated?
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CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
MS. TAOMOTO: In the Fiscal Year design column, that 60,000 should have been 50,000, so it
is 306 ... because that's what I have on my ... urn ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, make note. And again, please reflect that in the substitute.
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct. Yeah, I will.
CHAIR KANE: And we'd like that respectfully we would like that pronto, please. Okay, the
floor is open. Any questions on the Wailuku waterline improvements?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One question, please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding Piihana Road. Is Piihana Road, are we talking about from
Kimura Market in toward ... uh ... towards Kahului Harbor way?
MS. TAOMOTO: We ... we, this project ... urn ... this begins where a cemetery ... uh ...
there's a cemetery as you go quite a ways down Piihana Road.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, way inside.
MS. TAOMOTO: On the left.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: It starts there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: And it goes down where it appears to be a private road, it goes down there.
It's kind of a dirt road-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: --and ends at the end, where the last house is. So from where the graveyard
(cemetery) is-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: --it goes down a dirt road and ends where the homes are.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So all of the homes along the macadamized area, that has already
been improved or ... ?
MS. TAOMOTO: Is adequate.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's adequate. So with this, knowing the status of the old line, where
all the houses are on the paved road there--I'm assuming with good pressure just like
when you do bypass, you're not gonua blow the line someplace else, right? I know ...
and I just stating, George, I know this area real, real well. Okay. So I know this area
since the early '60s or maybe late '50s, so I know this area very, very well.
MS. TAOMOTO: We don't anticipate blowing any existing lines ... (chuckled) ... but if you
know something, please let us know.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. It's very old Wailuku Sugar housing ... very old plantation
house. Some have made some renovations, some have beautiful models now, but there's
still a lot of the old plumbing and the old Wailuku Sugar homes still there.
MS. TAOMOTO: It won't change the pressure, which is what's going to blow it for the houses-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Yeah.
MS. TAOMOTO: --prior to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. No, I understand.
MS. TAOMOTO: And the existing pipe that we are replacing is a 4-inch plastic pipe that I saw
above ground in the bank and it's frequent to breaks. You can see it ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It's by the sand side, where the cemetery?
MS. TAOMOTO: When you come to the cemetery on the left, you take a right. The road veers
right and the waterline is on the left side of the road, and you can see it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Db-huh, yeah.
MS. TAOMOTO: Because the change is from four to six, I don't see anticipate a ... uh ... a
concerning increase in pressure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Any questions in this area of Piihana and Vineyard? PiihanalVineyard
... uh ... sorry, members. It's No. 25 on the priority list. Okay, let's proceed.
MS. TAOMOTO: Moving to Kihei-Makena District (project sheet 26-21), there are two
projects. The first project is Kihei Road from Mokulele Highway to Ohukai, and that is
to .. , construction funding to install 3,100 feet of 12-inch ductile iron pipeline,
approximately 9 fire hydrants. This would improve fire protection for the area. The
second project is ... uh ... sorry, let me go back to Kihei Road. That request for funding
is $825,000. Eight two five. The next project, number two, is Makena Road. That is for
design funds to install 1,600 feet of 8-inch ductile iron pipe. And as noted, this would
help to reduce the single largest source of overtime expenses due to breaks for our
maintenance staff. The funding that we are requesting is $55,000.
CHAIR KANE: Members, before I open it up, in the FY '07, that represents the anticipated cost
to construct-MS. TAOMOTO: Makena.
CHAIR KANE: --Makena Road waterline replacement?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members, questions? Mr. Hokarna.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I must have missed it. Can you give me, again--I'm sorry if! wasn't
paying attention. Where on Makena Road is this replacement?
MS. TAOMOTO: At the very end.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: By the State Park (Makena Beach Park)?
]
MS. TAOMOTO: After Aki .. , ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Pass that.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. Aki--what? Akinu .. , Bay or Reserve?
CHAIR KANE: Ahihi Kinau.
MS. TAOMOTO: Ahikinu ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Ahihi Kinau. I saw.
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MS. TAOMOTO: Sorry.... (chuckled) ... Bay or Reserve ... after that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that our road?
MS. TAOMOTO: Kind of. That's why it breaks a lot because it's ... uh ... I believe the
waterline is exposed in many areas. The cars--you know, it's a narrow road--the cars
drive over and the waterline breaks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I shouldn't say "is that our road?" That is our line?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes .... (chuckled) ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That waterline is ours? ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBER: ... (chuckled) ...
MS. TAOMOTO: It's also plastic, so you know, if a car runs it over with the sharp lava rocks, it
just breaks.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: And so we are proposing to install 8-inch ductile underground ... standard
installation.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If we could just ask a question under your "remarks" side because
it's kind of interesting. "Developer required to install 4-inch line." That was done,
Ms. Taomoto? I'm looking at your remarks for this project--Makena. "Frequent breaks
on 2-inch line. Developer required to install 4-inch line. Water Supply upsized to
8-inch."
MS. TAOMOTO: Where are you reading?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Your remarks under Attachment 2?
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, sorry. Sorry, I was on Kihei. That project is completed. That project is
prior to this project. So there was a larger, it was ... the 2-inch portion was actually
longer and a developer came in and was required to install a 4-inch and we paid to up size
that to our standards, which is 8-inch. And that was completed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why was the developer only required to do 4-inch if we needed
8-inch as your standard?
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MS. TAOMOTO: That was the Sonny Vick's ... urn ... I'm sorry. I don't ... I don't want to
guess. That was reviewed by our District Engineer and it was part of a subdivision's
water system requirements.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. Maybe this is something that we can provide a ...
CHAIR KANE: Written response?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Again, I just ... I mean just listening to your comments,
I mean, makes me ask that question, you know.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, I'm sorry. If you can, restate that question that you would like
responded to and then Ms. Koller can--she was taking care of another item on the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: So she wasn't able to get your question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm sure that Ms. Sakamoto will correct me because she has our
minutes. But my question was on Page 3 of 5 on Attachment 2, regarding the Makena
Road project. Under the Remarks section, it says "developer required to install 4-inch
line. Department upsized to 8-inch." My understanding from the division is that the
8-inch is a standard that's why they upsized to 8-inch. So my question is, then why did
the developer only be required to go to 4-inch, ifthe standard was 8?
CHAIR KANE: And we will have that question sent and responded to.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Actually, sometimes--especially in the past and even still yet in some
places--if it's Ag zoned or Rural zoned, they mayor may not actually be required to
install an 8-inch line even though system standards would recommend that now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Because for the zoning, they are not yet required to do that.
CHAIR KANE: So we'll get the response in writing. Thank you-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: --Ms. Kraftsow for that response. Any additional questions in this area,
members? Do we have a blue rock issue in this area ... because you're talking above
ground and where it is existing and then you gotta go with an 8-inch underground along
this area, you've got lava rock. I don't know if you have blue rock in this area. You
folks have already looked at that?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, we haven't but I don't believe it's blue rock. I believe it's more lava
rock.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Porous-type lava.
CHAIR KANE: Easier to get through then, yeah. Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So quickly, yeah, again. Can we assume that this is an SMA area?
Do you need an archaeological assessment done? Or it's already been done because of
the Sonny Vick project and so and so, and you don't need to go Planning Commission for
either minor or a regular SMA decision?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The ... urn ... I've done a bunch of waterlines or managed
consultants who've done it and it's in the SMA rules that utilities, such as, water and
sewer underground is exempt from an SMA. But we are still required to apply for an
SMA exemption determination or assessment. And normally, it comes back exempt. But
we still do the assessment and submit it and da da da da. And archaeological is aside of
that, we will be submitting the plans to the State Historic Preservation Division, who will
determine whether monitoring is required. And if so, we will come back for additional
funding in the construction phase. We will revise that number accordingly.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area, members? Moving on, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: Moving on to West Maui District (project sheet 27-25). First project is the
Honokohau Source Replacement project. This is to ... urn ... the funding request of
$150,000 is to design a well or a treatment plant to serve the Honokohau customers. The
existing Honokohau Valley customers is serviced through the Maui Land & Pine's
Kapalua wells. And we had on our budget in Fiscal '04 a project to install four miles of
3-inch and 2-inch ductile iron or plastic pipe, which was completed last month. Oh, no;
yeah, March. So this is to look at a permanent solution to what is a temporary solution as
it exists with all that four miles of pipe.

- 160-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Members, before I open it up, the 150 is SRF? Or what is this?
MS. TAOMOTO: This is ... uh ... yeah, SRF (State revolving loan fund).
CHAIR KANE: And thank you. You have it noted under the "will encumber" block. Thank
you. Members, questions here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One quick one, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would presume your preference would be a well that the
Department owned and controlled than a treatment plant that you still take water from
somebody else's source? Or am I ... would that be your priority? Or your first-MS. TAOMOTO: Preference?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --preference.
MS. TAOMOTO: Our preference is to successfully be able to drill a well and we did ... the
Department did look at a treatment plant and there are more ... uh ... it gets complicated
when you need to go to a treatment plant. On top of that, we don't have the source for
that. We would have to negotiate that. And so, you know, it's simpler ... it's also easier
to operate a well in that remote location.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: So, we will look at both options and look at the feasibility and the long-term
maintenance costs, et cetera, when we do the design.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's terrific. Is the Kapalua Wells also what was once part of--as
we talk about in the earlier project with H'poko--wells that had some concerns with
DBCP or heptachloric areas, you know. Like on Lanai, everybody that did pineapple had
chemical concerns--Mililani, Lanai, Kapalua, H'poko. So this area that we are talking
about for the Kapalua site is not a concern regarding chemicals from previous usage of
landowners?
MS. TAOMOTO: The Kapalua wells, which is our existing source, I have no knowledge of it
being contaminated with chemicals. It doesn't have a granular activated carbon system
that I am aware of.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Yeah, because I thought I had recalled when the County took
the chemical manufacturer to court that there was also some wells in the West Maui area
that was also part of the overall, I guess, consideration.
MS. TAOMOTO: That is correct. But these two wells, which is maintained and managed by
Kapalua, does not. It's not near a pineapple area.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Good. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, members? Hearing none. Let's move.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The next project is the Lahaina Water Treatment Improvements.
Going through the project sheet ... urn ... this project--I want you to refer to
Attachment 2 because it says "Pre-Sed Modification, construction". If you look at "will
encumber" on our Attachment 2, it says "no", and I want to explain. The reason for that
is the Lahaina Water Treatment Improvements Pre-Sed Modification, which is the sludge
lagoon, is not approved for State revolving loan funds because the project design and
environmental assessment has already been completed and did not go through that review
process with the Department of Health and, therefore, does not qualify for those types of
funds. We would have to resubmit ... uh ... we would have to submit and redo the EA
to their standards and, therefore, we will be requesting a budget amendment in Fiscal
Year '05 following this budget process to take monies from existing Fiscal Year '05
projects to fund the construction phase of this Pre-Sed Modification.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair. I believe that budget amendment is on the Council agenda for this
Friday. Since it is a reallocation of CIP funds, it doesn't need to be rushed through right
now. We can take care of it after budget. Ifthere was a change in funding source, then
we would need to take care of it before the end of June.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So members, we'll deal with that issue. That's going to be ... uh ...
that's a County Communication that's coming to this committee?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct. That's correct, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. Members--oh, go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Chairman, then actually 900 should be, instead of ... it actually
should be 900 C because that's your proposal, right, to us?
MS. TAOMOTO: This budget proposal did propose ... uh ... it coming from State revolving
loan funds.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But your answer is "no", you cannot have this fund.
MS. TAOMOTO: But checking with the Department of Health, we will need to do back
paddling to get the loan funds, which we don't think is reasonable. So we will ... our
solution is to request a Fiscal Year '05 amendment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. So to me, we should already change this "X" to one "C"
because you are not going to get the "X" funds.
MS. TAOMOTO: But if we change it, then we have to designate funding in the '06 Budget,
which we don't have as "C".
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You sure that ...
MS. TAOMOTO: So I want to delete this project, if it is appropriate, from the Fiscal Year '06
Budget.
CHAIR KANE: And bump it back to '05?
MS. TAOMOTO: When we come in on Friday.
CHAIR KANE: Well, on Friday, it's just gonna get referred to committee.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MS. TAOMOTO: I mean ... we can't change this to a "C" so it can stay "X" and it doesn't hurt
to stay "X". It's just that you know that we will most likely ... it is almost a guarantee
we won't encumber those funds under the State revolving loan fund.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair. If the committee decides that they want to make a reprioritization
and use cash for this project, then some other project would have to be deleted.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And that's ... that will be right.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions, members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One question, please, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If the plan, as explained to us this evening, you would need to
encumber that funds by the end of December this year. So pretty much you're confident
that this thing is ready to go because unless you tell me "yes", it's gonna lapse on
December 31 st.
MS. TAOMOTO: This project was bid out in Fiscal Year 2004 and did not receive any bids.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I remember this project.
MS. TAOMOTO: Youremember?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. TAOMOTO: So, we are ready to go .... (end ojtape, start BB) . ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: ... (inaudible) ... environment change enough for you to feel ...
have that much more confidence, a little bit more confidence that it can receive bids now?
MS. TAOMOTO: My staff and myself have received calls from contractors inquiring if we were
going to rebid it, so it seems like contractors are interested-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Interested.
MS. TAOMOTO: --to see this bid come out and be advertised.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And now for this one, unlike the Up country one, you're
gonna do a concrete liner or ... ?
MS. TAOMOTO: It is ... uh ... it's like a tank. It's a sledge lagoon. It's like a concrete tank.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MS. TAOMOTO: It's not a reservoir. It's like ... uh ... open reservoir like the other one
Upcountry. This is a concrete ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the difference between a reservoir, which is more than
likely good water but a sludge, you know, you get one sludge lagoon. So isn't it the same
thing--a catchment basin? It's just that this one is concrete.
CHAIR KANE: Looks like an above ground swimming pool. ... (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
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MS. TAOMOTO: I don't understand ... (chuckled) ... your question, or the intent of your
question to get an answer.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No this ... my thing is because this morning you guys, you know,
when we had talked about can the Department ... instead of doing the replacement liner
for I guess it was Piiholo, you know, if it made sense to do concrete.
MS. TAOMOTO: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And you know, Director says, operationally very difficult. We gotta
do this, shut down, length of time of shutdown, and then we come to this one and I just
was kind of amusing myself because it's ... I'm reading, oh, but this one they want
concrete.
MS. TAOMOTO: The reason we can ... we have the operational flexibility to install a concrete
tank for this one because we can operate and construct this tank and then just switch over.
Whereas the Up country one (the relining) is ... there is no, you know, we are not
reconstructing a new reservoir, we are relining an existing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand. I just thought that it was interesting that, you
know, for this one, it made sense to go concrete already on this one.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions, members? Okay, let's move forward. Oh, and by the
way, that one, I think, was what--39 on the priority list?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So Chairman, do we X this out?
CHAIR KANE: This is being deleted, at this point, but it can still be considered; and if we do
consider it, then we just bump something else out.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so how do we ...
CHAIR KANE: Or if we're gonna reduce, then we're gonna be bumping out more if that is what
the body's, you know, tendency is going to be, but we'll see.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is this priority 39?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, priority 39 out of 41 projects.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is the Department recommending deletion from the '06 Budget
consideration? Is that what you're proposing to us, since you know you cannot get SRF
loan?
MS. TAOMOTO: That is ... urn ... yeah. That is ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We need to know what you folks are recommending.
MS. TAOMOTO: The intent ... uh ... I would recommend that you just leave it in with the X
for the Department's Safe Drinking Water loan funds because it doesn't hurt to just leave
it in because you are not providing ... we don't need to provide the cash to fund this in
the budget proposal. It is just marked for State funds. And for whatever reason the
Fiscal Year '05 Budget does not go through--that I am going to come in for on
Friday--then I will consider resubmitting the construction plans and redoing the
environmental assessment or actually republishing the environmental assessments to the
State's standards ... and then qualify for the loan fund. So I would recommend that you
leave it in, in case something goes wrong with the '05 amendment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: I would just like to point out that as SRF loan, because it is borrowed money, it
does reflect against the County's debt.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area? Moving on.
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair. The next project is the Lahaina Waterline Improvements (project
sheet 27-28). The first project is the Lower Honoapiilani Highway from standpipe 48 to
standpipe 24.
CHAIR KANE: Try wait; try wait; try wait. I'm sorry. On 27-28. Okay, thank you. Go ahead.
MS. TAOMOTO: Lower Honoapiilani Highway project. The project consists of 2,400 feet of
8-inch ductile iron pipe to replace existing old line with frequent breaks. The funding for
that, a request for funding is $65,000 for design. Moving on to the next project, the
Wahikuli and Fleming Road Waterline Improvements, design of 2,200 feet of 8-inch
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ductile iron pipe and 4 fire hydrants on Wahikuli and Fleming Road to improve fire
protection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Taomoto, I'm going to stop you. On Page 27-28 in the program it's
called Lahaina Waterline Improvements. In your handout-MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --you have a different listing?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. In our handout, it is designated ... it's a grouped project. Lahaina
Waterline Improvements consists of two projects. On the handout (Attachment 2), it's
broken down by the individual projects but on the budget, it is Lahaina Waterline. It's
un-grouped, if you want to call it, on your Attachment 2.
CHAIR KANE: Forgive us. You are bundling things very frequently and it's not being
consistent with what was proposed to us so ... bear with us as we try to keep up with
your presentation. Can you start again, please? Start again with 27-28.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay, 27-28 is the Lahaina Waterline Improvements. Going to the
description and justification, reading on the second line, after the word "the following:",
the first project is Lower Honoapiilani Highway from standpipe 48 to standpipe 24,
consisting of 2,400 feet of ductile iron pipe to replace existing old line with frequent
breaks.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the cost for that?
MS. TAOMOTO: The funding is $65,000 for design fees.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Proceed.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Wahikuli and Fleming Road Waterline Improvements,
consisting of 2,250 feet of ductile iron pipe and 4 fire hydrants on Wahikuli and Upper
Fleming to improve fire protection, pressure, and reliability in the area. The funding is
$120,000 for a design contract.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for bearing with me on that, members. Any questions in this
area? Ms. Tavares, question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not a question ... but I think the last time (last budget), we
asked them to combine some of their similar, like projects, by districts and maybe this is
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the ... uh ... I think this is the attempt to do it. I would offer only one small correction
is that when they break out the projects, they break out the price in the narrative.
CHAIR KANE: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And then you can put 'em together in the chart and that
would, I think, solve the problem for everyone.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Member Tavares. That is exactly the intent that we are hoping to
achieve. Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if the Department can look at our Capital Improvement
binder. On 27-28, you have $185,000, and you mentioned that Wahikuli and Fleming is
$120,000?
MS. TAOMOTO: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you have $65,000 left from that $185,000, and you said
that $65,000 is for Lower Honoapiilani from standpipe 48 to standpipe 24. If you look at
Page 27-29, it's Lower Honoapiilani Highway, standpipe 48 to standpipe 24; and under
Fiscal Year 2007, you get $65,000 for design. So can you help us understand?
MS. TAOMOTO: I believe the Department's submittal may have included breakdown of each
project, un-grouped, but when the budget was put together some of the un-grouped stuff
did not get in. So it is inconsistent, where in some groups, there's the group and then
the--in this one--the individual project and in other groups, there's only the group. I
don't want ... I don't even know if! can explain what happened.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So all I need ... we need to know, this evening, Ms. Taomoto, is ...
is 27-29 a duplication and we can just forget about that page?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because it's taken care of on Page 27-28?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes. In the Budget Ordinance, it will be grouped Lahaina.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Strike 27-29, members. Questions on Lahaina Waterline Improvements? And
the Chair will comment that we are moving at a very good pace, members. We're on
Item No. 32. We have about 20 more to go. We're past the halfway point. We are going
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into Molokai and East Maui and Countywide. We have several more to go. Okay.
Ms. Taomoto, let's proceed.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Mahinahina Water Treatment Plant Improvements
(project sheet 27-30). That project sheet needs to be revised to strike out Item 1,
electronically operated entrance gate and provide lighting in the area for security. That
will be moved to Fiscal Year '07. We are left with Item 2, remove and replace floating
reservoir cover as existing cover is in poor condition, and that funding is $50,000.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Let's move, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Napili A Well Facility Restoration (project sheet
27-31). That project is to repair the tank and control building, and possibly upgrade the
tank in size. The tank and control building are basically ... urn ... the tank is basically
too small and the control building, I believe, is just old or in need of repair. The funding
request is for $180,000. As you can see on your project sheet, $30,000 for design and
$150,000 for construction.
CHAIR KANE: Tank size, existing tank size upgrade projection?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, I don't have that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, excuse me. The existing tank is 50,000 gallons and we are proposing a
500,000 gallon tank.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Fifty to--what was the number?
MS. TAOMOTO: To 500,000. The reason for that is for chlorine contact time.
CHAIR KANE: Existing site adequate for a 500,000 gallon tank?
MS. TAOMOTO: I am not sure.
CHAIR KANE: Is this a priority of yours? I see it in the middle of the pack. Or is that what it
is? I see No. 22.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if! may?
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TENGAN: I don't believe that construction funds for the tank is included in the budget in
'06. Neither is it included in the other years, so that's something that is gonna have to be
reflected in the out-year budgets, from 2007 and beyond. So, in my mind, I see these two
figures--the $30,000 for design and the $150,000 for construction--would be dealing
primarily with the repair of the control building.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So can you, I guess, re-explain the design/construction portions and tell
us if you're going to be revising the opening remark on this by Ms. Taomoto to what it
actually is going to be used for?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. I would suggest that we just change the description to "repair
control building" and delete any references to the tank. So in the first sentence, the
phrasing might read "repair control building". Delete consider--well, you can leave the
"consider tank upgrade". You could leave "improve system efficiency and service the
customers". And that last ... uh ... where it starts off "tank and ... ", just say "control
building is in need of repair and renovation."
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. TENGAN: And delete that last sentence.
CHAIR KANE: Actually, Director, what we are going to do is we're gonna ask you to send us a
replacement page for this.
MR. TENGAN: Yes, we can do that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And then we will take this item into consideration in the deliberations.
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair, if I may? If we are going to submit a new sheet, maybe we can
leave the description and justification as it is but show a budgeted amount for design and
construction of the tank in the-CHAIR KANE: In the outlying years.
MR. TENGAN: --in the out years, yes.
CHAIR KANE: That's fine. Members, any questions here? We'll get a revision and I think
we've--Ms. Koller, are we developing a list of requirements for revisions? Thank you.
Okay. Members, I think we're leaving the West Maui area. Ms. Taomoto?
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MS. TAOMOTO: We're in the Molokai District now and the first project (project sheet 29-19)
is Kaunakakai Well No.2. The request of $1.3 million is for land and exploratory well
drilling. This exploratory well is for a backup of the Kualapuu Well in the Kawela
Aquifer. We have a design contract but are unable to secure a site at this time. We have
... had a public meeting in March and I'm still trying to deal with those issues, so
... uh ... this also is a State revolving loan fund.
CHAIR KANE: We see a question mark at "will encumber". Can you provide us comment?
MS. TAOMOTO: The reason there's a question mark is that it is on the eligible list but is not,
you know, guaranteed by the State (the funding). It's just eligible due to the type of
project.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes, I do ... but I am submitting them in writing so we can
move on.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any additional questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Why, you no like share?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Good answer, Mr. Mateo. Good answer.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Never mind hiding your questions.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay, let's move on. Ualapue.
MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is the Ualapue Well Replacement project is to replace the
well shaft with a deeper, fresher well. The well upheaval is shallow and has increasing
chlorides and may be susceptible to becoming groundwater under the direct influence of
surface water. The request is for $150,000 for design funds.
CHAIR KANE: SRF question mark on the eligibility list?
MS. TAOMOTO: Same answer as the previous. It's on the eligible list but there is no guarantee
that we will receive the funds.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Tengan, any outlying year comments regarding construction,
et cetera? What can we anticipate once we start this? What is it going to cost to end it
... or finish it?
MR. TENGAN: I can't give you an answer right now, Mr. Chair. Our Planning Chief here says
that the construction is in the out years beyond 2010 and 2011.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you notice that it's the last one on the list of priorities, yeah.
MS. KRAFTSOW: For this project, we scheduled the design of Ualapue a little earlier than we
normally would. Right now, we are still trying to get the Kaunakakai backup well going.
And normally, we would do that first, finish it, and then move on to Ualapue. The reason
we scheduled it earlier was so that we could consider the possibility of connecting the
two systems and using one well as a backup for both, but it is not that likely. It is an
eligible project and probably will be definitely done one day but the priority is to get the
Kaunakakai Well done in the most efficient way and we wanted to be able to look at the
possibility of efficiencies of doing it both ways, so we scheduled it just in case.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
If the Department cannot--maybe Mr. Mateo can--help me
understand where this well is located, please? Like Central Molokai, West Molokai, East
Molokai, past ... uh ... toward Manae ... uh ... Kilohana. I mean, can you give me
some location (general area), so I can kind of know where we are talking about, please?
MR. TENGAN: Mr. Chair. I believe it's beyond Kawela. I don't know how many miles.
CHAIR KANE: East end? East end.
MR. TENGAN: So it's headed towards East from Kaunakakaki.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So knowing that general geographic area, are you ... you
know, you already mentioned increasing chlorides, so you're already having geothermal
changes whereby the rising temperature is being noticeable in your periodic water
samplings and checks of the system?
MS. KRAFTSOW: I can't comment on the temperatures but the rising chlorides at the Kawela
Well are more serious than this one and the Kaunakakai backup well will back up the
Kualapuu and Kawela Wells.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: So that's the priority well. This well is quite a ways to the East of Kawela.
So the reason to consider it would be in the event we wanted to do something like what
we did with Hana, where we improved the transmission and then backed both sides up
with a different well.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So quickly, without taking too much time, is something
happening to the lands whereby you, you know, in a way you tell us kind of what's
happening but may not be happening is the susceptibility of becoming groundwater under
the direct influence of surface water. So to me, something is happening with the lands
under the ground.
MS. KRAFTSOW: It's just a very shallow well. It's not very deep at all. It is like 30-40 feet
deep.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I would hope that--I mean, if this is of concern and I
can appreciate Mr. Mateo's concern, I would like to know too. I mean if we gotta move,
we should at least have it in a planning ... CIP planning program phase of six years and
what kind of numbers we are looking at. Because if it's shallow, then I would assume
that it can tum that much faster than those that have larger lenses. I would hate for that
island to lose additional drinking water capabilities.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Construction right now is scheduled at a million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For a year that we are not aware of.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Beyond ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: No, no, no, no.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. Right now, the time is not scheduled until we look at the overall
strategy of how we would do it relative to Kaunakakai. Otherwise, it would be scheduled
as soon as Kaunakakai is completed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comment. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama, for
.
. .
Jumpmgm.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No apologies; no apologies.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I just ... your reference to the possibility of connecting,
connecting the two, transmission exists between Ualapue and Kaunakakai?
MS. KRAFTSOW: No. In fact, it would be very expensive. It is unlikely that, that would be
the most efficient way to do things but it's something that we wanted to give a fair look
at.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. When you take a look at a source, a source that is
already existing that ... urn ... you know, you indicate that the well is shallow; it has
increasing chlorides; and it may be susceptible to becoming groundwater under direct
influence of surface water. This is a 41 priority rating. This is the last one on your list.
These considerations of an existing source doesn't ... uh ... kind of give you the
impression that it should be elevated?
CHAIR KANE: Priority, priority elevation, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
MS. KRAFTSOW: I think it is an important project. I think that the list part of what makes it a
priority is how far along it already is; and how likely it is to get done; and whether ...
On Molokai, the well that is most at risk right now is the Kawela Well and so the
KaunkakailKawela system--and you know there is also the Kualapuu issue, the issue on
the side of the Kualapuu Aquifer and the issue on the side of the Kawela Well. So that
becomes the highest priority right now and it is just a matter of realistically, you know,
sort of starting upstream and working your way down. So yes, it is a very important
project. It's just that in terms of all the work going on and how far along it is, it's not
likely to get something like that designed and built within the two years.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, we're not looking at the next two years, but it's nowhere on
the radar. It is not even on the radar at this point.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MS. KRAFTSOW: The schedule wouldn't ...
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. No, I think ... uh ... it's 8 o'clock.
questions and will submit it and let the Department respond in writing.

I'll write my

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Any further questions on this particular item
(Ualapue)? Hearing none. Let's move on to Countywide, I believe, members.
Thirty--excuse me--yeah, 30-20. Well, we've got two places. Ms. Taomoto, why don't
you go ahead and provide ... uh ... members, we are almost there. Do you folks need
five minutes just to stretch, and then come back, and we can wrap up.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Why don't we go ahead and do that. Time now is 8:05. Five minutes is
fine, members, just to kind of stand up and get some circulatory blood going? Let's
reconvene at 8:10 p.m ... .(gavel).. We're in recess.
RECESS:

8:05 p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:14 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay. members, let's reconvene. Thanks for that seven-minute
break that we all needed to do to get circulation back in our legs especially. Let's see. At
this point, I believe, we are getting into Countywide, so how about we recognize
Ms. Kraftsow. We will let you start going with this. We will give Wendy a break and let
you start doing some Countywide stuff. How's that?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Oh, that's quite all right. I am happy to listen to Wendy.... (chuckled) ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: ... (chuckled) ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Director, you want to go ahead and continue and see who's gonna be
describing what?
MR. TENGAN: I'll go along with you, Mr. Chair, and have Ellen do some talking for now.
CHAIR KANE: There you go.
MS. TAOMOTO: She's ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Kraftsow, thank you very much for volunteering to participate.
MS. TAOMOTO: Page 30-27.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, according to the handout (Attachment 2), Page 4 of 5, we're gonna
start up with the 36th of 51 items. Keanae Well backup generator on 30-27 of your
program budget.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Page 30-27 is backup (Countywide backup generation) and that
actually includes two projects--the Keanae Well backup generator and the Upcountry
system mobile backup generator. The Keanae Well backup generator is $80,000 and the
Up country large mobile backup generator is $155,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So members, before I open it up, what we have listed on 22-22, under
the Hana District, is that a place where we would be striking since you are representing
that project to be in '07, which is the same as what you have listed now for Countywide,
One of those duplication ones? Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: What page?
CHAIR KANE: Page 22-22 of your program. Not your details now, your program.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. I have a list here of ...
CHAIR KANE: Page 22-22. You have Keanae Well backup generator. FY '07, you have
$80,000, which you just described to us in this bundled Countywide backup generation.
MS. KRAFTSOW: So then--yeah--you would delete the duplicate.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Delete 22-22 then.
CHAIR KANE: Delete 22-22 although it doesn't, you know, it's an '07 thing.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Questions? 80 for Keanae ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: Where's my list of ... (inaudible) ... ?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Kraftsow, can you again describe the breakdown ofthe 155 and the 80?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The Up country system large mobile backup generator would be a large
generator about 500 horsepower, with a container and other appurtenances as needed to
serve the Up country system's large pumps. That's estimated to cost about $155,000.
The Keanae backup generator would probably be housed at the Keanae Well site,
- 176 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

although that's under discussion, whether it be permanent or mobile. That's estimated to
be about $80,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And again, members, forgive me. I'm just trying to get some clarity
before I open it up. You also have listed the Lahaina system mobile backup generator
(large). Comments?
MS. KRAFTSOW: That would be cut at this point.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. KRAFTSOW: That would be deleted from your page there. We can send you revised
sheets for the whole thing. Actually ... urn ... but the Lahaina system mobile backup
generator was one of the items that was moved out for lack of funds.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And within that revision, Ms. Koller, if you can note the deletion of
Page 22-22, and have them respond with that .. .(end of tape, start 9A). .. Any
questions, members, in this area for these two Countywide backup generation
components? Okay. Let's move forward, Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: On Page 30-28, it's Countywide Disinfection Upgrades. This is a project to
inspect, evaluate, and upgrade the chlorination and other disinfection stations throughout
the system as necessary. Some ofthe disinfection stations are getting older and may need
replacement. The cost is $200,000.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: One question, please, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does this take into account your request amount as it also regards to
the areas Upcountry that we have been having some concerns, I guess, regarding
additives to the water?
MS. KRAFTSOW: This project is really just the facilities maintenance project. Although, of
course, maintaining and upgrading your stations would contribute to water quality but it's
really just a facilities maintenance project. It's not a direct response to that issue if that's
what you are asking.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I was wondering if there was monies in here that was part of
addressing those concerns.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Not in this project.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Questions? Ifnot, Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. The next project is Countywide Pipe and Facility Improvements.
This is an amount that is set aside each year to deal with any unforeseen circumstances be
they breaks or cost overruns, so it ensures funds for small emergencies and thereby helps
us stay reliable and efficient.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Again, before I open it up, members, on the last two for Disinfection
Upgrades as well as Pipe and Facility Improvements, Mr. Tengan, is the intent to reflect
outer-year continuous funding in your proposals?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. I believe that this is something that we should be budgeting for
on an annual basis.
CHAIR KANE: Would you be willing to provide a revised page for this as well, please?
MR. TENGAN: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I am asking that, members, because I see it as a set aside amount
each year.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So that, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For the next two wells?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. As we get up to Countywide Pump Condition Assessment and
Calibration. Anyway--Ms. Kraftsow, next one.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mr. Chair. This is to assess the condition and status of all of our pumps;
calibrate their efficiencies; and also gather additional data to better prioritize replacement
and identify opportunities for better efficiency. So this is part of asset management effort
in facilities management.
CHAIR KANE: Again, Mr. Tengan, this would be another one that would reflect outer years?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. And we'll make the change.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank: you. Countywide Pump Replacement. Members, any questions in
this area? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, not so much the pump replacement but I think: it goes
back to the question that we asked before about the annual repair and maintenance of
facilities, whether it belongs in CIP or in operations? I guess that's one of the areas that
will be discussed through the coming year. This work is performed by your County
employees?
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
MS. KRAFTSOW: This particular project is a consultant project to do a broad system-wide
pump evaluation and assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. KRAFTSOW: So this is a ... urn ... although there would be, there should be some annual
assessment and maintenance, this particular project is sort of a larger scale project.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. KRAFTSOW: That will involve consultant help.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank: you. Thank: you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because Mr. Tengan mentioned to this committee earlier that one of
the reasons he looked at the capital side was because of how they do the bookings on
their asset control management program. So maybe we can ask ... send a letter to the
Budget Director asking if there are other departments that view what we would, in
general, consider maintenance part of a need to have it booked under a capital program
for either depreciation or a reporting of asset value. Thank: you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions, members, in this area? Ms. Koller, you got that?
MS. KOLLER: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank: you. Okay, we will have that sent out. Ms. Kraftsow, our next item?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Our next item is Countywide Pump Replacements. This includes
five projects--the replacement of the Kalae Booster Pump; the replacement of the Kula
Kai Booster Pump, No. 542; replacement ofNapili B Pump No. 570, replacement ofPaia
"Blue" (Skill Village) Booster Pump No. 595; and replacement of Waiehu Heights
Pump A No. 514. However, because of the Countywide pump assessment project going
on, we wanted to group these as one big Countywide pump replacements, so that in the
event that the study reveals different priorities, we would be able to make those changes.
CHAIR KANE: So thus the item ... uh ... the specific pump's numbers-MS. KRAFTSOW: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --beyond what you just listed (or what are listed here), provides you with the
flexibility to respond to the prioritized among this list? Is that what you're asking?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Actually, to respond to a prioritized among any pumps, but the five that
were specifically in mind were the five that I named. There were some others on your list
that need to be deleted--Haleakala Acres Booster Pump ...
CHAIR KANE: Before you list that, why don't we just get a revision then.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Get a revision as far as the deletions. Any questions, members, in this
area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman. If she can just repeat the five ones that she wants us to
retain.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Yes. Ms. Kraftsow?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Those are the Kalae Booster Pump No. 555; the Kula Kai Booster Pump
No. 542; the Napili B Pump $570; Paia "Blue" (Skill Village) Booster Pump No. 595;
and Waiehu Heights Pump A No. 514.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: And that's to keep, yeah, on the list?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, the funds for those.
CHAIR KANE: Questions, members, in this area? Hearing none. Members, let's move on.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Page 30-32 is not on the list anymore. Page 30-33, Flow Meter and
Manhole In Key System Location. We have a number of sites that are under
consideration or that were mentioned as needing additional monitoring by various
consultants and this is to enable--not just to put a flow meter but where needed--to put a
manhole so that you can get down into the street. It's an annual budget amount to enable
us to improve our system monitoring.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Tengan, we will have a request for the outlying years on a revised
sheet please?
MR. TENGAN: We will do that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions, members, on this item? Ms. Kraftsow, let's move.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Flow Meter Installation and Replacement. It's a similar project
except these flow meters are above ground. It is both to install additional meters (as
needed) or to replace those that get old.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
MS. KRAFTSOW: And it's also annual.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
above-ground flow meters?

Do you need to distinguish between in-ground and

MS. KRAFTSOW: Just in that you can do several flow meters for this $30,000 but the manhole
you can do maybe one or two depending upon ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean there's ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: It's a bigger project. We probably ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You wouldn't want to combine the two together?
MS. KRAFTSOW: They probably could be combined. It's just, I don't know if the manhole is
separate from ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Because we talked before, I guess, about the amounts
of money and that when they're so small, they don't look like they belong in CIP.

- 181 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

MS. KRAFTSOW: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So maybe ifit's not a matter of asset management or logging
or whatever you do that that's two that could be combined.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller, if you can just add this one to the annual reflection. Any comments
from Ms. Taomoto regarding this, I think, on the point that Ms. Tavares made or--excuse
me. Director?
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. If the Council could provide us some guidance as to what is
the minimum amount that they would like to see us breaking out these projects or
programs, then that would certainly help us in preparation of the budget. You know, it
could be in an amount like maybe anything over 100,000 or 200,000. If we could have
some guidance on that, it would certainly help us.
MR. KOLLER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: And before I recognize you, Ms. Koller, members, if you'd like I don't think it
should be something that we discuss now but maybe it's something that we can create a
communication, have it sent to the committee, and we can have a discussion with the
Water Department as well as the other departments. It's more of a policy decision so we
can help refine the budget proposals in future years. Is that okay, members, with you
folks ... that we take that approach?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
departments.

I think Ms. Morrison was gonna work on it with the

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Koller, I'm sorry, go ahead.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to point out that whether you show this as
CIP and capitalize it, there's different criteria. It is in relation to the useful life, what the
actual project is--whether it's a, you know, like you're talking about a repair and
maintenance or something that should be ongoing. That policy, you know, should
already ... the County should already have something set up and I think the Finance
Director, we were sending, you know, suggested sending a letter to the Budget Director.
I think maybe it should be the Managing Director and have him coordinate a response
from both the Budget Director and the Finance Director. Then see what that response
says and then the committee can decide whether there needs to be further. But there are
certain guidelines within, you know, accounting as to how you handle this.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. So members, we will just refine the original statements. We will have
something sent from this committee discussion we'll send it out to the Managing Director
and ask them for a response and that will help us in the future, future budget
considerations. Thank you, Ms. Koller. Thank you for everybody's comments. Let's
move forward.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. Mr. Chair, the next item is the Hydraulic Model allowance, which is
another annual allowance for development, calibration, and implementation of a
hydraulic model.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We are on 30-35, correct?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions here, members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Is this an annual?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: This would be annual, so outlying years as well?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My question is how long before this model is completed?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, the preliminary model ... the preliminary skeleton model was 2002
and the other ... uh ... the real functioning model we're probably some years out yet.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, we'll ...
MS. KRAFTSOW: Unless we get more people on board. I have ... uh ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Who's creating this model? We have a consultant contract
for this?
MS. KRAFTSOW: The software, itself, is just purchased software.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: And then, yeah. You have ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's a matter of entering data into that software.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, gathering, and field measurements, and as-built checking.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So this will go on every year from now until eternity?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area, members, 30-35?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Then Chairman, I hope that the committee will view this as an
operational request and one capital request because that is what it would truly be--an
operational request. It is an annual ongoing operational need.
CHAIR KANE: Is it the will of the ... or is it the preference of this body that we provide
Mr. Tengan an opportunity to respond, where specifically the operational funds could be
plugged in to accommodate this request?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be appropriate, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, members. We will have a letter written to Mr. Tengan and have him
respond to, to that request. Any further questions in this area? Hearing none.
Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: The next item is Page 30-36, Increase in Size of Mainlines, and this is
another annual allowance. This is to increase when a project is required to put in a line,
the project requirement themselves may not ... uh ... the projects may require a 6-inch
line but we may know that the area actually needs a larger line for the region surrounding
the project and so we may want to upgrade to a 12-inch line. This enables us to do that
so that lines can serve more than just one project, and it's an annual allowance too.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Got one. I thought Mr. Hokama was gonna jump on this
one.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Is there some point where you would recoup these
monies? Because if you up size it and then other people corne on ... it's like the first
person who wants to do something has to put in the big line and then you guys make it
bigger, do you ever get reimbursed for making it bigger because now it's able to serve,
you know, 10 more projects?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Tengan or Ms. Kraftsow.
MR. TENGAN: Well, the potential to recoup the money is there. If they have vacant lands
fronting or if the pipeline is fronting vacant lands and people want to hook up their
property to the water systems, then we would recover the costs, our portion anyway
through the water system development fee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So it's when they hook up for meters and stuff like
that?
MR. TENGAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Hokarna.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So that works for everybody that comes after the first guy
though, right? The first guy still eats it in the shorts.
MR. TENGAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Because the Department will recover from the guys that corne after
the upgrade.
MR. TENGAN: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But the first guy who brings it in and has to ... let's say, put in the
4-inch line although it's only for one 10,000 square foot lot, I mean, he's gonna be asked
to ante about half a million dollars?
MR. TENGAN: Well, it could be for a subdivision also. So you know, ifit is for a subdivision
then that subdivider could recoup his costs through the sale of the lots.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No but Molokai, you don't have that kind of ... you have certain
situations, where like Kalae, you have an empty lot among houses but for him to get into
that one empty lot, through the existing houses, the Department asked him to pay for the
whole line to get to the lot, although there's service around the lot.
MR. TENGAN: Well, that would apply throughout the County, where we operate and maintain
the water systems. It is not only specifically to Molokai.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, my question is more about fairness since we already have
a system there. I can see them paying for their meters and everything else but to pay for
that line to come to the lot from already one water system we provide to the adjacent lots.
MR. TENGAN: Well, if the line is determined to be inadequate, then the new applicant would
need to upgrade their system.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For everybody?
MR. TENGAN: For himself, but everybody else will benefit from it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Well, I'm thinking of that local family guy, who just wants
that one lot for his family, you know. Again, we are not helping our people get on our
land. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chairman, and just to continue where Mr. Hokama
left off. But if the ... if an old existing subdivision went through the approval process
and got approvals, and the Department was part of the approving entity, then it is not ...
it shouldn't be the responsibility of the home lot owner to do the connection. It should be
the County's responsibility to do it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Or they can charge him his fair share.
MR. NAKAMURA: Mr. Chair. In response to that question, I've been kind of working with
Corp. Counsel to kind oflook at this whole situation. Initially, they (based on the rules),
the applicant would be entitled to a water meter, without having to put any
improvements. However, subsequent to that, there are a number of questions that were
raised and we are currently doing our due diligence to check that out before we decide
whether we can issue a meter or not. So this is being looked at right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. But Corp. Counsel's interpretation was ... ?
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MR. NAKAMURA: To allow the water meter to be installed.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, members?
Ms. Kraftsow.

Okay, we're on the home stretch.

MS. KRAFTSOW: The next item is on Page 30-37 and it's Land Appraisal and Acquisition.
This is to enable us to purchase the land underlying existing or planned Department
facilities.
CHAIR KANE: Questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you provide us with a list of those properties that the
Department would like to have the County purchase and what kind of requirements
would it take to--is this one and a half ($1.6 million) the magic number to buy all the land
that the Department wants?
MS. TAOMOTO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Taomoto.
MS. TAOMOTO: To prepare a list would not be an easy task because there are numerous
waterline easements where we don't have ... uh ... I mean, waterlines where we don't
have an easement and there are also tank sites where we don't have an easement or have
grant of a land. It would take me some amount of man-hours to put together a complete
list. So if you would like me to, I will attempt to start; but I would ask for an extended
period to complete the task, maybe like six months to a year. It would take me, I mean, I
don't even know where to begin with all the waterlines that we don't have easements for.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR KANE: Well, at least we can understand the scope now that they're talking
about. But let me bring you back, okay. You have a prior appropriation of $400,000. If
something doesn't happen in the next 7-8 months, that money is going to lapse. So you
obviously have a plan of what you want to buy with the amount of money you currently
have? Or am I mistaken?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: Actually, that prior appropriation is just the last couple of years. This is an
annual allowance-MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah.
MS. KRAFTSOW: --that we run every year.
MS. TAOMOTO: For years.
MS. KRAFTSOW: So ... urn ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But what are you gonna buy for $200,000 when for the Waikapu,
you just told us for half acre $250,000.
MS. TAOMOTO: I use this account to do, not only a purchase ... uh ... dollar value to
purchase or acquire easements, but I use this account to perform land appraisals that we
would normally do to assess a value, for example, of a fire hydrant easement. And then
also use this account for our waterline projects, where unforeseen situations come up,
where a fire hydrant easement is required, which I've ... normally, I think, one was like
$500 and the appraisal is like $200. You know what I'm saying? I mean, we have so
many waterline projects and ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You want a fund that is not-MS. TAOMOTO: Tied to ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --with very wide parameters. Is that what you want?
MS. TAOMOTO: If you would allow it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: As long as you can be ... you are willing to be held accountable of
what you spend.
MS. TAOMOTO: This account is used for land acquisition purposes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, maybe if you do plan acquisition in a budget year that
the bond funding is being asked for, you need to make that known to us because it's land
appraisal and acquisition. We know that the life of the appropriation is good for
18 months, so I just ... again, I am willing to support you but be up front with us and tell
us what you want to do with the money. If it is to acquire land, tell us. We are looking at
x-lot, anticipated x-value, and that's what we're looking for acquisition. Because I was
wondering how are you gonna put ... buy these things for what you need and in part of

- 188-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 13, 2005

your description for this kind of funding, especially when we heard your number of 250
for Waikapu half acre.
MS. TAOMOTO: We will address your comment in our next year's budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I was just looking through this list that we had gotten before
from Finance ... uh ... February i h actually, where somebody had requested--during the
Budget and Finance meeting of real property--Ieases and licenses that the County of Maui
is involved in, either as the lessee or the lessor. I did note on a couple of places, where
the Water Department does have a listing, but there's not very many Water Department
things in here. So mostly it's the baseyard and stufflike that, so I just was looking at it.
So it is a horrendous job but at least the Finance Department has started to at least
identify our leases and licenses.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Before we move on, members, I would like to make sure that
this--just this past couple of minutes this discussion--should be noted and somehow
carried through.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: So somehow, we need to communicate to the Water Department that in this
case the title is not accurate and the justification and the description of the title is not
accurate that we need to ... again, all we are asking is that you just tell us what you need
so we can support you with what you need. Right now, based on what was provided in
the proposed budget and what you are doing, it is not consistent. So we need you to ...
quite frankly, you need to be forthright with us as to exactly what you're using and how
you are going to be tapping this money and for what uses. So somehow, that needs to be
communicated and we will figure out something, members, if you allow staff to come up
with something to make that note and, hopefully, the Water Department can take note of
that as well in their next proposed budget.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Tengan, no problem with that?
MR. TENGAN: No, we don't have a problem with that. But I would like to clarify that this
amount is, you know, budgeted every year because we do encounter from time to time as
we go through our operations and let's say we want to do a pipeline repair and then so
we, in planning the project, we find out, oh, we don't have an easement although that
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pipeline might be 40 years old and in the ground for that time. In the past, a lot of the
pipelines were put in the ground with just a verbal approval from the landowner and these
are the kinds of situations that we are trying to correct now. When we find out that we
don't have an easement or we don't have rights to the property, then we would like to
have funds available to correct these situations.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that comment. I don't think the intent is for us to take away the
money. I think the intent is for us to have you describe this area more accurately on what
the uses are going to be. So within your description and justification, we are just asking
that you let us know that beyond land acquisition, that you folks will be using it for
appraisals and other things that have been noted in this discussion. So we will send some
sort of communication to kind of tie that up so we know that we can anticipate that in the
next budget proposal. Mr. Hokama, I'm sorry, you had any further comments in this
area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No. Thank you very much to the Department and you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's move forward, Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Okay. I don't know in your order if your next page is Page 30-38,
Replacement of Hamakuapoko Well Booster Pumps and Motor Control Center?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: The one that ... it's at the top ofthe page of the Attachment 5 of5?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: I noticed it got kind of out of line there.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: So, go ahead.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah. We had it in MakawaolPukalanilKula. But the project is to replace
existing booster pump and motor control centers and to change to variable speed drives
for the Hamakuapoko Wells, to make the booster pump site more compatible with its
power source and to enable the pumps to operate in a more flexible manner.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So again, if you can assist ... you had it also listed--just for c1arity--you
also had it listed in the MakawaolPukalani/Kula District? Is that what you said?
MS. KRAFTSOW: What? That was where we had it, yes.
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CHAIR KANE: I guess my question ... what I'm trying to lead up to is there a duplication
that's provided here?
MS. KRAFTSOW: No, there's no duplication.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. Members, any questions on this replacement request on 30-38?
Okay. Hearing none. Let's move forward.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: The booster pump is just to push the water from the well to your ...
through your transmission lines? Is that the purpose of booster pumps? Or from your
transmission line through your distribution grid?
MR. TENGAN: Yes. Mr. Chair, the pump will be used to pump water from one ... uh ...
normally, from one storage tank to another.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Storage tank to storage tank. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Let's move, Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: The next item is Page 30-39, the SCADA System Maintenance and
Upgrade, which is also actually an annual allowance.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll note that.
MS. KRAFTSOW: And that's to install and upgrade the SCADA system as needed from
improved system monitoring and control.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, let's move on.
MS. KRAFTSOW: The next item is Security Measures, that's on Page 30-40. That's to install
security measures as indicated in the vulnerability assessment Countywide. We are not
giving a lot of details on this project. The budget that you see is not actually the whole
budget for the project. There are some Federal funds available as well.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Will you be identifying that to notify us of what the true costs will be?
And is this an ongoing annual figure to continually upgrade your security systems?
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MS. KRAFTSOW: It will be ongoing at least for a while. I don't know about the funding
identification if. .. (end o/tape, start 9B) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: This may be from the Homeland Security. I think we received a grant--I don't
know if it was last year--that had some money for security measures for water.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. I recall that discussion.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: It was citing with the Police Department-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --their mobile command post, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: That's right. Yes. Okay. So we will have a revision on this, Director, because
of some annual costs in future years, outlying years? Is that the intent, that you will have
outlying year costs?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Mine has an annual ...
MR. TENGAN: Yes, Mr. Chair. If there are no costs involved beyond the Fiscal Year 2006, we
will make the revisions.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And we'll have that sent out to get you acknowledgement. Thank
you. Members, we are moving on to 30-41. Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: That's Small, In-House Pipe ReplacementlFire Protection Upgrades. That is
for our field crew to do in-house replacement of small diameter pipelines where needed.
That's another annual allowance.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Annual allowance, Ms. Koller. Members, the final one. Ms. Kraftsow.
MS. KRAFTSOW: The Treatment Plants, Filter Replacement Allowance. The Membrane filter
life tends to be between 7 and 15 years--depending upon the raw water quality--and the
membranes are nearing their anticipated life, so this is to have an amount to prepare for
replacement, if needed. They can be expensive.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any comments here, members? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just that their 7-15 year life expanSIOn needs to match their
anticipated life of20. It should be one or the other.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Kraftsow?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Oh, good point. Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: And so which is it--anticipated life of 20 or the membrane filter life expectancy
.

?

IS ....

MS. KRAFTSOW: For the membranes, I would cut that down to 10 or 15. I will talk to Paul or
Holly-CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MS. KRAFTSOW: --to see what it should be.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any further questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Nope.
CHAIR KANE: And members, real brief, I would just like to ask a question on the USGS
monitoring well, the prior appropriation. Is there ... is there, has that money been fully
utilized? Is there leftover there? Is there money there?
MS. KRAFTSOW: For which one?
CHAIR KANE: I am looking at 30-43, the USGS Monitor Well Drill Rig.
MS. TAOMOTO: There is no money in the budget, Chair. There's no ...
CHAIR KANE: And the prior appropriation, everything has been used? Or has lapsed or ... ?
MS. TAOMOTO: No. That-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It says ...
MS. TAOMOTO: --money is ... uh ... proposed to be transferred for the Lahaina Sludge
Lagoon on Friday.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. I thought I read that somewhere, so I wanted to make sure
that's the one. Okay. Members, any additional questions you have on any of the CIP
items, please put them in writing. We will have it sent to the Department for a timely
response. Director and to all your resource personnel, thank you. Ms. Fujita Villarosa,
thank you for being here this evening. We appreciate your presence. Members, thank
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you very much. Tomorrow morning, we anticipate--and let the Chair get that in front of
us so you can have some level of preparation for tomorrow morning. Thursday
(April 14th) at 9 o'clock, we anticipate discussion with or a presentation from the Maui
Visitors Bureau; as well as the Humane Society Animal Shelter revenue, changes in fees;
as well as Water Supply Operations. So we will see Director Tengan back for tomorrow
morning. Any final comments before we adjourn? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Do you anticipate a night ...
possible night meeting tomorrow? And the reason I ask is because I am scheduled to go
out to a community association meeting in Waihee.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair is not going to be scheduling anything tomorrow night because I will
be at that same meeting with you, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And we also have the Centennial function in this Chamber tomorrow afternoon
and so we will not anticipate anything tomorrow evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that tomorrow or Friday, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: I thought it was tomorrow, if I'm not mistaken, the 14th.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Tomorrow (Thursday).
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Centennial.
CHAIR KANE: The Centennial is April 14th.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm so glad you reminded me because I thought it was on Friday.
CHAIR KANE: So tomorrow morning. And in fact, there is going to be a pre-blessing in here
before they even, you know, in the morning. So anyway, members, thank you very
much. We will try not to do this too much. Ifwe got to, we got to.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: MA and J1)
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: This meeting of April13, 2005 is adjourned... . (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

8:54 p.m.

APPROVED:

Transcribed by: Pauline Martins
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